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PART I  

Item 1. Business  

General. CenturyTel, Inc. ("CenturyTel") is a regional diversified communications company engaged primarily in providing local exchange 
telephone services and wireless telephone communications services. For the year ended December 31, 1999, local exchange telephone 
operations and wireless operations provided 68% and 25%, respectively, of the consolidated revenues of CenturyTel and its subsidiaries (the 
"Company"). Substantially all of the Company's telephone and wireless operations are conducted within the continental United States.  

At December 31, 1999, the Company's local exchange telephone subsidiaries operated over 1.27 million telephone access lines, primarily in 
rural, suburban and small urban areas in 20 states, with the largest customer bases located in Wisconsin, Washington, Michigan, Louisiana, 
Colorado, Ohio, Oregon and Montana. According to published sources, the Company is the seventh largest local exchange telephone company 
in the United States based on the number of access lines served. For more information, see "Telephone Operations."  

At December 31, 1999, the Company's majority-owned and operated cellular systems served approximately 707,000 customers in 19 
Metropolitan Statistical Areas ("MSAs") in Michigan, Louisiana, Arkansas, Mississippi, Wisconsin and Texas, and 23 Rural Service Areas 
("RSAs"), most of which are in Michigan, Louisiana, Arkansas, Mississippi and Wisconsin. The Company's ownership interest in these 
operated markets represented approximately 7.6 million pops (the estimated population of licensed cellular telephone markets multiplied by the 
Company's proportionate equity interest in the licensed operators thereof). At December 31, 1999, the Company also owned minority equity 
interests in 10 MSAs and 17 RSAs, representing approximately 1.9 million pops. Of the Company's 9.5 million aggregate pops, approximately 
64% are attributable to the Company's MSA interests, with the balance attributable to its RSA interests. All of the cellular systems operated by 
the Company are operated under wireline licenses, except for three MSAs and five RSAs which are operated under non-wireline licenses. 
According to data derived from published sources, the Company is the ninth largest cellular telephone company in the United States based on 
the Company's 9.5 million pops. For more information, see "Wireless Operations."  

The Company also provides long distance, security monitoring, cable television and interactive services in certain local and regional markets, 
as well as certain printing and related services. For more information, see "Other Operations."  

Recent acquisitions and dispositions. In November 1999, the Company acquired the assets of DigiSys, Inc., an Internet service provider in 
Kalispell, Montana. DigiSys provides Internet services to more than 8,600 customers in Montana and operates MontanaWeb, one of the largest 
online business directories in the state.  

In October 1999, the Company acquired the non-wireline cellular license to serve Mississippi RSA #5, which covers 160,000 pops. Mississippi 
RSA #5 encompasses the Vicksburg and Greenville markets as well as portions of Interstate Highway 20 between Jackson, Mississippi and 
Monroe, Louisiana.  

On December 1, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of certain of Ameritech's telephone operations and related telephone directories in 19 
telephone exchanges covering 21 communities in northern and central Wisconsin for approximately $221 million cash. The operations acquired 
by the Company include the telephone property and equipment that serves nearly 69,000 customers, or approximately 86,000 access lines, as 
well as nine related telephone directories.  

On December 1, 1997, the Company acquired Pacific Telecom, Inc. ("PTI") in exchange for $1.503 billion cash. As a result of the PTI 
acquisition, the Company acquired (i) over 660,000 telephone access lines in four midwestern states, seven western states and Alaska, (ii) over 
88,000 cellular customers in ten markets located in two midwestern states and Alaska and (iii) various wireless, cable television and other 
communications assets. In May 1998, the Company sold PTI's undersea cable operations for approximately $61.8 million cash. In May 1999, 
the Company sold substantially all of its Alaska operations that it had acquired from PTI for approximately $300 million after-tax. In February 
2000, the Company sold its interest in Alaska RSA #1 which completed the Company's divestiture of its Alaska operations.  

During late 1997 and early 1998, the Company acquired two security monitoring businesses that provide services to approximately 6,000 
customers in north central Louisiana, southern Arkansas and northwestern Mississippi.  

In December 1997 the Company acquired an additional 76% interest in Wisconsin RSA #8, which is adjacent to the Company's existing 
cellular operations in southwestern Wisconsin.  

During 1997 the Company exchanged its 89% interest in its competitive access subsidiary for approximately 4.3 million shares of publicly 
traded common stock. Approximately 3.8 million shares of such stock were sold in November 1997 for $203 million and the remaining shares 
were converted into approximately 1.0 million shares of MCIWorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom") in early 1998. In the second quarter of 1998, the 
Company sold 750,000 shares of WorldCom common stock for $35.6 million. In January 1999, the Company sold its remaining shares of 
WorldCom stock for $20.1 million.  

In January 1997 the Company acquired Pecoco, Inc., a provider of local exchange telephone service in four counties in Wisconsin. As a result 
of the acquisition, the Company acquired (i) more than 7,600 telephone access lines,  
(ii) a minority interest in two cellular partnerships serving Madison and Milwaukee, Wisconsin, representing approximately 35,000 pops and 
(iii) certain cable television assets.  



In June 1999 the Company sold all of the operations of its Brownsville and McAllen, Texas, cellular systems to Western Wireless Corporation 
for approximately $96 million cash. The Company received a proportionate share of the sale proceeds of approximately $45 million after-tax.  

The Company continually evaluates the possibility of acquiring additional telecommunications assets in exchange for cash, securities or both, 
and at any given time may be engaged in discussions or negotiations regarding additional acquisitions. The Company generally does not 
announce its acquisitions until it has entered into a preliminary or definitive agreement. Over the past few years, the number and size of 
communications properties on the market has increased substantially. Although the Company's primary focus will continue to be on acquiring 
telephone and wireless interests that are proximate to its properties or that serve a customer base large enough for the Company to operate 
efficiently, other communications interests may also be acquired and these acquisitions could have a material impact upon the Company.  

Pending acquisitions. In June 1999, the Company signed a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase from affiliates of GTE Corporation 
("GTE") telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 225,000 at December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Arkansas 
for approximately $845.8 million in cash. In July 1999, the Company acquired a 61.5% (56.9% fully diluted) interest in a newly-organized 
joint venture company which has entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement with affiliates of GTE to purchase telephone access lines 
(which numbered approximately 121,000 at December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Missouri for approximately $290 million 
in cash. At closing, the Company has agreed to make approximately a $55 million preferred equity investment in the new entity and it is 
anticipated that the Company will loan the new entity approximately $220 million.  

In August 1999, the Company acquired an 89% interest in a newly-organized joint venture company which has entered into a definitive asset 
purchase agreement to purchase telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 61,700 as of December 31, 1999) and related local 
exchange assets in Wisconsin from a GTE affiliate for approximately $170 million cash. At closing the Company has agreed to make an equity 
investment in the newly organized company of approximately $37.8 million and it is anticipated that the Company will loan the new entity 
approximately $130 million. In October 1999, the Company also entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase additional 
telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 68,200 as of December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Wisconsin from a 
GTE affiliate for approximately $195 million cash.  

Other. As of December 31, 1999, the Company had approximately 5,700 employees, approximately 760 of whom were members of seven 
different bargaining units represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Communications Workers of America, or the 
NTS Employee Committee. Relations with employees continue to be generally good.  

CenturyTel was incorporated under Louisiana law in 1968 to serve as a holding company for several telephone companies acquired over the 
previous 15 to 20 years. CenturyTel's principal executive offices are located at 100 Century Park Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 71203 and its 
telephone number is (318) 388-9000.  

TELEPHONE OPERATIONS  

According to published sources, the Company is the seventh largest local exchange telephone company in the United States, based on the more 
than 1.27 million access lines it served at December 31, 1999. All of the Company's access lines are digitally switched. Through its operating 
telephone subsidiaries, the Company provides services to predominately rural, suburban and small urban markets in 20 states. The table below 
sets forth certain information with respect to the Company's access lines as of December 31, 1999 and 1998.  

                    December 31, 1999                 December 31, 1998 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------  
                Number of       Percent of       Nu mber of        Percent of 
   State        access lines   access lines      ac cess lines    access lines  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------  
 
Wisconsin           358,768          28%              340,895          25% 
Washington          183,759          14               175,508          13 
Alaska                    -           -               131,858          10 
Michigan            112,468           9               108,769           8 
Louisiana           100,967           8                97,676           7 
Colorado             91,446           7                86,249           7 
Ohio                 83,287           7                80,400           6 
Oregon               78,210           6                75,392           6 
Montana              63,867           5                60,657           5 
Texas                48,144           4                44,822           3 
Arkansas             45,675           4                43,778           3 
Minnesota            30,583           2                29,708           2 
Tennessee            26,917           2                25,609           2 
Mississippi          21,844           2                19,648           2 
Idaho                 6,040           1                 5,881           1 
New Mexico            6,354           1                 5,770           - 
Indiana               5,266           0                 5,136           - 
Wyoming               4,841           0                 4,663           - 
Iowa                  1,997           0                 1,938           - 
Arizona               1,936           0                 1,780           - 
Nevada                  498           0                   430           - 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------- 
                  1,272,867         100%            1,346,567         100% 
=================================================== ======================= 



 

As indicated in the following table, the Company has experienced growth in its telephone operations over the past several years, a substantial 
portion of which was attributable to the December 1997 acquisition of PTI and other telephone properties and to the expansion of services. A 
portion of the Company's access line growth was offset by the May 1999 sale of the Company's Alaska telephone operations.  

 

Future growth in telephone operations is expected to be derived from (i) acquiring additional telephone properties from GTE and others, (ii) 
providing service to new customers, (iii) increasing network usage and (iv) providing additional services made possible by advances in 
technology and changes in regulation. For information on developing competitive trends, see "-Regulation and Competition."  

Services  

The Company's local exchange telephone subsidiaries derive revenue from providing (i) local telephone services, (ii) network access services 
and (iii) other related services. The following table reflects the percentage of telephone operating revenues derived from these respective 
services:  

 

Local service. Local service revenues are derived from the provision of local exchange telephone services in the Company's service areas. 
Internal access line growth during 1999, 1998 and 1997 was 4.8%, 4.7% and 4.4%, respectively. The Company believes that access line growth 
in the future should benefit from population growth in its service areas, acquisitions and increases in the number of households maintaining 
more than one access line. The Company believes its Internet access services (discussed further below) have led to an increase in orders for 
additional lines.  

The installation of digital switches and related software has been an important component of the Company's growth strategy because it allows 
the Company to offer enhanced services (such as call forwarding, conference calling, caller identification, selective call ringing and call 
waiting) and to thereby increase utilization of existing access lines. In 1999 the Company continued to expand its list of premium services 
(such as voice mail and Internet access) offered in certain service areas and aggressively marketed these services.  

Network access. Network access revenues primarily relate to services provided by the Company to long distance carriers and other customers 
in connection with the use of the Company's facilities to originate and terminate interstate and intrastate long distance telephone calls. Access 
charges to long distance carriers and other customers are based on tariffed access rates filed with the Federal Communications Commission 
("FCC") for interstate services and with the respective state regulatory agency for intrastate services. Certain of the Company's interstate 
network access revenues are based on access charges prescribed by the FCC; the remainder of such revenues are derived under revenue sharing 
arrangements with other local exchange carriers ("LECs") administered by the National Exchange Carrier Association ("NECA").  

Certain of the Company's intrastate network access revenues are derived through access charges billed by the Company to intrastate long 
distance carriers and other LEC customers. Such intrastate network access charges are based on access tariffs, which are subject to state 
regulatory commission approval. Additionally, certain of the Company's intrastate network access revenues, along with intrastate long distance 
revenues, are derived through revenue sharing arrangements with other LECs.  

The Company is installing fiber optic cable in certain of its high traffic routes and provides alternative routing of telephone service over fiber 
optic cable networks in several strategic operating areas. At December 31, 1999, the Company's telephone subsidiaries had over 7,310 miles of 
fiber optic cable in use.  

Other. Other revenues include revenues related to (i) leasing, selling, installing, maintaining and repairing customer premise 
telecommunications equipment and wiring, (ii) providing billing and collection services for long distance companies, (iii) participating in the 

                                    Year ended or a s of December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                             1999        1998        1997       1996       1995 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                           (Dollars  in thousands) 
 
Access lines             1,272,867   1,346,567   1, 203,650    503,562    480,757  
  % Residential                 75%         74          74         77         78  
  % Business                    25%         26          26         23         22  
Operating revenues     $ 1,142,593   1,091,610     530,597    451,538    419,242  
Capital expenditures   $   233,512     233,190     115,854    110,147    136,006  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  

                           1999             1998             1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------- 
 
Local service              30.9%             30.4             27.8  
Network access             57.2              57.7             60.2  
Other                      11.9              11.9             12.0  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------  
                          100.0%            100.0            100.0  
=================================================== ===============  



publication of local directories and (iv) providing Internet access. The Company began offering traditional Internet access services to its 
telephone customers in 1995. During 1999, the Company began offering in select markets digital subscriber line Internet access services, a 
high-speed premium-priced data service. At December 31, 1999 the Company provided Internet access services to approximately 59,700 
customers in 355 markets in 13 states. These 355 markets represent 70% of the access lines served by the Company's LECs.  

Certain large communications companies for which the Company currently provides billing and collection services continue to indicate their 
desire to reduce their billing and collection expenses, which has resulted and may continue to result in future reductions of the Company's 
billing and collection revenues.  

For further information on the regulation of the Company's revenues, see "-Regulation and Competition."  

Federal Financing Programs  

Certain of the Company's telephone subsidiaries receive long-term financing from the Rural Utilities Service ("RUS") and the Rural Telephone 
Bank ("RTB"). The RUS has made long-term loans to telephone companies since 1949 for the purpose of improving telephone service in rural 
areas. The RUS continues to make new loans at interest rates that range from 5% to 7% based on borrower qualifications and the cost of funds 
to the United States government. The RTB, established in 1971, makes long-term loans at interest rates based on its average cost of funds as 
determined by statutory formula (such rates ranged from 5.89% to 5.98% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999), and in some cases 
makes loans concurrently with RUS loans. Most of the Company's telephone plant is pledged or mortgaged to secure obligations of the 
Company's telephone subsidiaries to the RUS and RTB. The Company's telephone subsidiaries which have borrowed from government 
agencies generally may not loan or advance any funds to CenturyTel, but may pay dividends if certain financial covenants are met.  

For additional information regarding the Company's financing, see the Company's consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 herein.  

Regulation and Competition  

Traditionally, LECs have operated as regulated monopolies. Consequently, the majority of the Company's telephone operations have 
traditionally been regulated extensively by various state regulatory agencies (generally called public service commissions or public utility 
commissions) and by the FCC. As discussed in greater detail below, passage of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "1996 Act"), coupled 
with state legislative and regulatory initiatives and technological changes, has fundamentally altered the telephone industry by reducing the 
regulation of LECs and permitting competition in each segment of the telephone industry. Although CenturyTel anticipates that these trends 
towards reduced regulation and increased competition will continue, it is difficult to determine the form or degree of future regulation and 
competition in the Company's service areas.  

State regulation. The local service rates and intrastate access charges of substantially all of the Company's telephone subsidiaries are regulated 
by state regulatory commissions. Most of such commissions have traditionally regulated pricing through "rate of return" regulation that focuses 
on authorized levels of earnings by LECs. Most of these commissions also (i) regulate the purchase and sale of LECs, (ii) prescribe 
depreciation rates and certain accounting procedures and (iii) regulate various other matters, including certain service standards and operating 
procedures.  

In recent years, state legislatures and regulatory commissions in most of the states in which the Company has substantial operations have either 
begun to reduce the regulation of LECs or have announced their intention to do so, and it is expected that this trend will continue. Wisconsin, 
Louisiana and several other of these states have passed legislation which permit LECs to opt out of rate of return regulation in exchange for 
agreeing to alternative forms of regulation which typically permit the LEC greater freedom to establish local service rates in exchange for 
agreeing not to charge rates in excess of specified caps. As discussed further below most of the Company's remaining Wisconsin telephone 
subsidiaries have agreed to be governed by alternative regulation plans, and the Company continues to explore its options for similar treatment 
in other states. The Company believes that reduced regulatory oversight of certain of the Company's telephone operations may allow the 
Company to offer new and competitive services faster than under the traditional regulatory process. Coincident with these efforts, legislative, 
regulatory and technological changes have introduced competition into the local exchange industry. See "-Developments Affecting 
Competition."  

Substantially all of the state regulatory commissions have statutory authority, the specific limits of which vary, to initiate and conduct earnings 
reviews of the LECs that they regulate under "rate of return" regulation. Notwithstanding the movement towards deregulation, most of the 
Company's LECs continue to be regulated under rate of return regulation, and remain subject to earnings reviews.  

In 1997 the Louisiana Public Service Commission ("LPSC") adopted a Consumer Price Protection Plan (the "Louisiana Plan"), effective July 
1997, which impacts all of the Company's LECs operating in Louisiana. The new form of regulation focuses on price and quality of service. 
Under the Louisiana Plan, the Company's Louisiana LECs' local rates were frozen for a period of three years and access rates were frozen for a 
period of two years. Although the Louisiana Plan has no specified term, the LPSC is required to review it by mid-2000. The Company's 
Louisiana LECs have the option to propose a new plan at any time if the LPSC determines that (i) effective competition exists or (ii) 
unforeseen events threaten the subsidiary's ability to provide adequate service or impair its financial health.  

The Company's telephone operations in Wisconsin that were acquired in the December 1997 acquisition of PTI have been regulated under an 
alternative regulation plan (the "Wisconsin Plan") since June 1996. In late 1999 and early 2000, substantially all of the Company's remaining 



Wisconsin telephone subsidiaries agreed to be subject to alternative regulation plans. Each of these plans have a five-year term and permit the 
Company to freely adjust local rates within specified parameters if certain quality-of-service and infrastructure-development commitments are 
met. These plans also include initiatives designed to promote competition.  

The Michigan Public Service Commission regulates the Company's Michigan telephone subsidiaries pursuant to the parameters established by 
the Michigan Telecommunications Act of 1995 ("MTA"). The MTA restructured regulation to focus on price and quality of service as opposed 
to traditional rate of return regulation. The MTA relies more on existing federal and state law regarding antitrust consumer protection and fair 
trade to provide safeguards for competition and consumers.  

FCC regulation. The FCC regulates the interstate services provided by the Company's telephone subsidiaries primarily by regulating the 
interstate access charges that are billed to long distance companies and other LECs by the Company for use of its local network in connection 
with the origination and termination of interstate telephone calls. Additionally, the FCC has prescribed certain rules and regulations for 
telephone companies, including regulations regarding the use of radio frequencies; a uniform system of accounts; and rules regarding the 
separation of costs between jurisdictions and, ultimately, between interstate services.  

Effective January 1, 1991, the FCC adopted price-cap regulation relating to interstate access rates for the Regional Bell Operating Companies 
("RBOCs") and GTE Corporation. All other LECs may elect to be subject to price-cap regulation. Under price-cap regulation, limits imposed 
on a company's interstate rates are adjusted periodically to reflect inflation, productivity improvement and changes in certain non-controllable 
costs. In May 1993 the FCC adopted an optional incentive regulatory plan for LECs not subject to price-cap regulation. A LEC electing the 
optional incentive regulatory plan would, among other things, file tariffs based primarily on historical costs and not be allowed to participate in 
the relevant NECA pooling arrangements. The Company has not elected price-cap regulation or the optional incentive regulatory plan, but will 
continue to evaluate its options on a periodic basis. Either election, if made by the Company, would have to be applicable to all of the 
Company's telephone subsidiaries. The authorized interstate access rate of return for the Company's telephone subsidiaries is currently 11.25%, 
which is the authorized rate established by the FCC for LECs not governed by price-cap regulation or the optional incentive regulatory plan.  

In September 1998, the FCC initiated a proceeding to represcribe the authorized rate of return for interstate access services provided by LECs. 
The FCC periodically represcribes this rate of return to ensure that the service rates filed by incumbent LECs subject to rate of return regulation 
continue to be just and reasonable. It is uncertain whether or by how much the FCC may lower the authorized rate of return. For rate of return 
companies, the FCC is considering how other unresolved issues such as jurisdictional separations, access charge reform and universal service 
must be addressed before represcribing rate of return.  

In an access charge reform order adopted in May 1997, the FCC changed its system of interstate access charges to make them compatible with 
the deregulatory framework established by the 1996 Act. Such changes are primarily applicable to price-cap companies. The Company's 
telephone subsidiaries determine interstate revenues under rate of return regulation and are, therefore, only minimally impacted by the access 
charge reform order. In July 1998, the FCC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to amend the access charge rules for rate of return 
companies in a manner similar to that adopted for price cap companies, subject to reviewing whether differences exist between price cap 
companies and rate of return companies that would require different rules in order to achieve the goal of fostering an efficient, competitive 
marketplace. The FCC has not yet issued a final ruling on this matter.  

In 1998 the FCC created a federal-state joint board to review jurisdictional separations procedures through which the costs of regulated 
telecommunications services are allocated to the interstate and intrastate jurisdictions. The board has not yet issued its findings.  

High-cost support funds, revenue sharing arrangements and related matters. A significant number of the Company's telephone subsidiaries 
recover a portion of their costs under federal and state cost recovery mechanisms that traditionally have allowed LECs serving small 
communities and rural areas to provide communications services reasonably comparable to those available in urban areas and at reasonably 
comparable prices.  

The 1996 Act authorized the establishment of new federal and state universal service funds to provide continued support to eligible 
telecommunications carriers. In May 1997 the FCC adopted an order on universal service, as mandated by the 1996 Act. In the order, the FCC 
ruled that rural telephone companies which are designated eligible telecommunications carriers will continue to receive universal service 
funding. Each of the Company's LECs has been so designated by its respective state regulatory agency. As a result, the Company's LECs will 
continue to receive payments under the federal support mechanisms currently in effect until the FCC adopts funding support mechanisms based 
on forward-looking economic costs, which it is required to do, but no earlier than January 2001. Although the Company anticipates that it may 
experience a reduction in its federal support revenues at some point in the future, management believes it is premature to assess or estimate the 
ultimate impact thereof. There can be no assurance, however, that such impact will not be material. During 1999 and 1998 the Company's 
telephone subsidiaries received $127.5 million (of which $5.2 million related to the Company's Alaska operations) and $127.6 million (of 
which $13.4 million related to the Alaska based operations), respectively, from the federal Universal Service Fund, representing 7.6% and 
8.1%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated revenues for 1999 and 1998. In addition, the Company's telephone subsidiaries received 
$19.5 million and $1.5 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively, from intrastate support funds. For additional information, see Item 7 of this 
report.  

As part of its universal service order, the FCC also established new programs to provide discounted telecommunications services annually to 
schools, libraries and rural health care providers. All communications carriers providing interstate telecommunications services, including the 
Company's LECs and its cellular and long distance operations, are required to contribute to these programs. The Company's LECs recover their 
funding contributions in their rates for interstate services. The Company's contribution by its cellular and long distance operations, which is 



passed on to its customers, was approximately $3.9 million in 1999 and $3.1 million in 1998.  

Some of the Company's telephone subsidiaries operate in states where traditional cost recovery mechanisms, including rate structures, are 
under evaluation or have been modified. See "-State Regulation." There can be no assurance that these states will continue to provide for cost 
recovery at current levels.  

Substantially all of the Company's LECs concur with the common line tariffs and certain of the Company's LECs concur with the traffic 
sensitive tariffs filed by the NECA; such LECs participate in the access revenue sharing arrangements administered by the NECA for interstate 
services. All of the intrastate network access revenues of the Company's LECs are based on access charges, cost separation studies or special 
settlement arrangements. See "-Services."  

Certain long distance carriers continue to request that certain of the Company's LECs reduce intrastate access tariffed rates. There is no 
assurance that these requests will not result in decreased access revenues.  

Developments affecting competition. The communications industry continues to undergo fundamental changes which are likely to significantly 
impact the future operations and financial performance of all communications companies. Primarily as a result of legislative and regulatory 
initiatives and technological changes, competition has been introduced and encouraged in each sector of the telephone industry, including, most 
recently, the local exchange sector. As a result, the number of companies offering competitive services has increased substantially.  

As indicated above, in February 1996 Congress enacted the 1996 Act, which obligates LECs to permit competitors to interconnect their 
facilities to the LEC's network and to take various other steps that are designed to promote competition. The 1996 Act imposes several duties 
on a LEC if it receives a specific request from another entity which seeks to connect with or provide services using the LEC's network. In 
addition, each incumbent LEC is obligated to (i) negotiate interconnection agreements in good faith, (ii) provide "unbundled" access to all 
aspects of the LEC's network, (iii) offer resale of its telecommunications services at wholesale rates and (iv) permit competitors to collocate its 
physical plant on the LEC's property, or provide virtual collocation if physical collocation is not practicable. Although the 1996 Act provides 
certain exemptions for rural LECs such as those operated by the Company, the FCC's August 1996 order implementing most of the 1996 Act's 
interconnection provisions placed the burden of proving the continuing availability of these exemptions on rural LECs. States are permitted to 
adopt laws or regulations that provide for greater competition than is mandated under the 1996 Act. Although substantial portions of the FCC's 
August 1996 interconnection order have survived judicial challenge, the FCC has neither completed its interconnection rulemaking nor issued 
rules on universal service or access reform. Management believes that competition in its telephone service areas has and will continue to 
increase as a result of the 1996 Act, although the form and degree of competition cannot be ascertained until such time as the FCC (and, in 
certain instances, state regulatory commissions) adopts final and nonappealable implementing regulations.  

Substantially all of the 20 states in which the Company provides telephone services have taken legislative or regulatory steps to further 
introduce competition into the LEC business. Largely as a result of these steps and the 1996 Act, several competitive access providers 
originally organized to provide redundancy or access services have begun, during the past several years, to provide competitive local exchange 
services, principally in high population areas. Moreover, several well-capitalized long distance, cable television, wireless and electric utility 
companies, along with several start-up companies, have also begun to provide competitive local exchange services or announced their intention 
to do so, and this trend is expected to continue. Currently the Company is subject to a limited number of agreements permitting competitors in 
Wisconsin to purchase from the Company unbundled network elements or wholesale services, and the Company is aware of only a few other 
companies that have requested authorization to provide local exchange service in the Company's service areas. Over time, however, the 
Company anticipates that several more companies will request authorization to provide competitive services, especially in its operating areas 
located near larger urban areas.  

In addition to receiving services directly from companies competing with incumbent LECs, long distance companies and other users of toll 
service are expected to increasingly seek other means to bypass LECs' switching services and local distribution facilities. Certain interexchange 
carriers provide services which allow users to divert their traffic from LECs' usage-sensitive services to their flat-rate services. In addition, 
users or long distance companies may construct, modify or lease facilities to transmit traffic directly from a user to a long distance company. 
Cable television companies, in particular, may be able to modify their networks to partially or completely bypass the Company's local network. 
Moreover, users may choose to use wireless services to bypass LECs' switching services. Although certain of the Company's telephone 
subsidiaries have experienced a loss of traffic to such bypass, the impact has thus far not been significant.  

Historically, cellular telephone services have complemented traditional LEC services. However, existing and emerging wireless technologies 
increasingly compete with LEC services in Europe and other parts of the world. The Company anticipates that similar competition may arise in 
the United States, particularly if wireless service rates continue to drop. Technological and regulatory developments in cellular telephone, 
personal communications services, digital microwave, coaxial cable, fiber optics, local multipoint distribution services and other wired and 
wireless technologies are expected to further permit the development of alternatives to traditional landline services. For further information on 
certain of these developments, see "Wireless Operations - Regulation and Competition."  

To the extent that the telephone industry increasingly experiences competition, the size and resources of each respective competitor may 
increasingly influence its prospects. Many companies currently providing or planning to provide competitive communication services have 
substantially greater financial and marketing resources than the Company, and several are not subject to the same regulatory constraints as the 
Company.  

The Company anticipates that the traditional operations of LECs will continue to be impacted by continued technological developments as well 



as legislative and regulatory initiatives affecting the ability of LECs to provide new services and the capability of long distance companies, 
competitive local exchange providers, wireless companies, cable television companies and others to provide competitive LEC services. 
Competition relating to services traditionally provided solely by LECs has thus far affected large urban areas to a greater extent than rural, 
suburban and small urban areas such as those in which the Company operates. The Company intends to actively monitor these developments, 
to observe the effect of emerging competitive trends in initial competitive markets and to continue to evaluate new business opportunities that 
may arise out of future technological, legislative and regulatory developments.  

The Company anticipates that regulatory changes and competitive pressures may result in future revenue reductions in its telephone operations. 
However, the Company anticipates that such reductions may be minimized by increases in revenues attributable to the continued demand for 
enhanced services and new product offerings. While the Company expects its telephone revenues to continue to grow, its internal telephone 
revenue growth rate may slow during upcoming periods.  

WIRELESS OPERATIONS  

At December 31, 1999, the Company's cellular holdings represented approximately 9.5 million pops, of which 64% were applicable to MSAs 
and 36% were RSA pops. According to data derived from published sources, the Company is the ninth largest cellular telephone company in 
the United States based on the Company's 9.5 million pops.  

Cellular Industry  

The cellular telephone industry has been in existence for over 15 years in the United States. The industry has grown significantly during this 
period and cellular service is now available in substantially all areas of the United States. According to the Cellular Telecommunications 
Industry Association, at September 1999 there were estimated to be over 57.6 million cellular customers across the United States.  

Until recently, substantially all radio transmissions of cellular systems were conducted on an analog basis. Technological developments 
involving the application of digital radio technology offer certain advantages over analog technologies, including expanding the capacity of 
mobile communications systems, improving voice clarity, permitting the introduction of new services, and making such systems more secure. 
Providers of certain services competitive with cellular have incorporated digital technology into their operations. In recent years most major 
cellular carriers have installed digital cellular voice transmission facilities in certain of their systems, principally in larger markets. Digital 
service is now available in 100% of the Company's MSA markets and approximately a third of its RSA markets. Approximately 5% of the 
Company's cellular customers currently subscribe to digital services. See "-Regulation and Competition-Developments Affecting Wireless 
Competition."  

Construction and Maintenance  

The construction and maintenance of cellular systems is capital intensive. Although all of the Company's MSA and RSA systems have been 
operational for several years, the Company has continued to add cell sites to increase coverage, provide additional capacity, and improve the 
quality of these systems. In 1999 the Company completed construction of 109 cell sites in markets operated by the Company. At December 31, 
1999, the Company operated 711 cell sites in its majority-owned markets.  

Over the past several years the Company has upgraded certain portions of its wireless systems to be capable of providing digital service under 
the TDMA standard. The Company intends to continue installing digital voice transmission facilities in other markets in 2000. See "-
Regulation and Competition-Developments Affecting Wireless Competition." Capital expenditures related to majority-owned and operated 
wireless systems totaled approximately $58.8 million in 1999. Such capital expenditures for 2000 are anticipated to be approximately $100 
million.  

Strategy  

The Company's business development strategy for its wireless operations is to secure operating control of service areas that are geographically 
clustered. Clustered systems aid the Company's marketing efforts and provide various operating and service advantages. Approximately 44% of 
the Company's customers are in a single, contiguous cluster of eight MSAs and nine RSAs in Michigan; another 25% are in a cluster of five 
MSAs and seven RSAs in northern and central Louisiana, southern Arkansas and eastern Texas. See "-The Company's Cellular Interests."  

The Company has also traditionally targeted revenues from roaming service. Roaming service revenues are derived from calls made in one 
service area by subscribers from other service areas. In exchange for providing roaming service to customers of other cellular carriers, the 
Company has traditionally charged premium rates to most of these other carriers, who then frequently pass on some or all of these premium 
rates to their own customers. The Company's Michigan cellular properties include a significant portion of the interstate highway corridor 
between Chicago and Detroit. Its Louisiana properties include an east-west interstate highway and a north-south interstate highway which 
intersect in its Louisiana cellular service area. Its Mississippi properties include two east-west interstate highways and two north-south 
interstate highways. As indicated elsewhere in Items 1 and 7 of this Report, the Company has increasingly received pressure from other cellular 
operators to reduce its roaming rates. See "-Services, Customers and System Usage."  

Marketing  



The Company markets its wireless services through several distribution channels, including its direct sales force, retail outlets owned by the 
Company and independent agents. All sales employees and certain independent agents solicit customers exclusively for the Company. 
Company sales employees are compensated by salary and commission and independent sales agents are paid commissions. The Company 
advertises its services through various means, including direct mail, billboard, magazine, radio, television and newspaper advertisements.  

The sales and marketing costs of obtaining new subscribers include advertising and a direct expense applicable to most new subscribers, either 
in the form of a commission payment to an agent or an incentive payment to a direct sales employee. In addition, the Company discounts the 
cost of cellular telephone equipment, and periodically runs promotions which waive certain fees or provide some amount of free service to new 
subscribers. The average cost of acquiring each new customer ($258 in 1999) remains one of the larger expenses in conducting the Company's 
wireless operations. In recent years, the Company has sought to lower this average cost by focusing more on its direct distribution channels. 
The Company opened its first retail outlet in 1994, and currently operates 128 such outlets. During 1999, approximately 72% of new cellular 
customers were added through direct distribution channels, up from 37% during 1996.  

As indicated further below, most of the Company's cellular markets are located in rural, suburban or small urban areas, and most of its 
customers typically require only local or regional services. The Company lacks the facilities and national brand name necessary to compete 
effectively for business customers requiring nationwide services, and the Company does not actively target these customers in its marketing 
campaigns.  

Services, Customers and System Usage  

There are a number of different types of cellular telephones, all of which are currently compatible with cellular systems nationwide. The 
Company sells a full range of vehicle-mounted, transportable, and hand-held portable cellular telephones.  

The Company charges its subscribers for access to its systems, for minutes of use and for enhanced services, such as voice mail. A subscriber 
may purchase certain of these services separately or may purchase rate plans which bundle these services in different ways and are designed to 
fit different customer requirements. While the Company historically has typically charged its customers separately for custom-calling features, 
air time in excess of the packaged amount, and toll calls, it currently offers plans which include features such as unlimited toll calls and 
unlimited weekend calling in certain calling areas. Custom-calling features provided by the Company include call-forwarding, call-waiting, 
three-way calling and no-answer transfer. The Company offers voice message service in many of its markets. In the Company's markets where 
digital service is operational, customers can subscribe to caller ID and other digital enhancements.  

Cellular customers come from a wide range of occupations and typically include a large proportion of individuals who work outside of their 
office. In recent years, the individual consumer market has generated a majority of new customer additions. A majority of the Company's net 
unit additions for 1999 were prepaid customers, who typically use cellular service less than contract customers. The Company's average 
monthly cellular service revenue per customer declined to $53 in 1999 from $57 in 1998 and $61 in 1997. Such average revenue per customer 
may further decline (i) as market penetration increases and additional lower usage customers are activated, (ii) as the Company continues to 
receive pressure from other cellular operators to reduce roaming rates and (iii) as competitive pressures from current and future wireless 
communications providers intensify. See "-Regulation and Competition."  

The Company has entered into "roaming agreements" nationwide with operators of other cellular systems that permit each company's 
respective customers to place or receive calls outside of their home market area. The charge to a non-Company customer for this service has 
traditionally been at premium rates, and is billed by the Company to the customer's service provider, which then bills the customer. In most 
instances, based on competitive factors and financial considerations, the Company charges an amount to its customers that is equal to or lower 
than the amount actually charged by the cellular carrier providing the roaming service. In the past couple of years, several large nationwide 
cellular providers have introduced rate plans that offer roaming coverage (provided through other carriers) at the same rate as service within the 
customer's home market area. To defray the cost of these plans, these providers have exerted substantial pressure on other cellular providers, 
including the Company, to reduce their roaming fees. The Company anticipates that competitive factors and industry consolidation will 
continue to place further pressure on charging premium roaming rates. For additional information on roaming revenue, see "-Strategy."  

Roamer fraud, a cellular industry problem, occurs when cellular telephone equipment is programmed to conceal the true identity and location 
of the user. The Company and the industry have implemented extensive fraud control processes in an attempt to minimize roamer fraud.  

Churn rate (the average percentage of cellular customers that terminate service each month) is an industry-wide concern. A significant portion 
of the churn in the Company's markets is due to the Company disconnecting service to cellular customers for nonpayment of their bills. In 
addition, the Company faces substantial competition from the other wireless providers, including PCS providers. The Company's average 
monthly churn rate in its majority-owned and operated markets was 1.90% in 1999 and 2.23% in 1998. The Company is attempting to lower its 
churn rate by increasing its proactive customer service efforts, offering prepaid service and implementing additional customer retention 
programs.  

During recent years, the Company's cellular subsidiaries experienced strong subscriber growth in the fourth quarter, primarily due to holiday 
season sales.  

The following table summarizes, among other things, certain information about the Company's customers and market penetration:  



 

Notes:  

1. Represents the number of systems in which the Company owned at least a 50% interest.The revenues and expenses of these markets, all of 
which are oper- ated by the Company, are included in the Company's consolidated operating revenues and operating expenses.  
2. Based on independent third-party population estimates for each respective year.  
3. Represents the approximate number of revenue-generating cellular telephones served by the cellular systems referred to in note 1.  
4. Computed by dividing the number of customers at the end of the period by the total population of systems referred to in note 1.  
5. Represents the average percentage of customers that are disconnected on a monthly basis.  
6. Represents the total number of systems that the Company operated, including systems in which it does not own a majority interest.  
7. Represents the approximate number of revenue-generating cellular telephones served by the cellular systems referred to in note 6.  
8 Computed by dividing the number of customers at the end of the period by the total population of systems referred to in note 6.  

The Company's Cellular Interests  

The Company obtained the right to provide cellular service through (i) the FCC's licensing process described below, under which it received 
interests in wireline licenses, and (ii) its acquisition program, under which it has acquired interests in both wireline and non-wireline licenses. 
The table below sets forth certain information with respect to the interests in cellular systems that the Company owned as of December 31, 
1999:  

                                                                   Year ended or at December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------  
                                                                 1999          1998           1997  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------  
 
Majority-owned and operated MSA and RSA systems (No te 1): 
   Cellular systems operated                                       42            44             44  
   Cell sites                                                     711           644            558  
   Population of systems operated (Note 2)                  8,267,140     9,026,150      9,008,219  
   Customers (Note 3): 
      At beginning of period                                  624,290       569,983        368,233  
      Gross units added internally                            240,084       214,767        193,623  
      Net effect of property acquisitions/dispositi ons        (10,563)            -        123,600  
      Disconnects                                             146,325       160,460        115,473  
      At end of period                                        707,486       624,290        569,983  
   Market penetration at end of period (Note 4)                   8.6%          6.9            6.3  
   Churn rate (Note 5)                                           1.90%         2.23           2.31  
 
Average monthly service revenue 
     per customer                                          $       53            57             61  
Construction expenditures (in thousands)                   $   58,760        57,326         39,107  
 
All operated MSA and RSA systems (Note 6): 
   Cellular systems operated                                       47            51             50  
   Cell sites                                                     819           758            656  
   Population of systems operated (Note 2)                  9,300,157    10,312,145     10,124,759  
   Customers at end of period (Note 7)                        774,708       689,352        632,446  
   Market penetration at end of period (Note 8)                   8.3%          6.7            6.2  
   Churn rate (Note 5)                                           1.90%         2.34           2.33  
 
 
For additional information, See "- the Company's Ce llular Interest." 

                                                        The       Other 
                                 1999                 Company's  cellular 
                              population  Ownership    pops at    operator 
                               (Note 1)   percentag e  12/31/99   (Note 2) 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 
Majority-owned and operated MSAs 
 
Pine Bluff, AR                   81,087    100.00%    81,087   SBC 
Texarkana, AR/TX                136,607     89.00    121,580   AT&T 
Alexandria, LA                  146,132    100.00    146,132   Centennial 
Monroe, LA                      147,187     87.00    128,053   AT&T 
Shreveport, LA                  378,708     87.00    329,476   AT&T 
Battle Creek, MI                196,172     97.00    190,287   Centennial 
Benton Harbor, MI               159,862     97.00    155,066   Centennial 
Grand Rapids, MI                775,514     97.00    752,249   AirTouch 
Jackson, MI                     156,597     97.00    151,899   Centennial 
Kalamazoo, MI                   305,639     97.00    296,470   Centennial 
Lansing-E. Lansing, MI          511,601     97.00    496,253   AirTouch 
Muskegon, MI                    192,189     97.00    186,423   AirTouch 
Saginaw-Bay City- 
  Midland, MI                   401,279     91.70    367,973   AirTouch 
Biloxi-Gulfport, MS (Note 4)    233,535     96.45    225,247   Cellular South 
Jackson, MS  (Note 4)           432,626     90.22    390,307   MCTA 



Pascagoula, MS   (Note 4)       132,013     89.22    117,785   Cellular South 
Appleton-Oshkosh- 
  Neenah, WI                    502,946     98.85    497,151   U.S. Cellular 
Eau Claire, WI                  144,180     55.50     80,020   American Cellular 
LaCrosse, WI                    102,756     95.00     97,618   U. S. Cellular 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                              5,136,630            4,811,076 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
Minority-owned MSAs   (Note 3) 
 
Little Rock, AR                 560,035     36.00%   201,613 
Lafayette, LA                   267,665     49.00    131,156 
Detroit, MI                   4,793,037      3.20    153,281 
Flint, MI                       508,681      3.20     16,268 
Rochester, MN                   117,605      2.93      3,446 
Austin, TX                    1,047,906     35.00    366,767 
Dallas-Ft. Worth, TX          4,791,968      0.50     23,960 
Sherman-Denison, TX             103,883      0.50        519 
Madison, WI                     731,747      9.78     71,558 
Milwaukee, WI                 1,982,586     17.96    356,132 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                             14,905,113            1,324,700 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
    Total MSAs               20,041,743            6,135,776 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
Operated RSAs 
 
Alaska 1  (Notes 4 and 5)        84,030    100.00%    84,030   Mactel 
Arkansas 2                       87,446     82.00     71,706   SBC 
Arkansas 3                      103,223     82.00     84,643   SBC 
Arkansas 11                      65,978     89.00     58,720   SBC 
Arkansas 12                     184,509     80.00    147,607   SBC 
Louisiana 1                     111,793     87.00     97,260   AT&T 
Louisiana 2                     115,094     87.00    100,132   AT&T 
Louisiana 3 B2                   95,481     87.00     83,068   Centennial 
Louisiana 4                      73,521    100.00     73,521   Centennial 
Michigan 1                      195,725    100.00    195,725   American Cellular 
Michigan 2                      113,600    100.00    113,600   RFB 
Michigan 3                      166,110     42.84     71,162   Unitel 
Michigan 4                      135,736    100.00    135,736   RFB 
Michigan 5                      161,964     42.84     69,386   Unitel 
Michigan 6                      142,327     98.00    139,480   Centennial 
Michigan 7                      246,257     56.07    138,078   Centennial 
Michigan 8                      102,585     97.00     99,507   Allegan Cellular 
Michigan 9                      300,375     43.38    130,303   Centennial 
Mississippi 2  (Note 4)         251,413    100.00    251,413   Bell South Mobility  
Mississippi 5  (Note 4)         159,581    100.00    159,581   Bell South Mobility  
Mississippi 6  (Note 4)         183,267    100.00    183,267   Cellular South 
Mississippi 7  (Note 4)         180,604    100.00    180,604   MCTA 
Texas 7 B6                       58,077     89.00     51,689   AT&T 
Wisconsin 1                     113,547     42.21     47,925   American Cellular 
Wisconsin 2                      85,261     99.00     84,408   American Cellular 
Wisconsin 6                     117,433     57.14     67,105   U.S. Cellular 
Wisconsin 7                     291,021     22.70     66,067   U.S. Cellular 
Wisconsin 8                     237,569     84.00    199,558   U.S. Cellular 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                              4,163,527            3,185,281 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
Non-operated RSAs   (Note 3) 
 
Michigan 10                     136,826     26.00     35,575 
Minnesota 7                     171,191      2.93      5,016 
Minnesota 8                      66,387      2.93      1,945 
Minnesota 9                     132,143      2.93      3,872 
Minnesota 10                    231,484      2.93      6,782 
Minnesota 11                    206,924      2.93      6,063 
Texas 16                        338,202      9.60     32,467 
Washington 5                     61,319      8.47      5,195 
Washington 8                    137,389      7.36     10,106 
Wisconsin 3                     141,986     42.86     60,851 
Wisconsin 4                     121,287     25.00     30,322 
Wisconsin 10                    129,462     22.50     29,129 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                              1,874,600              227,323 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
   Total RSAs                 6,038,127            3,412,604 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                             26,079,870            9,548,380 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------- 



 

Notes:  

1. Based on 1999 independent third-party population estimates.  
2. Information provided to the best of the Company's knowledge. There is also at least one PCS competitor in each of the operated MSAs and 
certain of the operated RSAs.  
3. Markets not operated by the Company.  
4. Represents a non-wireline interest.  
5. The Company sold its entire interest in this market in February 2000.  

Operations  

A substantial number of the cellular systems in MSAs operated by the Company are owned by limited partnerships in which the Company is a 
general partner ("MSA Partnerships"). Most of these partnerships are governed by partnership agreements with similar terms, including, among 
other things, customary provisions concerning capital contributions, sharing of profits and losses, and dissolution and termination of the 
partnership. Most of these partnership agreements vest complete operational control of the partnership with the general partner. The general 
partner typically has the power to manage, supervise and conduct the affairs of the partnership, make all decisions appropriate in connection 
with the business purposes of the partnership, and incur obligations and execute agreements on behalf of the partnership. The general partner 
also may make decisions regarding the time and amount of cash contributions and distributions, and the nature, timing and extent of 
construction, without the consent of the other partners. The Company owns more than 50% of all of the MSA Partnerships.  

A substantial number of the cellular systems in RSAs operated by the Company are also owned by limited or general partnerships in which the 
Company is either the general or managing partner (the "RSA Partnerships"). These partnerships are governed by partnership agreements with 
varying terms and provisions. In many of these partnerships, the noncontrolling partners have the right to vote on major issues such as the 
annual budget and system design. In a few of these partnerships, the Company's management position is for a limited term (similar to a 
management contract) and the other partners in the partnership have the right to change managers, with or without cause. The Company owns 
less than 50% of some of the RSA Partnerships.  

The partnership agreements for both the MSA Partnerships and RSA Partnerships generally contain provisions granting all partners a right of 
first refusal in the event a partner desires to transfer a partnership interest. This restriction on transfer can under certain circumstances make 
these partnership interests more difficult to sell to a third party.  

PCS Operations  

The Company holds licenses to provide personal communication services ("PCS") in 54 Basic Trading Areas in 12 states. The Company's 
ownership interests in these trading areas represents approximately 9.9 million pops. In late 1998, the Company commenced marketing PCS 
services in a limited number of its Michigan markets as a fixed wireless alternative to wireline local telephone services. At December 31, 1999, 
the Company had approximately 670 PCS customers located principally in three of its larger PCS Michigan markets.  

Revenue  

The following table reflects the major revenue categories for the Company's wireless operations as a percentage of wireless operating revenues 
in 1999, 1998 and 1997. Virtually all of these revenues were derived from cellular operations.  

 

For further information on these revenue categories, see "-Services, Customers and System Usage."  

Regulation and Competition  

As discussed below, the FCC and various state public utility commissions regulate, among other things, the licensing, construction, operation, 
interconnection arrangements, sale and acquisition of cellular telephone systems.  

Competition between providers of wireless communications service in each market is conducted principally on the basis of price, services and 
enhancements offered, the technical quality and coverage of the system, and the quality and responsiveness of customer service. As discussed 
below, competition has intensified in recent years in a substantial number of the Company's markets. Under applicable law, the Company is 
required to permit the reselling of its services. In certain larger markets and in certain market segments, competition from resellers may be 

                                      1999             1998             1997  
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------  
 
Access fees and toll revenues        72.2%             74.2             78.2  
Roaming                              25.2              23.6             20.0  
Equipment sales                       2.6               2.2              1.8  
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------  
                                    100.0%            100.0            100.0  
=================================================== =========================  



significant. There is also substantial competition for sales agents. Certain of the Company's competitors have substantially greater assets and 
resources than the Company.  

Cellular licensing process. The term "MSA" means a Metropolitan Statistical Area for which the FCC has granted a cellular operating license. 
The term "RSA" means a Rural Service Area for which the FCC has granted a cellular operating license. During the 1980's and early 1990's, 
the FCC awarded two 10-year licenses to provide cellular service in each MSA and RSA market. Initially, one license was reserved for 
companies offering local telephone service in the market (the wireline carrier) and one license was available for firms unaffiliated with the 
local telephone company (the non-wireline carrier). Since mid-1986, the FCC has permitted telephone companies or their affiliates to acquire 
control of non-wireline licenses in markets in which they do not hold interests in the wireline license. The FCC has issued a decision that grants 
a renewal expectancy during the license renewal period to incumbent licensees that substantially comply with the terms and conditions of their 
cellular authorizations and the FCC's regulations. The licenses for the MSA markets operated by the Company were initially granted between 
1984 and 1987, and licenses for operated RSAs were initially granted between 1989 and 1991. Thus far, the Company has received 10-year 
extensions of all of its licenses that have become subject to renewal since their original grant dates.  

The completion of an acquisition involving the transfer of control of a cellular system requires prior FCC approval and, in certain cases, receipt 
of other federal and state regulatory approvals. The acquisition of a minority interest generally does not require FCC approval. Whenever FCC 
approval is required, any interested party may file a petition to dismiss or deny the application for approval of the proposed transfer.  

In addition to regulation by the FCC, cellular systems are subject to certain Federal Aviation Administration tower height regulations 
concerning the siting and construction of cellular transmitter towers and antennas.  

Cellular operators are also subject to state and local regulation in some instances. Although the FCC has pre-empted the states from exercising 
jurisdiction in the areas of licensing, technical standards and market structure, certain states require cellular operators to be certified. In 
addition, some state authorities regulate certain aspects of a cellular operator's business, including certain aspects of pricing, the resale of long 
distance service to its customers, the technical arrangements and charges for interconnection with the landline network, and the transfer of 
interests in cellular systems. The siting and construction of the cellular facilities may also be subject to state or local zoning, land use and other 
local regulations.  

Developments affecting wireless competition. Competition in the wireless communications industry has increased substantially in recent years 
due to continued and rapid technological advances in the communications field, coupled with legislative and regulatory changes.  

Several FCC initiatives over the past decade have resulted in the allocation of additional radio spectrum or the issuance of licenses for 
emerging mobile communications technologies that are competitive with the Company's cellular and telephone operations, including PCS. 
Although there is no universally recognized definition of PCS, the term is generally used to refer to wireless services to be provided by 
licensees operating in the 1850 MHz to 1990 MHz radio frequency band using microcells and high-capacity digital technology. In 1996 and 
early 1997 the FCC auctioned up to six PCS licenses per market. Two 30MHz frequency blocks were awarded for each of the 51 Rand 
McNally Major Trading Areas ("MTAs"), while one 30MHz and three 10MHz frequency blocks were awarded for each of the 493 Rand 
McNally Basic Trading Areas ("BTAs").  

PCS technology permits PCS operators to offer wireless voice, data, image and multimedia services. The largest PCS providers commenced 
initial operations in late 1996 and since then have aggressively expanded their operations. These providers have initially focused on larger 
markets, and have generally marketed PCS as being a competitive service to cellular. Many of these companies have aggressively competed for 
customers on the basis of price, which has placed downward pressure on cellular prices. There is at least one PCS competitor in each of the 
Company's operated MSAs and certain of its operated RSAs.  

In addition to PCS, current and prospective users of cellular systems may find their communication needs satisfied by other current and 
developing technologies. Several years ago the FCC authorized the licensees of certain specialized mobile radio service ("SMR") systems 
(which historically have generally been used by taxicabs and tow truck operators) to configure their systems into digital networks that operate 
in a manner similar to cellular systems. Such systems are commonly referred to as enhanced specialized mobile radio service ("ESMR") 
systems. The Company believes that ESMR systems are operating in a few of its cellular markets. One well-established ESMR provider has 
constructed a nationwide digital mobile communications system to compete with cellular systems. Other similar communication services that 
have the technical capability to handle wireless telephone calls may provide competition in certain markets, although these services currently 
lack the subscriber capacity of cellular systems. Paging or beeper services that feature text message and data display as well as tones may be 
adequate for potential subscribers who do not need to converse directly with the caller. Mobile satellite systems, in which transmissions are 
between mobile units and satellites, may ultimately be successful in obtaining market share from cellular systems that communicate directly to 
land-based stations.  

In recent years, several large cellular providers have merged with other companies or formed joint ventures. Several of these joint ventures 
pooled their resources to develop extensive PCS systems. Many current or potential competitors of the Company have substantially greater 
financial and marketing resources than the Company.  

Although it is uncertain how PCS, SMR, ESMR, mobile satellites and other emerging technologies will ultimately affect the Company, the 
Company anticipates that it will continue to face increased competition in its operating markets. However, management believes that providing 
digital services and applying new microcellular technologies will permit its cellular systems to provide services comparable with the emerging 
technologies described above, although no assurances can be given that this will happen or that future technological advances or legislative or 



regulatory changes will not create additional sources of competition.  

OTHER OPERATIONS  

The Company provides long distance, security monitoring, competitive local exchange services, broadband, call center, cable television and 
interactive services in certain local and regional markets, as well as certain printing and related services. The results of these operations, which 
accounted for 6.7% and 4.3%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated revenues and operating income during 1999, are reflected for 
financial reporting purposes in the "Other operations" section in operating income.  

Long distance. In 1996 the Company began marketing long distance service in all of its equal access telephone operating areas. At December 
31, 1999, the Company provided long distance services to approximately 303,000 customers. Approximately 74% of the Company's long 
distance revenues are derived from service provided to residential customers. Although the Company owns and operates long distance switches 
in LaCrosse, Wisconsin and San Marcos, Texas, it anticipates that most of its future long distance service revenues will be provided by 
reselling service purchased from other facilities-based long distance providers. The Company intends to continue to expand its long distance 
business, principally through reselling arrangements.  

Security monitoring. The Company offers 24-hour burglary and fire monitoring services to approximately 6,900 customers in select markets in 
Louisiana, Arkansas, Mississippi, Texas and Ohio.  

Competitive local exchange services. During the second quarter of 2000, the Company plans to begin offering competitive local exchange 
telephone services, coupled with long distance, wireless, Internet access and other Company services, to small to medium-sized businesses in 
Shreveport, Louisiana. The Company currently plans to target a total of ten initial new markets by year end 2000, and has budgeted $20 million 
of capital expenditures for 2000 to construct competitive local exchange networks. The Company expects to incur an operating loss in 2000 of 
approximately $4.0-$6.0 million in connection with providing these services.  

Broadband. In connection with its long-range plans to sell capacity to other carriers in or near certain of its select markets, the Company 
expects to complete construction by mid-year 2000 of a 650- to 700-mile fiber optic ring connecting several communities in southern and 
central Michigan. The Company expects to begin providing initial network services by the third quarter 2000.  

Call center. Over the past several years, the Company has provided certain operator services for retail and wholesale markets. In January 2000, 
the Company announced that it would close its call center operations by the second quarter of 2000.  

Other. The Company also provides audiotext services; printing, database management and direct mail services; and cable television services. 
The Company is also in the process of developing deployment plans for 36 Local Multipoint Distribution System licenses acquired during the 
past two years, some of which may be used to assist the Company in providing competitive local exchange services, as discussed above. From 
time to time the Company also makes investments in other domestic or foreign communications companies, the most significant of which to 
date is a minority investment in a start-up Internet service provider in India.  

Certain service subsidiaries of the Company provide installation and maintenance services, materials and supplies, and managerial, technical, 
accounting and administrative services to the telephone and wireless operating subsidiaries. In addition, the Company provides and bills 
management services to subsidiaries and in certain instances makes interest-bearing advances to finance construction of plant, purchases of 
equipment or acquisitions of other businesses. These transactions are recorded by the Company's regulated telephone subsidiaries at their cost 
to the extent permitted by regulatory authorities. Intercompany profit on transactions with regulated affiliates is limited to a reasonable return 
on investment and has not been eliminated in connection with consolidating the results of operations of CenturyTel and its subsidiaries. Such 
intercompany profit is reflected in operating income in "Other operations".  

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

This report on Form 10-K and other documents filed by the Company under the federal securities laws include, and future oral or written 
statements or press releases of the Company and its management may include, certain forward-looking statements, including without limitation 
statements with respect to the Company's anticipated future operating and financial performance (including the impact of pending acquisitions), 
financial position and liquidity, growth opportunities and growth rates, business prospects, regulatory and competitive outlook, investment and 
expenditure plans, investment results, financing opportunities and sources (including the impact of financings on the Company's financial 
position, financial performance or credit ratings), pricing plans, strategic alternatives, business strategies, and other similar statements of 
expectations or objectives that are highlighted by words such as "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "plans," "believes," "projects," "seeks," 
"estimates," "should," and "may," and variations thereof and similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements are inherently speculative 
and are based upon several assumptions concerning future events, many of which are outside of the Company's control. The Company's 
forward-looking statements, and the assumptions upon which such statements are based, are subject to uncertainties that could cause the 
Company's actual results to differ materially from such statements. These uncertainties include but are not limited to those set forth below:  

o the effects of ongoing deregulation in the telecommunications industry as a result of the 1996 Act and other similar federal and state 
legislation and federal and state regulations enacted thereunder, including without limitation  
(i) greater than anticipated interconnection requests or competition in the Company's predominately rural local exchange telephone markets 
resulting therefrom, (ii) greater than anticipated reductions in revenues received from the Universal Service Fund or other current or future 



federal and state support funds designed to compensate LECs that provide services in high-cost markets,  
(iii) the final outcome of regulatory and judicial proceedings with respect to interconnection agreements and access charge reforms and (iv) 
future judicial or regulatory actions taken in response to the 1996 Act.  

o the effects of greater than anticipated competition from PCS, SMR, ESMR, mobile satellites or other wireless companies, including without 
limitation competition requiring new pricing or marketing strategies or new product offerings, and the attendant risk that the Company will not 
be able to respond on a timely or profitable basis.  

o possible changes in the demand for the Company's products and services, including without limitation (i) lower than anticipated demand for 
traditional or premium telephone services or for additional access lines per household, (ii) lower than anticipated demand for wireless telephone 
services, whether caused by changes in economic conditions, technology, competition, health concerns or otherwise, (iii) lower than anticipated 
demand for the Company's digital subscriber line Internet access services and (iv) reduced demand for the Company's access or billing and 
collection services.  

o the Company's ability to successfully introduce new offerings on a timely and cost-effective basis, including without limitation the 
Company's ability to (i) expand successfully its long distance and Internet offerings to new markets (including those to be acquired in 
connection with future acquisitions), (ii) offer bundled service packages on terms attractive to its customers and (iii) successfully initiate 
competitive local exchange, PCS and data services in its targeted markets.  

o the risks inherent in rapid technological change, including without limitation (i) the lack of assurance that the Company's ongoing wireless 
network improvements will be sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities and quality of competing networks, (ii) technological developments 
that could make the Company's analog and digital wireless networks uncompetitive or obsolete, such as the risk that the Time Division 
Multiple Access digital technology used by the Company will be uncompetitive with existing or future technologies, and  
(iii) the risk that technologies will not be developed by the Company on a timely or cost-effective basis or perform according to expectations.  

o the Company's ability to timely consummate its pending acquisitions and effectively manage its growth, including without limitation the 
Company's ability to (i) integrate newly-acquired operations into the Company's operations, (ii) attract and retain technological and other key 
personnel to work at the Company's Monroe, Louisiana headquarters or regional offices, (iii) achieve projected economies of scale and cost 
savings, (iv) meet pro forma cash flow projections developed by management in valuing newly-acquired businesses,  
(v) upgrade its billing and other information systems and (vi) otherwise monitor its operations, costs, regulatory compliance, and service 
quality and maintain other necessary internal controls.  

o regulatory limits on the Company's ability to change its prices for telephone services in response to competitive pressures.  

o any difficulties in the Company's ability to expand through attractively priced acquisitions, whether caused by financing constraints, a 
decrease in the pool of attractive target companies, or competition for acquisitions from other interested buyers.  

o higher than anticipated wireless operating costs due to churn or to fraudulent uses of the Company's networks, or lower than anticipated 
wireless revenues due to reduced roaming fees.  

o the lack of assurance that the Company can compete effectively against better-capitalized competitors.  

o the future unavailability of SFAS 71 to the Company's telephone subsidiaries.  

o the effects of more general factors, including without limitation:  

. changes in general industry and market conditions and growth rates  

. changes in interest rates or other general national, regional or local economic conditions  

. changes in legislation, regulation or public policy, including changes in federal rural financing programs  

. unanticipated increases in capital, operating or administrative costs, or the impact of new business opportunities requiring significant up-front 
investments  

. the continued availability of financing in amounts, and on terms and conditions, necessary to support the Company's operations  

. changes in the Company's relationships with vendors  

. changes in the Company's senior debt ratings  

. unfavorable outcomes of regulatory or legal proceedings, including rate proceedings and environmental proceedings  



. losses or unfavorable returns on the Company's investments in other communications companies  

. delays in the construction of the Company's networks  

. changes in accounting policies or practices adopted voluntarily or as required by generally accepted accounting principles.  

For additional information, see the description of the Company's business included above, as well as Item 7 of this report. Due to these 
uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance upon the Company's forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date 
hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any of its forward-looking statements for any reason.  

OTHER MATTERS  

The Company has certain obligations based on federal, state and local laws relating to the protection of the environment. Costs of compliance 
through 1999 have not been material and the Company currently has no reason to believe that such costs will become material.  

For additional information concerning the business and properties of the Company, see notes 3, 5, 11, 14, 18 and 20 of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 elsewhere herein.  

Item 2. Properties.  

The Company's properties consist principally of (i) telephone lines, central office equipment, telephone instruments and related equipment, and 
land and buildings related to telephone operations, and (ii) switching and cell site equipment related to cellular telephone operations. As of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company's gross property, plant and equipment of approximately $4.2 billion and $4.3 billion, respectively, 
consisted of the following:  

 

"Cable and wire" facilities consist primarily of buried cable and aerial cable, poles, wire, conduit and drops. "Central office equipment" 
consists primarily of switching equipment, circuit equipment and related facilities. "General support" consists primarily of land, buildings, 
tools, furnishings, fixtures, motor vehicles and work equipment. "Information origination/termination equipment" consists primarily of premise 
equipment (private branch exchanges and telephones) for official company use. "Cell sites" consist primarily of radio frequency channel 
equipment, switching equipment and towers. "Construction in progress" includes property of the foregoing categories that has not been placed 
in service because it is still under construction.  

Most of the properties of the Company's telephone subsidiaries are subject to mortgages securing the debt of such companies. The Company 
owns substantially all of the central office buildings, local administrative buildings, warehouses, and storage facilities used in its telephone 
operations. The Company leases most of the offices used in its wireless operations; certain of its transmitter sites are leased while others are 
owned by the Company. For further information on the location and type of the Company's properties, see the descriptions of the Company's 
telephone and wireless operations in Item 1.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.  

                                                            December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
                                                         1999          1998  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
 
Telephone operations 
     Cable and wire                                      45.4%         47.7  
     Central office equipment                            27.4          27.9  
     General support                                      5.9           6.3  
     Information origination/termination equipment        1.4           1.7  
     Construction in progress                             1.9           1.5  
     Other                                                 .2            .2  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
                                                         82.2          85.3  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
 
Wireless operations 
     Cell sites                                           8.4           7.6  
     General support                                      2.3           1.9  
     Construction in progress                              .4            .6  
     Other                                                 .1            .1  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
                                                         11.2          10.2  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
 
Other                                                     6.6           4.5  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
                                                        100.0%        100.0  
=================================================== ========================  



From time to time, the Company is involved in litigation incidental to its business, including administrative hearings of state public utility 
commissions relating primarily to rate making, actions relating to employee claims, occasional grievance hearings before labor regulatory 
agencies and miscellaneous third party tort actions. Currently, there are no material legal proceedings.  

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.  

Not applicable.  

Executive Officers of the Registrant  

Information concerning Executive Officers, set forth at Item 10 in Part III hereof, is incorporated in Part I of this Report by reference.  

PART II  

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder  

Matters.  

CenturyTel's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the symbol CTL. The following table sets forth the 
high and low sale prices, along with the quarterly dividends, for each of the quarters indicated:  

 

Common stock dividends during 1999 and 1998 were paid each quarter. As of February 29, 2000, there were approximately 6,000 stockholders 
of record of CenturyTel's common stock.  

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.  

The following table presents certain selected consolidated financial data as of and for each of the years ended in the five-year period ended 
December 31, 1999:  

                                          Sale pric es 
                                    --------------- -------         Dividend per  
                                    High               Low         common share  
                                    ----               ---         ------------  
 
1999: 
     First quarter              $  49               40-1/16           .0450 
     Second quarter             $  47-5/8           35-1/8            .0450 
     Third quarter              $  43-7/8           38-1/4            .0450 
     Fourth quarter             $  48-3/4           37-9/16           .0450 
 
1998: 
     First quarter              $  27-3/8           21-9/16           .0433 
     Second quarter             $  33-5/16          27-1/16           .0433 
     Third quarter              $  35-1/8           29-15/16          .0433 
     Fourth quarter             $  45-3/16          30-1/16           .0433 

Selected Income Statement Data 
                                                            Year ended December 31, 
                                   ---------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
                                         1999         1998         1997          1996         1995 
                                   ---------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
                                  (Dollars, except per share amounts, and shares expressed in thousand s)  
Operating revenues 
      Telephone                    $ 1,142,593    1 ,091,610      530,597       451,538       419,242 
      Wireless                         422,269      407,827      307,742       250,243       197,494 
      Other                            111,807       77,648       63,182        47,896        28,104 
                                    --------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Total operating revenues           $ 1,676,669    1 ,577,085      901,521       749,677       644,840 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Operating income 
      Telephone                    $   352,357      333,708      173,285       155,183       143,527 
      Wireless                         133,930      129,124       87,772        67,899        56,998 
      Other                             21,782       16,979        6,713           214         2,394 
                                    --------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Total operating income             $   508,069      479,811      267,770       223,296       202,919 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Gain on sale or exchange 
    of assets, net (pre-tax)       $    62,808       49,859      169,640           815         6,782 
                                    =============== ===================================================  



 

Selected Balance Sheet Data  

 

The following table presents certain selected consolidated operating data as of the end of each of the years in the five-year period ended 
December 31, 1999:  

 

See Items 1 and 2 in Part I and notes 1, 5 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 elsewhere herein for 
additional information.  

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
and Results of Operations  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

OVERVIEW  

CenturyTel, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") is a regional diversified communications company engaged primarily in providing local 
exchange telephone services and wireless communications services. At December 31, 1999, the Company's local exchange telephone 
subsidiaries operated over 1.27 million telephone access lines primarily in rural, suburban and small urban areas in 20 states, and the 
Company's majority-owned and operated wireless entities had more than 707,000 subscribers. On December 1, 1998, the Company acquired 
from affiliates of Ameritech Corporation ("Ameritech") telephone and directory operations serving approximately 86,000 access lines in 
northern and central Wisconsin for approximately $221 million cash. On December 1, 1997, the Company significantly expanded its operations 
by acquiring Pacific Telecom, Inc. ("PTI") for $1.503 billion cash and assumed PTI's debt of approximately $725 million. As a result of this 
acquisition, the Company acquired (i) over 660,000 telephone access lines, (ii) over 88,000 cellular subscribers and (iii) various wireless, cable 
television and other communications assets. The operations of the Ameritech and PTI properties are included in the Company's results of 
operations beginning on the respective dates of acquisition. See Acquisitions and Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
additional information. During the three years ended December 31, 1999, the Company has acquired various other telephone, wireless and 
other operations, the impact of which has not been material to the financial position or results of operations of the Company.  

 
Net income                         $   239,769      228,757      255,978       129,077       114,776 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Basic earnings per share           $      1.72         1.67         1.89           .96           .89 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Diluted earnings per share         $      1.70         1.64         1.87           .95           .87 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Dividends per common share         $       .18         .173         .164           .16          .147 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Average basic shares outstanding       138,848      137,010      134,984       133,400       129,662 
                                    =============== ===================================================  
 
Average diluted shares 
    outstanding                        141,432      140,105      137,412       135,980       132,456 
                                    =============== ===================================================  

                                                                December 31, 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --  
                                     1999            1998           1997           1996            199 5 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --  
                                                           (Dollars in thousands) 
Net property, plant and 
    equipment                 $  2,256,458       2, 351,453      2,258,563      1,149,012       1,047,8 08 
Excess cost of net assets 
    acquired, net             $  1,644,884       1, 956,701      1,767,352        532,410         493,6 55 
Total assets                  $  4,705,407       4, 935,455      4,709,401      2,028,505       1,862,4 21 
Long-term debt                $  2,078,311       2, 558,000      2,609,541        625,930         622,9 04 
Stockholders' equity          $  1,847,992       1, 531,482      1,300,272      1,028,153         888,4 24 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --  

                                                         Year ended December 31, 
                                  ----------------- -----------------------------------------------  
                                      1999          1998          1997         1996          1995 
                                  ----------------- -----------------------------------------------  
 
Telephone access lines            1,272,867     1,3 46,567     1,203,650      503,562       480,757  
Wireless units in service in 
  majority-owned markets            707,486       6 24,290       569,983      368,233       290,075  
Long distance customers             303,722       2 26,730       171,962      110,560        46,608  
                                  ----------------- -----------------------------------------------  



On May 14, 1999, the Company sold substantially all of its Alaska-based operations serving approximately 134,900 telephone access lines and 
3,000 cellular subscribers. On June 1, 1999, the Company sold the assets of its Brownsville and McAllen, Texas cellular operations serving 
approximately 7,500 cellular subscribers. The operations of these disposed properties are included in the Company's results of operations up to 
the respective dates of disposition.  

The net income of the Company for 1999 was $239.8 million, compared to $228.8 million during 1998 and $256.0 million during 1997. 
Diluted earnings per share for 1999 were $1.70 compared to $1.64 in 1998 and $1.87 in 1997. The Company's net income (and diluted earnings 
per share) from recurring operations for 1999, 1998 and 1997 was $238.3 million ($1.69), $198.2 million ($1.42), and $149.6 million ($1.09), 
respectively.  

 

Contributions to operating revenues and operating income by the Company's telephone, wireless and other operations for each of the years in 
the three-year period ended December 31, 1999 were as follows:  

 

As a result of the Company's December 1997 acquisition of PTI, the percentage of the Company's total operating revenues and operating 
income contributed by its telephone operations significantly increased during 1998.  

In addition to historical information, management's discussion and analysis includes certain forward-looking statements regarding events and 
financial trends that may affect the Company's future operating results and financial position. Such forward-looking statements are subject to 
uncertainties that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from such statements. Such uncertainties include but are not 
limited to: the effects of ongoing deregulation in the telecommunications industry; the effects of greater than anticipated competition in the 
Company's markets; possible changes in the demand for the Company's products and services; the Company's ability to successfully introduce 
new offerings on a timely and cost-effective basis; the risks inherent in rapid technological change; the Company's ability to timely 
consummate its pending acquisitions and effectively manage its growth, including integrating newly acquired properties into the Company's 
operations, hiring adequate numbers of qualified staff and successfully upgrading its billing and other information systems; and the effects of 
more general factors such as changes in general market or economic conditions or in legislation, regulation or public policy. These and other 
uncertainties related to the business are described in greater detail in Item 1 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1999. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date 
hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to update any of its forward-looking statements for any reason.  

TELEPHONE OPERATIONS  

Year ended December 31,                               1999         1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 
                                                    (Dollars, except per share amounts,  
                                                         and shares in thousands) 
Operating income 
     Telephone                                  $   352,357      333,708       173,285 
     Wireless                                       133,930      129,124        87,772 
     Other                                           21,782       16,979         6,713 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 
                                                    508,069      479,811       267,770 
Gain on sale or exchange of assets, net              62,808       49,859       169,640 
Interest expense                                   (150,557)    (167,552)      (56,474)  
Income from unconsolidated cellular entities         27,675       32,869        27,794 
Minority interest                                   (27,913)     (12,797)       (5,498)  
Other income and expense                              9,190        5,268         5,109 
Income tax expense                                 (189,503)    (158,701)     (152,363)  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 
Net income                                      $   239,769      228,757       255,978 
=================================================== =================================== 
Basic earnings per share                        $      1.72         1.67          1.89 
=================================================== =================================== 
Diluted earnings per share                      $      1.70         1.64          1.87 
=================================================== =================================== 
Average basic shares outstanding                    138,848      137,010       134,984 
=================================================== =================================== 
Average diluted shares outstanding                  141,432      140,105       137,412 
=================================================== =================================== 

Year ended December 31,           1999          199 8         1997  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------  
 
Operating revenues 
      Telephone operations        68.1%         69. 2         58.9  
      Wireless operations         25.2%         25. 9         34.1  
      Other operations             6.7%          4. 9          7.0  
Operating income 
      Telephone operations        69.3%         69. 6         64.7  
      Wireless operations         26.4%         26. 9         32.9  
      Other operations             4.3%          3. 5          2.4  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------  



The Company conducts its telephone operations in rural, suburban and small urban communities in 20 states. As of December 31, 1999, 
approximately 84% of the Company's 1.27 million access lines were in Wisconsin, Washington, Michigan, Louisiana, Colorado, Ohio, Oregon 
and Montana. The operating revenues, expenses and income of the Company's telephone operations for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are summarized 
below.  

 

Local service revenues  

Local service revenues are derived from the provision of local exchange telephone services in the Company's service areas. Of the $21.8 
million (6.6%) increase in local service revenues in 1999, $21.1 million was due to the acquisition of the Ameritech properties which was more 
than offset by a $22.8 million decrease attributable to the sale of the Company's Alaska based operations. The remaining $23.5 million increase 
was due to a $15.6 million increase due to an internal growth in the number of customer access lines and a $4.1 million increase due to the 
increased provision of custom calling features. The $184.1 million (124.8%) increase in such revenues in 1998 included $171.0 million from 
acquired properties, of which $169.2 million was from the PTI properties; $10.7 million due to an internal growth in the number of customer 
access lines and a $3.0 million increase due to the increased provision of custom calling features. Internal access line growth during 1999, 1998 
and 1997 was 4.8%, 4.7% and 4.4%, respectively.  

Network access revenues  

Network access revenues are primarily derived from the charges to long distance companies and other customers for access to the Company's 
local exchange carrier ("LEC") networks in connection with the completion of long distance telephone calls. These access charges are based on 
tariffed access rates filed with the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") for interstate services and with the respective state regulatory 
agency for intrastate services. Certain of the Company's interstate network access revenues are based on access charges filed directly with the 
FCC; the remainder of such revenues are derived under revenue sharing arrangements with other LECs administered by the National Exchange 
Carrier Association. Intrastate network access revenues are based on access charges or are derived under revenue sharing arrangements with 
other LECs.  

Network access revenues increased $24.4 million (3.9%) in 1999 and $310.3 million (97.2%) in 1998 due to the following factors:  

 

Other revenues  

Year ended December 31,                       1999            1998            1997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
                                                     (Dollars in thousands) 
Operating revenues 
      Local service                     $   353,534          331,736         147,589  
      Network access                        654,003          629,583         319,301  
      Other                                 135,056          130,291          63,707  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
                                          1,142,593        1,091,610         530,597  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
Operating expenses 
      Plant operations                      262,864          245,164         110,220  
      Customer operations                    91,077           92,552          50,819  
      Corporate and other                   160,819          157,293          80,551  
      Depreciation and amortization         275,476          262,893         115,722  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
                                            790,236          757,902         357,312  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
Operating income                        $   352,357          333,708         173,285  
=================================================== ================================  

                                                          1999           1998 
                                                        increase       increase 
                                                       (decrease)     (decrease)  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                        (Dollars in thousands) 
PTI acquisition                                         $       -       278,471 
Increased recovery from the federal Universal 
  Service Fund ("USF")                                      8,193         8,329 
Acquisitions, excluding PTI                                17,645         1,013 
Disposition of Alaska properties                          (39,985)            - 
Partial recovery of increased operating costs 
  through revenue sharing arrangements with other 
  telephone companies, increased minutes of use, 
  increased recovery from state support funds and 
  return on rate base                                      19,524        19,286 
Revision of prior year revenue settlement agreement s       15,944           618 
Other, net                                                  3,099         2,565 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                        $  24,420       310,282 
=================================================== ============================ 



Other revenues include revenues related to (i) leasing, selling, installing, maintaining and repairing customer premise telecommunications 
equipment and wiring ("CPE services"), (ii) providing billing and collection services for long distance carriers, (iii) participating in the 
publication of local directories and (iv) providing Internet access. Of the $4.8 million increase in other revenues in 1999, $5.0 million was 
attributable to the Ameritech properties. Such increase was more than offset by a $12.0 million decrease due to the sale of the Alaska 
properties. The remaining increase of $11.8 million was primarily due to a $5.0 million and $6.4 million increase from the provision of Internet 
access and CPE services, respectively. Other revenues increased $66.6 million in 1998, which included $60.7 million due to acquisitions. The 
remainder of the increase in 1998 was due to a $3.9 million increase from the provision of Internet access and a $3.5 million increase from the 
provision of CPE services.  

Operating expenses  

Plant operations expenses during 1999 and 1998 increased $17.7 million (7.2%) and $134.9 million (122.4%), respectively. Of the $17.7 
million increase in 1999, $13.2 million was attributable to the properties acquired from Ameritech, which was more than offset by a $23.7 
million decrease due to the sale of the Alaska properties. The remaining $28.2 million increase was primarily due to a $7.4 million increase in 
access expenses primarily due to changes in revenue settlement methods of certain telephone subsidiaries in a limited number of states; a $5.6 
million increase in repair and maintenance expenses; a $5.6 million increase in engineering and network expenses and a $2.0 million increase 
in expenses associated with providing Internet access. Expenses incurred by the PTI and Ameritech operations in 1998 accounted for $120.4 
million of the 1998 increase. The remainder of the increase in 1998 was primarily due to an increase in salaries and benefits.  

Customer operations, corporate and other expenses increased $2.1 million (.8%) in 1999 and $118.5 million (90.2%) in 1998. The Ameritech 
properties contributed $12.5 million of the 1999 increase. Such increase was more than offset by a $19.8 million decrease due to the sale of the 
Alaska properties. The remaining $9.4 million increase in 1999 was primarily due to a $6.5 million increase in contract labor expenses 
attributable to readying the Company's systems to be Year 2000 compliant; a $2.8 million increase in expenses associated with the provision of 
CPE services and a $3.0 million increase in the provision for doubtful accounts. Such increases in 1999 were partially offset by a $5.9 million 
decrease in salaries and benefits primarily due to a decrease in the number of non-operational personnel. Of the $118.5 million increase in 
1998, $110.7 million was applicable to the PTI properties. Exclusive of acquisitions, the remainder of the 1998 increase was due to a $4.3 
million increase in salaries and benefits and a $2.0 million increase in marketing expenses.  

Depreciation and amortization increased $12.6 million (4.8%) and $147.2 million (127.2%) in 1999 and 1998, respectively. Of the 1999 
increase, $17.1 million was attributable to the properties acquired from Ameritech, which was more than offset by a $17.8 million decrease due 
to the sale of the Alaska properties. Approximately $136.6 million of the 1998 increase was applicable to acquiring and operating PTI (of 
which $27.9 million represented amortization of goodwill) and $1.3 million was applicable to the former Ameritech properties. Exclusive of 
acquisitions, depreciation expense included nonrecurring additional depreciation charges approved by regulators in certain jurisdictions which 
aggregated $10.7 million in 1999 and $6.2 million in 1998. In addition, the Company obtained increased depreciation rates in certain 
jurisdictions which increased depreciation expense by $2.2 million in 1999 and $1.1 million in 1998. The remainder of the increases in 
depreciation and amortization in 1999 and 1998 were due to higher levels of plant in service. The composite depreciation rate for the 
Company's regulated telephone properties, including the additional depreciation charges, was 7.0% for 1999, 6.9% for 1998 and 7.4% for 1997. 

Other  

For additional information regarding certain matters that have impacted or may impact the Company's telephone operations, see Regulation and 
Competition.  

WIRELESS OPERATIONS AND INCOME FROM UNCONSOLIDATED CELLULAR ENTITIES  

 

The Company's wireless operations (discussed below) reflect 100% of the results of operations of the cellular entities in which the Company 
has a majority ownership interest. The minority interest owners' share of the income of such entities is reflected in the Company's Consolidated 
Statements of Income as an expense in "Minority interest." See Minority Interest for additional information. The Company's share of earnings 
from the cellular entities in which it has less than a majority interest is accounted for using the equity method and is reflected in the Company's 
Consolidated Statements of Income in "Income from unconsolidated cellular entities." See Income from Unconsolidated Cellular Entities for 
additional information.  

WIRELESS OPERATIONS  

Year ended December 31,                             1999         1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------- 
                                                        (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Operating income - wireless operations          $ 1 33,930      129,124        88,048 
Minority interest, exclusive of the 
  effect of asset sales                           ( 12,911)     (12,635)       (6,916)  
Income from unconsolidated cellular entities       27,675       32,869        27,794 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------- 
                                                $ 1 48,694      149,358       108,926 
=================================================== ================================= 



Substantially all of the Company's wireless customers are located in Michigan, Louisiana, Wisconsin, Mississippi, Texas and Arkansas. The 
operating revenues, expenses and income of the Company's wireless operations for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are summarized below.  

 

Operating revenues  

Service revenues include monthly service fees for providing access and airtime to customers, service fees for providing airtime to other carriers' 
customers roaming through the Company's service areas and toll revenue.  

Of the $12.8 million increase in service revenues in 1999, $11.3 million was due to an increase in roaming usage primarily attributable to 
increased minutes of use which was partially offset by reduced rates. Local service revenues increased $5.9 million due to a growth in the 
number of customers and increased minutes of use, both of which were partially offset by reduced rates. Such increases were partially offset by 
a $6.3 million decrease due to the Company's sale of its Texas and Alaska cellular properties. Of the $96.6 million increase in service revenues 
in 1998, $76.1 million was attributable to acquisitions of properties. The remainder of the 1998 increase in service revenues was primarily due 
to a $10.9 million increase in roaming revenues and a $9.4 million increase in local service revenues.  

The following table illustrates the growth in the Company's wireless customer base in its majority-owned markets:  

 

The average monthly service revenue per customer declined to $53 during 1999 from $57 in 1998 and $61 in 1997 due to price reductions and 
the continued trend that a higher percentage of new customers tend to be lower usage customers. A majority of the Company's net unit 
additions for 1999 were prepaid customers. The average monthly service revenue per prepaid customer has been and is expected to continue to 
be less than the average monthly service revenues per contract customer. The average monthly service revenue per customer may further 
decline (i) as market penetration increases and additional lower usage customers are activated; (ii) as the Company continues to receive 
pressure from other cellular operators to reduce roaming rates and (iii) as competitive pressures from current and future wireless 
communications providers intensify. The Company is responding to such competitive pressures by, among other things, modifying certain of 
its price plans and implementing certain other plans and promotions, most all of which are likely to result in lower average revenue per 
customer. The Company will continue to focus on customer service and attempt to stimulate usage and customer growth by promoting the 
availability of certain enhanced services and by improving the quality of its service through the construction of additional cell sites and other 
enhancements to its system.  

Operating expenses  

Cost of equipment sold increased $4.4 million (26.0%) in 1999 and $2.4 million (16.5%) in 1998 primarily due to an increase in the number of 
phones sold.  

System operations expenses decreased $3.2 million (5.3%) in 1999 primarily due to a $3.8 million decrease in the amounts paid to other 
carriers for service provided to the Company's customers who roam in the other carriers' service areas primarily due to a decrease in roaming 
rates; a $1.7 million decrease in toll costs; and a $1.9 million decrease in expenses attributable to operations sold during 1999. Such decreases 
were partially offset by a $4.3 million increase in expenses associated with operating a greater number of cell sites. The $12.5 million (26.2%) 

Year ended December 31,                                  1999        1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------  
                                                            (Dollars in thousands) 
Operating revenues 
     Service revenues                                $ 411,492     398,739      302,156  
     Equipment sales                                    10,777       9,088        5,586  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------  
                                                       422,269     407,827      307,742  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------  
Operating expenses 
     Cost of equipment sold                             21,408      16,992       14,588  
     System operations                                  56,866      60,049       47,572  
     General, administrative and customer service       79,569      81,350       62,536  
     Sales and marketing                                61,903      57,967       54,128  
     Depreciation and amortization                      68,593      62,345       41,146  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------  
                                                       288,339     278,703      219,970  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------  
Operating income                                     $ 133,930     129,124       87,772  
=================================================== ====================================  

Year ended December 31,                                   1999           1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------  
Customers at beginning of period                         624,290       569,983      368,233  
Gross units added internally                             240,084       214,767      193,623  
Disconnects                                              146,325       160,460      115,473  
Net units added internally                                93,759        54,307       78,150  
Net effect of property acquisitions and disposition s     (10,563)            -      123,600  
Customers at end of period                               707,486       624,290      569,983  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------  



increase in system operations expenses in 1998 was primarily due to $15.6 million of expenses attributable to acquisitions. Such increase was 
partially offset by a $6.1 million decrease in the amounts paid to other carriers for service provided to the Company's customers who roam in 
the other carriers' service areas primarily due to a decrease in roaming rates.  

The Company operated 711 cell sites at December 31, 1999 in entities in which it had a majority interest, compared to 644 at December 31, 
1998 and 558 at December 31, 1997.  

General, administrative and customer service expenses decreased $1.8 million (2.2%), of which $9.0 million was attributable to a decrease in 
the provision for doubtful accounts. Such decrease was substantially offset by a $2.9 million increase in customer service expenses; a $2.1 
million increase in contract labor expenses associated with readying the Company's systems to be Year 2000 compliant; and a $3.4 million 
increase in general office expenses. Of the $18.8 million (30.1%) increase in 1998 expenses, $13.4 million was attributable to expenses of 
entities acquired. The remainder of the 1998 increase was primarily due to a $2.1 million increase in the provision for doubtful accounts and a 
$1.8 million increase in customer service expenses.  

Churn rate (the percentage of cellular customers that terminate service) is an industry-wide concern. The Company faces substantial 
competition from other wireless providers, including those offering Personal Communications Services ("PCS"). A significant portion of the 
churn in the Company's cellular markets is due to the Company disconnecting service to customers for nonpayment. The Company's average 
monthly churn rate in its majority-owned and operated markets was 1.90% in 1999, 2.23% in 1998 and 2.31% in 1997.  

Sales and marketing expenses increased $3.9 million (6.8%) in 1999 primarily due to a $4.0 million increase in costs incurred in selling 
products and services in retail locations and a $2.0 million increase in advertising expenses. Such increases were partially offset by a $2.1 
million reduction in commissions paid to agents for selling services to new customers primarily as a result of fewer cellular units being added 
through this distribution channel during 1999 as compared to 1998 and a $1.2 million decrease in expenses due to the Company's sale of its 
Texas and Alaska properties. Sales and marketing expenses increased $3.8 million (7.1%) in 1998 primarily due to $9.7 million of expenses of 
acquired entities; a $2.9 million increase in costs incurred in selling products and services in retail locations and a $2.4 million increase in 
advertising expenses. Such increases were partially offset by a $10.6 million reduction in commissions paid to agents for selling services to 
new customers primarily as a result of fewer units being added through this distribution channel during 1998 as compared to 1997.  

Depreciation and amortization increased $6.2 million (10.0%) in 1999, of which $4.0 million was due to an increase in amortization of 
intangibles and $2.5 million was attributable to a higher level of plant in service. Of the $21.2 million (51.5%) increase in 1998, $14.5 million 
was attributable to acquisitions. The remainder of the 1998 increase was primarily due to higher levels of plant in service.  

Other  

For additional information regarding certain matters that have impacted or may impact the Company's wireless operations, see Regulation and 
Competition.  

OTHER OPERATIONS  

Other operations includes the results of operations of subsidiaries of the Company which are not included in the telephone or wireless segments 
including, but not limited to, the Company's non-regulated long distance operations, call center operations and security monitoring business. 
The operating revenues, expenses and income of the Company's other operations for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are summarized below.  

 

The 1999 and 1998 increases in long distance revenues of $30.1 million and $16.5 million, respectively, were primarily attributable to the 
growth in the number of customers. The number of long distance customers as of December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 was 303,700, 226,700, 
and 172,000, respectively. The $4.6 million decrease in call center revenues in 1998 was primarily due to the loss of two major customers in 
the fourth quarter of 1997. The increases in other revenues in 1998 of $2.6 million was primarily attributable to the acquisition of cable 
television properties in the PTI acquisition and the acquisition of two security monitoring businesses, partially offset by a loss of revenues 

Year ended December 31,                          19 99         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                     (Dollars in thousands) 
Operating revenues 
   Long distance                             $  83, 087       53,027       36,550  
   Call center                                  11, 749        9,701       14,285  
   Other                                        16, 971       14,920       12,347  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                               111, 807       77,648       63,182  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
 
Operating expenses 
   Cost of sales and operating expenses         85, 278       57,353       53,842  
   Depreciation and amortization                 4, 747        3,316        2,627  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                90, 025       60,669       56,469  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
Operating income                             $  21, 782       16,979        6,713  
=================================================== =============================  



applicable to entities sold during 1997.  

Operating expenses in 1999 increased $29.4 million (48.4%) primarily due to (i) an increase of $17.8 million in expenses of the Company's 
long distance operations primarily due to the increased minutes of use due to an increase in the number of long distance customers, (ii) a $6.7 
million increase associated with the Company's call center operations and (iii) a $3.8 million increase in expenses due to the expansion of the 
Company's security monitoring and fiber network businesses. In January 2000, the Company announced that it would close its third party call 
center operations by the end of the first quarter 2000. Included in total operating expenses for 1999 is a $2.7 million charge to write down the 
assets of the call center to estimated net realizable value.  

Operating expenses in 1998 increased due to (i) an increase of $13.6 million in expenses of the Company's long distance operations due 
primarily to an increase in customers and (ii) $6.6 million of operating expenses applicable to acquisitions. Such increases were substantially 
offset by decreases in operating expenses because (i) 1997 included $9.2 million of costs applicable to entities sold during 1997 and (ii) the 
amount of intercompany profit with regulated affiliates (the recognition of which in accordance with regulatory accounting principles acts to 
offset operating expenses) increased $5.8 million as a result of the acquisition of PTI.  

The Company anticipates that the growth of operating income for its other operations will slow in future periods as it incurs increasingly larger 
expenses in connection with expanding its security monitoring business and its emerging fiber network and competitive local exchange carrier 
businesses.  

Certain of the Company's service subsidiaries provide managerial, operational, technical, accounting and administrative services, along with 
materials and supplies, to the Company's telephone subsidiaries. In accordance with regulatory accounting, intercompany profit on transactions 
with regulated affiliates has not been eliminated in connection with consolidating the results of operations of the Company. When the regulated 
operations of the Company no longer qualify for the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 ("SFAS 71"), 
"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," such intercompany profit will be eliminated in subsequent financial statements, 
the primary result of which will be a decrease in operating expenses applicable to the Company's telephone operations and an increase in 
operating expenses applicable to the Company's other operations. The amount of intercompany profit with regulated affiliates which was not 
eliminated was approximately $14.0 million, $14.4 million and $8.9 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. For additional information 
applicable to SFAS 71, see Regulation and Competition - Other Matters and Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

GAIN ON SALE OR EXCHANGE OF ASSETS, NET  

In 1999, the Company recorded pre-tax gains aggregating $62.8 million. Approximately $10.4 million of the pre-tax gains ($6.7 million after-
tax; $.04 per diluted share) was due to the sale of the Company's remaining common shares of MCIWorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom"). 
Approximately $39.6 million of the pre-tax gains ($7.8 million after-tax loss; $.05 per diluted share) was due to the sale of the Company's 
Brownsville and McAllen, Texas cellular properties. The remainder of the gains in 1999 was primarily due to an $11.6 million pre-tax gain 
($7.6 million after-tax; $.05 per diluted share) due to the sale of the Company's shares of common stock of Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. 
See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.  

In 1998 the Company recorded net pre-tax gains aggregating $49.9 million ($30.5 million after-tax; $.22 per diluted share) primarily due to the 
conversion of its investment in the common stock of Brooks Fiber Properties, Inc. ("Brooks") into common stock of WorldCom, the 
subsequent sale of 750,000 shares of WorldCom stock, and the sale of minority interests in two non-strategic cellular entities.  

In the second quarter of 1997, the Company sold its competitive access subsidiary to Brooks in exchange for approximately 4.3 million shares 
of Brooks' common stock and recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $71 million ($46 million after-tax; $.34 per diluted share). In 
November 1997 the Company sold approximately 3.8 million shares of Brooks' stock and recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $108 
million ($66 million after-tax; $.48 per diluted share).  

INTEREST EXPENSE  

Interest expense decreased $17.0 million in 1999 primarily due to a reduction in outstanding indebtedness. Interest expense increased $111.1 
million in 1998 primarily due to $89.7 million of interest expense on the borrowings used to finance the PTI and Ameritech acquisitions and 
$23.2 million of interest expense applicable to debt assumed from PTI.  

INCOME FROM UNCONSOLIDATED CELLULAR ENTITIES  

Earnings from unconsolidated cellular entities, net of the amortization of associated goodwill, decreased $5.2 million (15.8%) primarily due to 
the Company's proportionate share ($6.9 million) of a non-cash charge that was recorded by a cellular entity in which the Company owns a 
minority interest. The 1998 increase of $5.1 million (18.3%) was primarily due to $7.3 million of earnings of unconsolidated cellular entities 
acquired in the PTI acquisition. Such increase was partially offset by a $2.5 million decrease due to the sale of the Company's minority interest 
in two non-strategic cellular entities during the second quarter of 1998.  

MINORITY INTEREST  

Minority interest is the expense recorded by the Company to reflect the minority interest owners' share of the earnings of the Company's 



majority-owned and operated cellular entities and majority-owned subsidiaries. Minority interest increased $15.1 million during 1999, 
substantially all of which relates to the minority partners' share of the gain on sale of assets of the Brownsville and McAllen, Texas cellular 
properties. Of the $7.3 million increase in minority interest in 1998, $2.0 million was associated with entities acquired in the PTI acquisition. 
The remainder of the increase was primarily due to the increased profitability of the Company's majority-owned and operated cellular entities.  

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE  

Other income and expense increased $3.9 million in 1999, substantially all of which relates to favorable non-recurring items recorded in 1999.  

INCOME TAX EXPENSE  

The Company's effective income tax rate was 44.1%, 41.0% and 37.3% in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Exclusive of the effect of income 
tax expense on asset sales, the effective income tax rate was 39.0%, 41.3% and 37.3% in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Such decrease in 
the effective rate for 1999 was primarily due to two factors. First, the Company's 1999 sale of its Texas and Alaska operations resulted in a 
decrease in the amount of amortization of excess cost of net assets acquired (goodwill) that is non-deductible for tax purposes. Second, the 
Company recorded a $5.3 million state tax benefit relating to a loss carryback that will be utilized to recoup taxes paid in a previous year.  

The increase in the effective rate in 1998 was primarily due to the increase in non-deductible amortization of excess cost of net assets acquired 
attributable to the PTI acquisition.  

ACQUISITIONS  

On December 1, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of certain of Ameritech's telephone and directory operations in 19 telephone exchanges 
covering 21 communities in northern and central Wisconsin for approximately $221 million cash. The operations acquired by the Company 
include the telephone property and equipment serving approximately 86,000 access lines, as well as the related nine telephone directories.  

On December 1, 1997, the Company acquired PTI in exchange for $1.503 billion cash and assumed PTI's debt of approximately $725 million. 
To finance the acquisition, the Company borrowed $1.288 billion under its committed credit facility and paid the remainder of the purchase 
price with available cash, most of which consisted of the proceeds of the sale of Brooks' common stock in November 1997. See Liquidity and 
Capital Resources - Financing Activities for additional information. As a result of the acquisition, the Company acquired (i) over 660,000 
telephone access lines located in four midwestern states, seven western states and Alaska, (ii) over 88,000 cellular subscribers in two 
midwestern states and Alaska and (iii) various wireless, cable television and other communications assets. For additional information, see Note 
11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  

In June 1998 the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 ("SFAS 133"), 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." SFAS 133 established accounting and reporting standards for derivative 
instruments and for hedging activities by requiring that entities recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at fair value on the balance 
sheet. Based on the Company's current use of derivatives, SFAS 133 is not expected to materially impact the Company's financial position or 
results of operations. In June 1999, the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS 133 to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000.  

In June 1999, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 43, "Real Estate Sales, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 66." The interpretation is 
effective for sales of real estate with property improvements or integral equipment entered into after June 30, 1999. Under this interpretation, 
fiber optic cable is considered integral equipment and, accordingly, title must transfer to a lessee in order for an Indefeasible Right to Use 
transaction to be accounted for as a sales-type lease. The application of the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 43 does not have an impact 
on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), "Revenue Recognition in 
Financial Statements." SAB 101 summarizes certain of the staff's views in applying generally accepted accounting principles to revenue 
recognition and deferred costs in the financial statements. Based on the Company's current revenue recognition policies, SAB 101 is not 
expected to materially impact the Company's financial position or results of operations.  

INFLATION  

The effects of increased costs historically have been mitigated by the ability to recover certain costs applicable to the Company's regulated 
telephone operations through the rate-making process. As operating expenses in the Company's non-regulated lines of business increase as a 
result of inflation, the Company, to the extent permitted by competition, recovers the costs by increasing prices for its services and equipment. 
While the rate-making process does not permit the Company to immediately recover the costs of replacing its physical plant, the Company has 
historically been able to recapture these costs over time. Possible future regulatory changes may alter the Company's ability to recover 
increased costs in its regulated operations. For additional information regarding the current regulatory environment, see Regulation and 
Competition.  



MARKET RISK  

The Company is not exposed to material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in interest rates on long-term debt obligations 
since the majority of the Company's long-term debt obligations are fixed rate. At December 31, 1999, the fair value of the Company's long-
term debt was estimated to be $2.0 billion based on the overall weighted average rate of the Company's long-term debt of 7.0% and an overall 
weighted maturity of 12 years compared to terms and rates currently available in long-term financing markets. Market risk is estimated as the 
potential decrease in fair value of the Company's long-term debt resulting from a hypothetical increase of 70 basis points in interest rates (ten 
percent of the Company's overall weighted average borrowing rate). Such an increase in interest rates would result in approximately a $89.0 
million decrease in fair value of the Company's long-term debt.  

In early 1998 the Company utilized interest rate hedge contracts to manage its interest rate risk related to the issuance of $765.0 million of 
senior notes and debentures. In February 2000, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge contract designed to reduce its interest rate risk 
with respect to $100 million of the long-term public debt that it expects to incur in connection with financing its pending acquisitions of local 
exchange assets in Arkansas, Missouri and Wisconsin. It is possible that the Company will enter into additional interest rate hedges for the 
same purpose over the next several months. See Liquidity and Capital Resources for additional information.  

YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURE  

The Year 2000 issue concerned the inability of computer systems and certain other equipment to properly recognize and process data that uses 
two digits rather than four to designate particular years. The Company implemented a Year 2000 Project Plan ("the Plan") to assess whether its 
systems that process date sensitive information would perform satisfactorily leading up to and beyond January 1, 2000. Subsequent to 
December 31, 1999, the Company has experienced no Year 2000-related problems with its critical systems nor did it experience any problems 
with the delivery of critical services it receives from third parties.  

In connection with implementing the Plan, the Company incurred costs of $35.1 million during 1999 ($24.1 million of which was related to 
hardware costs and other capital items) and $4.2 million during 1998 (none of which was related to hardware costs or other capital items). All 
costs were expensed as incurred, except for hardware and other items that were capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES  

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, the Company relies on cash provided by operations to provide a substantial portion of its cash needs. The 
Company's operations have historically provided a stable source of cash flow which has helped the Company continue its long-term program of 
capital improvements.  

Operating activities  

Net cash provided by operating activities was $408.7 million, $467.8 million and $297.3 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The 
Company's accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows identify major differences between net income and net cash provided by 
operating activities for each of those years. For additional information relating to the telephone operations, wireless operations and other 
operations of the Company, see Results of Operations.  

Investing activities  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities was $69.8 million, ($375.6) million and ($1.503) billion in 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. Proceeds from the sales of assets were $484.5 million in 1999 compared to $132.3 million in 1998 and $202.7 million in 1997. 
Cash used for acquisitions was $21.0 million, $225.6 million and $1.544 billion in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Capital expenditures for 
1999 were $233.5 million for telephone operations, $58.8 million for wireless operations and $97.7 for other operations. Capital expenditures 
during 1998 and 1997 were $310.9 million and $181.2 million, respectively.  

Financing activities  

Net cash used in financing activities was $427.6 million in 1999 and $112.4 million in 1998. Net cash provided by financing activities was 
$1.223 billion during 1997, of which $1.288 billion was related to the acquisition of PTI. Net payments of long-term debt were $365.5 million 
more during 1999 compared to 1998 primarily due to the utilization of proceeds from the sales of assets. In December 1997 the Company filed 
a shelf registration statement with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission registering an aggregate of $1.6 billion of senior 
unsecured debt securities, preferred stock, common stock and warrants. In January 1998 the Company issued an aggregate of $765 million of 
senior notes and debentures. The net proceeds of approximately $758 million were used to reduce the bank indebtedness incurred in connection 
with the acquisition of PTI. In addition, the Company paid approximately $40 million in 1998 to settle numerous interest rate hedge contracts 
that had been entered into in anticipation of these debt issuances.  

Other  



Budgeted capital expenditures for 2000 total $250 million for telephone operations, $100 million for wireless operations and $65 million for 
other operations. The Company anticipates that capital expenditures in its telephone operations will continue to include the installation of fiber 
optic cable and the upgrading of its plant and equipment, including its digital switches, to provide enhanced services. Capital expenditures in 
the wireless operations are expected to continue to focus on constructing additional cell sites (which will provide additional capacity and 
expanded areas where cellular phones may be used) and providing digital service. Budgeted capital expenditures for other operations include 
$15 million for construction of the Company's fiber network and $20 million for construction of competitive local exchange networks.  

In June 1999, the Company signed a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase from affiliates of GTE Corporation ("GTE") telephone 
access lines (which numbered approximately 225,000 at December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Arkansas for approximately 
$845.8 million in cash. In July 1999, the Company acquired a 61.5% (56.9% fully diluted) interest in a newly-organized joint venture company 
which has entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement with affiliates of GTE to purchase telephone access lines (which numbered 
approximately 121,000 at December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Missouri for approximately $290 million in cash. At 
closing, the Company has agreed to make approximately a $55 million preferred equity investment in the new entity and it is anticipated that 
the Company will loan the new entity approximately $220 million.  

In August 1999, the Company acquired an 89% interest in a newly-organized joint venture company which has entered into a definitive asset 
purchase agreement to purchase telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 61,700 as of December 31, 1999) and related local 
exchange assets in Wisconsin from a GTE affiliate for approximately $170 million cash. At closing the Company has agreed to make an equity 
investment in the newly organized company of approximately $37.8 million and it is anticipated that the Company will loan the new entity 
approximately $130 million. In October 1999, the Company also entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase additional 
telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 68,200 as of December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Wisconsin from a 
GTE affiliate for approximately $195 million cash.  

The purchase price under each of these GTE agreements is subject to adjustments which are not expected to be material in the aggregate. These 
transactions are anticipated to close by mid-year 2000, subject to regulatory approvals and certain other closing conditions. Although financing 
plans are not yet complete and will be dependent upon the Company's review of its alternatives and market conditions, the Company currently 
anticipates selling a mix of securities that will include debt securities and may include equity or equity-linked securities. Currently, the 
Company's senior unsecured debt is rated Baa1 by Moody's and BBB+ by Standard & Poor's. However, as a result of the Company's 
announcement of its GTE acquisitions, Moody's placed its ratings under review for possible downgrade and Standard & Poor's placed its 
ratings on CreditWatch with negative implications.  

The Company continually evaluates the possibility of acquiring additional telecommunications operations and expects to continue its long-term 
strategy of pursuing the acquisition of attractive communications properties in exchange for cash, securities or both. The Company generally 
does not announce its acquisitions until it has entered into a preliminary or definitive agreement. Over the past few years, the amount of 
communications properties available to be purchased by the Company has increased substantially. The Company may require additional 
financing in connection with any such acquisitions, the consummation of which could have a material impact on the Company's financial 
condition or operations. Approximately 4.6 million shares of CenturyTel common stock and 200,000 shares of CenturyTel preferred stock 
remain available for future issuance in connection with acquisitions under an acquisition shelf registration statement.  

As of December 31, 1999, the Company's telephone subsidiaries had available for use $131.5 million of commitments for long-term financing 
from the Rural Utilities Service and the Company had $219.1 million of undrawn committed bank lines of credit. The Company also has access 
to debt and equity capital markets, including its shelf registration statement.  

The following table reflects the Company's debt to total capitalization percentage and ratio of earnings to fixed charges as of and for the years 
ended December 31:  

 

REGULATION AND COMPETITION  

The communications industry continues to undergo various fundamental regulatory, legislative, competitive and technological changes that 
make it difficult to determine the form or degree of future regulation and competition affecting the Company's telephone and wireless 
operations. These changes may have a significant impact on the future financial performance of all communications companies.  

Events affecting the communications industry  

In 1996 the United States Congress enacted the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "1996 Act"), which obligates LECs to permit 
competitors to interconnect their facilities to the LEC's network and to take various other steps that are designed to promote competition. The 
1996 Act provides certain exemptions for rural LECs such as those operated by the Company. Under the FCC's August 1996 order 

                                                    1999     1998      1997  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
 
Debt to total capitalization percentage             53.7%    63.0      67.2  
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges                  2.79     2.25      7.80  
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges excluding 
  gain on sale or exchange of assets                2.47     1.96      4.87  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  



implementing most of the 1996 Act's interconnection provisions, rural LECs have the burden of proving the availability of these exemptions.  

Prior to and since the enactment of the 1996 Act, the FCC and a number of state legislative and regulatory bodies have taken steps to foster 
local exchange competition. Coincident with this recent movement toward increased competition has been the gradual reduction of regulatory 
oversight of LECs. These cumulative changes have led to the continued growth of various companies providing services that compete with 
LECs' services. Wireless services entities are also expected to increasingly compete with LECs.  

The 1996 Act authorized the establishment of new federal and state universal service funds to provide support to eligible telecommunications 
carriers. These new funds are intended to replace existing federal support mechanisms that currently provide approximately 7.6% of the 
Company's consolidated revenues. In October 1999 the FCC adopted an order implementing a new universal service support mechanism for 
non-rural carriers for high cost and rural markets. This order will shift non-rural telephone companies to a forward-looking cost model in 
determining their future universal service support. Because all of the Company's LEC's have been designated as rural telephone companies, this 
order will not directly impact the Company. However, this order may establish the benchmark for the treatment of universal service support 
funding for rural carriers. The Company's LECs will continue to receive payments under the existing federal support mechanisms for rural 
carriers until the FCC adopts funding support mechanisms based on forward-looking economic costs, which it is required to do, but no earlier 
than January 2001.  

In September 1998 the FCC initiated a proceeding to represcribe the authorized rate of return for interstate access services provided by LECs. 
The FCC periodically represcribes this rate of return to ensure that the service rates filed by incumbent LECs subject to rate of return regulation 
continue to be just and reasonable. It is uncertain whether or by how much the FCC may lower the authorized rate of return. For rate of return 
companies, the FCC is considering how other unresolved issues such as jurisdictional separations, access charge reform and universal service 
must be addressed before represcribing rate of return.  

Competition to provide traditional telephone or wireless services has thus far affected large urban areas to a greater extent than rural, suburban 
and small urban areas such as those in which the Company's operations are located. The Company does not believe such competition is likely 
to materially affect it in the near term. The Company further believes that it may benefit from having the opportunity to observe the effects of 
these developments in large urban markets. The Company will continue to monitor ongoing changes in regulation, competition and technology 
and consider which developments provide the most favorable opportunities for the Company to pursue.  

Recent events affecting the Company  

During 1999 the Company's revenues from the USF totaled approximately $127.5 million (of which $5.2 million related to the Company's 
Alaska based operations). During 1998, such revenues totaled $127.6 million (of which $13.4 million related to the Alaska based operations.) 
Although the Company may experience a reduction in its federal support revenues at some point in the future, management believes it is 
premature to assess or estimate the ultimate impact thereof. There can be no assurance, however, that such impact will not be material.  

During the last few years, several states in which the Company has substantial operations took legislative or regulatory steps to further 
introduce competition into the LEC business. While the Company is aware of only a few companies which have requested authorization to 
provide local exchange service in the Company's service areas, it is anticipated that similar action may be taken by others in the future.  

In mid-1997 the Louisiana Public Service Commission adopted a Consumer Price Protection Plan which froze the local rates and access rates 
that can be charged by the Company's LECs operating in Louisiana. Certain other states have implemented various forms of alternative 
regulation plans, the impact of which has not been material either individually or in the aggregate to the results of operations of the Company.  

Certain long distance carriers continue to request that the Company reduce intrastate access tariffed rates for certain of its LECs. In addition, 
the Company continues to receive pressure from other cellular operators to reduce roaming rates in the Company's cellular markets. There is no 
assurance that these requests will not result in reduced intrastate access revenues and/or roaming revenues in the future.  

The Company anticipates that regulatory changes and competitive pressures may result in future revenue reductions in its telephone operations. 
However, the Company anticipates that such reductions may be minimized by increases in revenues attributable to the continued demand for 
enhanced services and new product offerings. While the Company expects its telephone revenues to continue to grow, its internal telephone 
revenue growth rate may slow during upcoming periods.  

Other matters  

The Company's regulated telephone operations are subject to the provisions of SFAS 71, under which the Company is required to account for 
the economic effects of the rate-making process, including the recognition of depreciation of plant and equipment over lives approved by 
regulators. The ongoing applicability of SFAS 71 to the Company's regulated telephone operations is being monitored due to the changing 
regulatory, competitive and legislative environments. When the regulated operations of the Company no longer qualify for the application of 
SFAS 71, the net adjustments required will result in a material, extraordinary, noncash charge against earnings. While the amount of such 
charge cannot be precisely estimated at this time, management believes that the noncash, after-tax, extraordinary charge would be between 
$300 million and $350 million. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.  

The Company has certain obligations based on federal, state and local laws relating to the protection of the environment. Costs of compliance 



through 1999 have not been material, and the Company currently has no reason to believe that such costs will become material.  

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.  

The Company is not exposed to material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in interest rates on long-term obligations since 
the majority of the Company's long-term obligations are fixed rate. At December 31, 1999, the Company estimates that the fair value of the 
Company's long-term debt was $2.0 billion which was determined by comparing the overall weighted average rate of the Company's long-term 
debt of 7.0% and an overall weighted maturity of 12 years to terms and rates currently available in long-term financing markets. Market risk is 
estimated as the potential decrease in fair value of the Company's long-term debt resulting from a hypothetical increase of 70 basis points in 
interest rates (ten percent of the Company's overall weighted average borrowing rate). Such an increase in interest rates would result in 
approximately a $89.0 million decrease in fair value of the Company's long-term debt. In late 1997 and early 1998 the Company utilized 
interest rate hedge contracts to manage its interest rate risk related to its January 1998 issuance of $765.0 million of senior notes and 
debentures. In February 2000, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge contract designed to reduce its interest rate risk with respect to 
$100 million of long-term public debt that it expects to incur in connection with financing its pending acquisitions of local exchange assets in 
Arkansas, Missouri and Wisconsin. It is possible that the Company will enter into additional interest rate hedges for the same purpose over the 
next several months.  

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

Report of Management  

The Shareholders  
CenturyTel, Inc.:  

Management has prepared and is responsible for the Company's consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include amounts determined using our best 
judgments and estimates with consideration given to materiality.  

The Company maintains internal control systems and related policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
accounting records accurately reflect business transactions and that the transactions are in accordance with management's authorization. The 
design, monitoring and revision of the systems of internal control involve, among other things, our judgment with respect to the relative cost 
and expected benefits of specific control measures. Additionally, the Company maintains an internal auditing function which independently 
evaluates the effectiveness of internal controls, policies and procedures and formally reports on the adequacy and effectiveness thereof.  

The Company's consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent certified public accountants, who have 
expressed their opinion with respect to the fairness of the consolidated financial statements. Their audit was conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, which includes the consideration of the Company's internal controls to the extent necessary to form an 
independent opinion on the consolidated financial statements prepared by management.  

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of directors who are not officers or employees of the Company. The Committee 
meets periodically with the independent certified public accountants, internal auditors and management. The Committee considers the audit 
scope and discusses internal control, financial and reporting matters. Both the independent and internal auditors have free access to the 
Committee.  

 

Independent Auditors' Report  

The Board of Directors  
CenturyTel, Inc.:  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries as listed in Item 14a(i). In connection with our 
audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedules as listed in Item 14a(ii). These 
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 
-------------------------- 
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the 
related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, 
in all material respects, the information set forth therein.  

 

CENTURYTEL, INC.  
Consolidated Statements of Income  

 

CENTURYTEL, INC.  
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  

/s/  KPMG LLP 
---------------- 
KPMG LLP 
 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
January 26, 2000 

                                                                  Year ended December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
                                                            1999           1998           1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
                                                            (Dollars, except per share amounts, 
                                                                  and shares in thousands) 
 
OPERATING REVENUES 
     Telephone                                        $ 1,142,593      1,091,610        530,597 
     Wireless                                             422,269        407,827        307,742 
     Other                                                111,807         77,648         63,182 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
         Total operating revenues                       1,676,669      1,577,085        901,521 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES 
     Cost of sales and operating expenses                 819,784        768,720        474,256 
     Depreciation and amortization                        348,816        328,554        159,495 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
         Total operating expenses                       1,168,600      1,097,274        633,751 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
 
OPERATING INCOME                                          508,069        479,811        267,770 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 
     Gain on sale or exchange of assets, net               62,808         49,859        169,640 
     Interest expense                                    (150,557)      (167,552)       (56,474)  
     Income from unconsolidated cellular entities          27,675         32,869         27,794 
     Minority interest                                    (27,913)       (12,797)        (5,498)  
     Other income and expense                               9,190          5,268          5,109 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
         Total other income (expense)                     (78,797)       (92,353)       140,571 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
 
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE                          429,272        387,458        408,341 
     Income tax expense                                   189,503        158,701        152,363 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- 
 
NET INCOME                                            $   239,769        228,757        255,978 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE                              $      1.72           1.67           1.89 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE                            $      1.70           1.64           1.87 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE                            $      .180           .173           .164 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING                          138,848        137,010        134,984 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING                        141,432        140,105        137,412 
=================================================== ============================================ 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 



 

                                                                   Year ended December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
                                                              1999          1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
                                                                   (Dollars in thousands) 
 
 
Net income                                               $  239,769       228,757       255,978  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: 
  Unrealized holding gains arising during 
    period, net of $38,473, $8,509 and $6,404 tax            71,449        15,802        11,893  
  Reclassification adjustment for gains included 
    in net income, net of $7,702 and $11,027 tax            (14,304)      (20,478)            -  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
  Other comprehensive income, net of $30,771, 
    ($2,518) and $6,404 tax                                  57,145        (4,676)       11,893  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
 
Comprehensive income                                     $  296,914       224,081       267,871  
=================================================== ============================================  
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 

                                CENTURYTEL, INC. 
                           Consolidated Balance She ets 
 
 
                                                                                  December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                                             1999            1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                                            (Dollars in thousands) 
                                     ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
   Cash and cash equivalents                                         $      56,640           5,742 
   Accounts receivable 
      Customers, less allowance of $4,150 and $4,15 5                       128,338         130,289 
      Other                                                                 64,719          55,109 
   Materials and supplies, at average cost                                  28,769          23,709 
   Other                                                                     7,607          11,389 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
         Total current assets                                              286,073         226,238 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT                                        2,256,458       2,351,453 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 
   Excess cost of net assets acquired, less accumul ated 
    amortization of $165,327 and $133,135                                1,644,884       1,956,701 
   Other                                                                   517,992         401,063 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
         Total investments and other assets                              2,162,876       2,357,764 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
TOTAL ASSETS                                                         $   4,705,407       4,935,455 
=================================================== =============================================== 
 
                             LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
   Current maturities of long-term debt                              $      62,098          53,010 
   Accounts payable                                                         78,450          87,627 
   Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
      Salaries and benefits                                                 34,570          36,900 
      Taxes                                                                 40,999          33,411 
      Interest                                                              37,232          36,926 
      Other                                                                 22,172          24,249 
   Advance billings and customer deposits                                   33,656          32,721 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
         Total current liabilities                                         309,177         304,844 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT                                                           2,078,311       2,558,000 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES                                     469,927         541,129 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
   Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 
    350,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 



 

CENTURYTEL, INC.  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  

 

    139,945,920 and 138,082,926 shares                                     139,946         138,083 
   Paid-in capital                                                         493,432         451,535 
   Unrealized holding gain on investments, net of t axes                     64,362           7,217 
   Retained earnings                                                     1,146,967         932,611 
   Unearned ESOP shares                                                     (4,690)         (6,070)  
   Preferred stock - non-redeemable                                          7,975           8,106 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
         Total stockholders' equity                                      1,847,992       1,531,482 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY                                           $ 4,705,407       4,935,455 
=================================================== =============================================== 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 

                                                                         Year ended December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
                                                                  1999             1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
                                                                         (Dollars in thousands) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  Net income                                                $   239,769          228,757       255,978  
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
   cash provided by operating activities 
  Depreciation and amortization                                 348,816          328,554       159,495  
  Income from unconsolidated cellular entities                  (27,675)         (32,869)      (27,794 )  
  Minority interest                                              27,913           12,797         5,498  
  Deferred income taxes                                         (17,139)          16,196        16,230  
  Gain on sale of assets, net                                   (62,808)         (49,859)     (169,640 )  
  Changes in current assets and current liabilities  
      Accounts receivable                                       (15,181)         (15,227)        7,649  
      Accounts payable                                          (11,469)           4,249       (25,440 )  
      Other accrued taxes                                       (59,571)         (34,908)       58,205  
      Other current assets and other current 
       liabilities, net                                          (1,354)          15,033         7,263  
  Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabiliti es            (5,311)          (1,706)        2,173  
  Other, net                                                     (7,288)          (3,243)        7,702  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
      Net cash provided by operating activities                 408,702          467,774       297,319  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  Acquisitions, net of cash acquired                            (20,972)        (225,569)   (1,543,814 )  
  Payments for property, plant and equipment                   (389,980)        (310,919)     (181,225 )  
  Proceeds from sale of assets                                  484,467          132,307       202,705  
  Distributions from unconsolidated cellular entiti es            22,219           26,515        16,825  
  Purchase of life insurance investment, net                     (2,545)          (2,786)      (12,962 )  
  Proceeds from note receivable                                       -                -        22,500  
  Other, net                                                    (23,416)           4,807        (7,156 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
      Net cash provided by (used in) investing acti vities        69,773         (375,645)   (1,503,127 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt                       15,533          957,668     1,312,546  
  Payments of long-term debt                                   (438,399)      (1,015,015)      (79,203 )  
  Payment of hedge contracts                                          -          (40,237)            -  
  Proceeds from issuance of common stock                         19,182           15,033        14,156  
  Payment of debt issuance costs                                      -           (6,625)            -  
  Cash dividends                                                (25,413)         (24,179)      (22,671 )  
  Other, net                                                      1,520              951        (1,405 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
      Net cash provided by (used in) financing acti vities      (427,577)        (112,404)    1,223,423  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s             50,898          (20,275)       17,615  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                    5,742           26,017         8,402  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR                    $    56,640            5,742        26,017  
=================================================== ===================================================  
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 

                                CENTURYTEL, INC. 
                 Consolidated Statements of Stockho lders' Equity 
 
 



 

CENTURYTEL, INC,  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 1999  

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

                                                                                    Year ended Decembe r 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                                                1999         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                                               (Dollars and shares in thousands) 
COMMON STOCK 
    Balance at beginning of year                                          $   138,083       91,104        59,859 
    Issuance of common stock for acquisitions                                       -           28            75 
    Conversion of convertible securities into commo n stock                        330          169           237 
    Issuance of common stock through dividend 
      reinvestment, incentive and benefit plans                                 1,533          754           565 
    Three-for-two stock split                                                       -       46,028        30,368 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                           139,946      138,083        91,104 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
PAID-IN CAPITAL 
    Balance at beginning of year                                              451,535      469,586       474,607 
    Issuance of common stock for acquisitions                                       -        1,059         3,241 
    Conversion of convertible securities into commo n stock                      3,101        3,131         4,998 
    Issuance of common stock through dividend 
      reinvestment, incentive and benefit plans                                17,649       14,279        13,591 
    Amortization of unearned compensation and other                             21,147        9,508         3,517 
    Three-for-two stock split                                                       -      (46,028)      (30,368)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                           493,432      451,535       469,586 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
UNREALIZED HOLDING GAIN ON INVESTMENTS, NET OF TAXE S 
    Balance at beginning of year                                                7,217       11,893             - 
    Change in unrealized holding gain on investment s, net of taxes             57,145       (4,676)       11,893 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                            64,362        7,217        11,893 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
RETAINED EARNINGS 
    Balance at beginning of year                                              932,611      728,033       494,726 
    Net income                                                                239,769      228,757       255,978 
    Cash dividends declared 
        Common stock - $.18, $.173 and $.164 per sh are                        (25,010)     (23,771)      (22,211)  
        Preferred stock                                                          (403)        (408)         (460)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                         1,146,967      932,611       728,033 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
UNEARNED ESOP SHARES 
    Balance at beginning of year                                               (6,070)      (8,450)      (11,080)  
    Release of ESOP shares                                                      1,380        2,380         2,630 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                            (4,690)      (6,070)       (8,450)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
PREFERRED STOCK - NON-REDEEMABLE 
    Balance at beginning of year                                                8,106        8,106        10,041 
    Conversion of preferred stock into common stock                               (131)           -        (1,935)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                             7,975        8,106         8,106 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
 
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY                                                $ 1,847,992    1,531,482     1,300,272 
=================================================== =================================================== ========== 
 
COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 
    Balance at beginning of year                                              138,083       91,104        59,859 
    Issuance of common stock for acquisitions                                       -           28            75 
    Conversion of convertible securities into commo n stock                        330          169           237 
    Issuance of common stock through dividend 
      reinvestment, incentive and benefit plans                                 1,533          754           565 
    Three-for-two stock split                                                       -       46,028        30,368 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
             Balance at end of year                                           139,946      138,083        91,104 
=================================================== =================================================== ========== 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 



Principles of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements of CenturyTel, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") include the 
accounts of CenturyTel, Inc. ("CenturyTel") and its majority-owned subsidiaries and partnerships. The Company's regulated telephone 
operations are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation." Investments in cellular entities where the Company does not own a majority interest are accounted for using the equity method 
of accounting.  

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates.  

Revenue recognition - Revenues are recognized when earned. Certain of the Company's telephone subsidiaries participate in revenue sharing 
arrangements with other telephone companies for interstate revenue and for certain intrastate revenue. Such sharing arrangements are funded 
by toll revenue and/or access charges within state jurisdictions and by access charges in the interstate market. Revenues earned through the 
various sharing arrangements are initially recorded based on the Company's estimates.  

Property, plant and equipment - Telephone plant is stated substantially at original cost. Normal retirements of telephone plant are charged 
against accumulated depreciation, along with the costs of removal, less salvage, with no gain or loss recognized. Renewals and betterments of 
plant and equipment are capitalized while repairs, as well as renewals of minor items, are charged to operating expense. Depreciation of 
telephone plant is provided on the straight line method using class or overall group rates acceptable to regulatory authorities; such rates range 
from 1.8% to 25%.  

Non-telephone property is stated at cost and, when sold or retired, a gain or loss is recognized. Depreciation of such property is provided on the 
straight line method over estimated service lives ranging from three to 30 years.  

Long-lived assets and excess cost of net assets acquired (goodwill) - The carrying value of long-lived assets, including allocated goodwill, is 
reviewed for impairment at least annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying value may not be 
recoverable, by assessing the recoverability of such carrying value through estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be 
generated by the assets or the acquired business. The excess cost of net assets acquired of substantially all of the Company's acquisitions 
accounted for as purchases is being amortized over 40 years.  

Affiliated transactions - Certain service subsidiaries of CenturyTel provide installation and maintenance services, materials and supplies, and 
managerial, technical, accounting and administrative services to subsidiaries. In addition, CenturyTel provides and bills management services 
to subsidiaries and in certain instances makes interest bearing advances to finance construction of plant and purchases of equipment. These 
transactions are recorded by the Company's telephone subsidiaries at their cost to the extent permitted by regulatory authorities. Intercompany 
profit on transactions with regulated affiliates is limited to a reasonable return on investment and has not been eliminated in connection with 
consolidating the results of operations of CenturyTel and its subsidiaries. Intercompany profit on transactions with nonregulated affiliates has 
been eliminated.  

Income taxes - CenturyTel files a consolidated federal income tax return with its eligible subsidiaries. The Company uses the asset and liability 
method of accounting for income taxes under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Investment 
tax credits related to telephone plant have been deferred and are being amortized as a reduction of federal income tax expense over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets giving rise to the credits.  

Derivative financial instruments - The Company has entered into interest rate hedge contracts in anticipation of certain debt issuances to 
manage interest rate exposure. Interest rate contracts generally involve the exchange of fixed and floating rate interest payments without the 
exchange of the underlying principal. Net amounts paid or received are reflected as adjustments to interest expense. The Company had no 
outstanding interest rate hedge contracts as of December 31, 1999. The Company does not utilize derivative financial instruments for trading or 
other speculative purposes.  

Earnings per share - Basic earnings per share amounts are determined on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share give effect to all potential dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the 
period.  

Stock compensation - The Company accounts for employee stock compensation plans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board 
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," as allowed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, 
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation."  

Cash equivalents - The Company considers short-term investments with a maturity at date of purchase of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  

Reclassifications - Certain amounts previously reported for prior years have been reclassified to conform with the 1999 presentation, including 
the reclassification of the Company's personal communication services operations from other operations to the wireless segment.  



(2) Investments in Unconsolidated Cellular Entities  

The Company's share of earnings from cellular entities in which it does not own a majority interest was $28.8 million, $34.1 million and $29.4 
million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, and is included, net of $1.1 million, $1.2 million and $1.6 million of amortization of goodwill 
attributable to such investments, in "Income from unconsolidated cellular entities" in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Income. Over 
86% of the 1999 income from unconsolidated cellular entities was attributable to the following investments.  

 

The following summarizes the unaudited combined assets, liabilities and equity, and the unaudited combined results of operations, of the 
cellular entities in which the Company's investments (as of December 31, 1999 and 1998) were accounted for by the equity method.  

 

 

At December 31, 1999, $65.5 million of the Company's consolidated retained earnings represented undistributed earnings of unconsolidated 
cellular entities.  

(3) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Net property, plant and equipment at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was composed of the following:  

                                                              Ownership interest  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
GTE Mobilnet of Austin Limited Partnership                            35% 
Milwaukee SMSA Limited Partnership                                    18% 
Alltel Cellular Associates of Arkansas Limited Part nership            36% 
Detroit SMSA Limited Partnership                                       3% 
Michigan RSA #9 Limited Partnership                                   43% 
Cellular North Michigan Network General Partnership                    43% 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  

Year ended December 31,                                    1999            1998 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                          (Dollars in thousands)  
                                                                (unaudited) 
Assets 
     Current assets                                $     289,355        293,339 
     Property and other noncurrent assets                822,771        759,665 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                   $   1,112,126      1,053,004 
=================================================== ============================ 
 
Liabilities and equity 
     Current liabilities                           $     130,161        109,787 
     Noncurrent liabilities                               43,423         25,099 
     Equity                                              938,542        918,118 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                   $   1,112,126      1,053,004 
=================================================== ============================ 

Year ended December 31,                          19 99         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                     (Dollars in thousands) 
                                                           (unaudited) 
Results of operations 
     Revenues                             $  1,398, 314    1,281,803    1,277,524  
     Operating income                     $    427, 274      430,859      419,246  
     Net income                           $    416, 740      435,744      395,990  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  

December 31,                                              1999           1998 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
                                                         (Dollars in thousands) 
Telephone, at original cost 
     Cable and wire                                $  1,904,957       2,046,638 
     Central office                                   1,149,095       1,197,438 
     General support                                    247,605         269,431 
     Information origination/termination                 58,380          73,984 
     Construction in progress                            80,682          66,241 
     Other                                                5,213           6,520 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                      3,445,932       3,660,252 
     Accumulated depreciation                        (1,609,626)     (1,661,315)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                      1,836,306       1,998,937 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
Wireless, at cost 



 

Depreciation expense was $296.8 million, $280.5 million and $142.6 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The composite depreciation 
rate for telephone properties was 7.0% for 1999, 6.9% for 1998 and 7.4% for 1997.  

(4) INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS  

Investments and other assets at December 31, 1999 and 1998 were composed of the following:  

 

Goodwill amortization of $52.0 million, $47.8 million and $16.6 million for 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, is included in "Depreciation 
and amortization" in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Income.  

The Company's investments in marketable equity securities are classified as available for sale and are reported at fair value with unrealized 
holding gains and losses reported, net of taxes, as a separate component of stockholders' equity. As of December 31, 1999, gross unrealized 
holding gains of the Company's marketable equity securities were $99.0 million.  

(5) LONG-TERM DEBT  

     Cell site                                          353,705         324,292 
     General support                                     96,774          82,945 
     Construction in progress                            17,303          23,733 
     Other                                                4,943           5,927 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                        472,725         436,897 
     Accumulated depreciation                          (217,056)       (178,970)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                        255,669         257,927 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
Other, at cost 
     General support                                    242,780         172,446 
     Other                                               32,470          20,063 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                        275,250         192,509 
     Accumulated depreciation                          (110,767)        (97,920)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                        164,483          94,589 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
Net property, plant and equipment                  $  2,256,458       2,351,453 
=================================================== ============================ 

December 31,                                                               1999             1998 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------- 
                                                                           (Dollars in thousands)  
 
Excess cost of net assets acquired, less accumulate d amortization    $ 1,644,884        1,956,701  
Investments in unconsolidated cellular entities                          125,901          118,016  
Cash surrender value of life insurance contracts                          90,313           84,976  
Marketable equity securities                                             102,633           29,496  
Other                                                                    199,145          168,575  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------  
                                                                     $ 2,162,876        2,357,764  
=================================================== ==============================================  

December 31,                                                                  1999            1998 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------  
                                                                             (Dollars in thousands) 
 
CenturyTel 
      6.79%* Senior Credit Facility, due through 20 02                   $    339,813        752,063 
      6.875% senior debentures, due 2028                                     425,000        425,000 
      6.30% senior notes, due 2008                                           240,000        240,000 
      6.15% senior notes, due 2005                                           100,000        100,000 
      8.25% senior notes, due 2024                                           100,000        100,000 
      7.20% senior notes, due 2025                                           100,000        100,000 
      6.10%* notes to banks, due 2002                                         40,000         40,000 
      7.75% senior notes, due 2004                                            50,000         50,000 
      6.55% senior notes, due 2005                                            50,000         50,000 
      9.38% senior notes, due through 2003                                    16,025         18,900 
      7.00%* Employee Stock Ownership Plan commitme nt, 
           due in installments through 2004                                    4,690          6,070 
      Other                                                                      225            266 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
                  Total CenturyTel                                         1,465,753      1,882,299 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
 



 

The approximate annual debt maturities for the five years subsequent to December 31, 1999 are as follows: 2000 - $62.1 million; 2001 - $146.4 
million; 2002 - $353.9 million; 2003 - $66.4 million; and 2004 - $70.5 million.  

Short-term borrowings of $40.0 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998 were classified as long-term debt on the accompanying balance sheets 
because the Company had adequate committed borrowing capacity available under long-term revolving facilities.  

Certain of the Company's loan agreements contain various restrictions, among which are limitations regarding issuance of additional debt, 
payment of cash dividends, reacquisition of the Company's capital stock and other matters. At December 31, 1999, all of the consolidated 
retained earnings reflected on the balance sheet was available for the declaration of dividends.  

The transfer of funds from certain consolidated subsidiaries to CenturyTel is restricted by various loan agreements. Subsidiaries which have 
loans from government agencies and cooperative lending associations, or have issued first mortgage bonds, generally may not loan or advance 
any funds to CenturyTel, but may pay dividends if certain financial ratios are met. At December 31, 1999, restricted net assets of subsidiaries 
were $608.0 million. Subsidiaries' retained earnings in excess of amounts restricted by debt covenants totaled $745.8 million.  

Most of the Company's telephone property, plant and equipment is pledged to secure the long-term debt of subsidiaries.  

On January 15, 1998, CenturyTel issued $100 million of 7-year, 6.15% senior notes (Series E); $240 million of 10-year, 6.3% senior notes 
(Series F); and $425 million of 30-year, 6.875% debentures (Series G) under its shelf registration statements. The net proceeds of 
approximately $758 million (excluding payment obligations of approximately $40 million related to interest rate hedging effected in 
connection with the offering) were used to reduce the bank indebtedness incurred under the Senior Credit Facility. This facility carries floating 
rate interest based upon London InterBank Offered Rates for short-term periods.  

In mid-January 1998, the Company settled numerous interest rate hedge contracts that had been entered into in anticipation of the above-
mentioned debt issuances. The amounts paid by the Company upon settlement of the hedge contracts aggregated approximately $40 million, 
which is being amortized as interest expense over the lives of the underlying debt instruments. The effective weighted average interest rate of 
the debt incurred in January 1998 (after giving consideration to these payment obligations) is 7.15%.  

CenturyTel's telephone subsidiaries had approximately $131.5 million in commitments for long-term financing from the Rural Utilities Service 
available at December 31, 1999. Approximately $219.1 million of additional borrowings were available to the Company through committed 
lines of credit with various banks.  

(6) POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS  

The Company sponsors defined benefit health care plans that provide postretirement benefits to substantially all retired full-time employees.  

The following is a reconciliation for the benefit obligation and the plan assets.  

Subsidiaries 
      First mortgage debt 
         5.88%* notes, payable to agencies of the U . S. government 
           and cooperative lending associations, du e in installments 
           through 2025                                                      290,715       341,817 
         7.98% notes, due through 2002                                         5,732          5,871 
      Other debt 
         7.48%* unsecured medium-term notes, due th rough 2008                333,657        335,667 
         8.07%* notes, due in installments through 2020                       25,520         29,301 
         6.50% note, due in installments through 20 01                          6,399          9,308 
         5.61%* capital lease obligations, due thro ugh 2003                   12,633          6,747 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
                  Total subsidiaries                                         674,656        728,711 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total long-term debt                                                       2,140,409      2,611,010 
Less current maturities                                                       62,098         53,010 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities                            $  2,078,311      2,558,000 
=================================================== ================================================ 
* weighted average interest rate at December 31, 19 99 

December 31,                                                     1999          1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                                      (Dollars in thousands) 
Change in benefit obligation 
     Benefit obligation at beginning of year                $  172,323       152,632        59,157 
     Service cost                                                4,850         5,519         2,578 
     Interest cost                                              10,089        10,744         5,047 
     Plan amendments                                            (2,492)            -             - 
     Participant contributions                                     419           298           119 
     Acquisition                                                     -             -        80,166 



 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1999, 1998 and 1997 included the following components:  

 

The following table sets forth the amounts recognized as liabilities for postretirement benefits at December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997.  

 

Assumptions used in accounting for postretirement benefits as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 were:  

 

For measurement purposes, a 7.4% annual rate in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2000 and beyond. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost rates would have the following effects:  

 

(7) DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES  

Deferred credits and other liabilities at December 31, 1999 and 1998 were composed of the following:  

     Actuarial (gain) loss                                     (23,855)        9,720         7,789 
     Benefits paid                                              (4,610)       (6,590)       (2,224)  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
     Benefit obligation at end of year                      $  156,724       172,323       152,632 
=================================================== =============================================== 
 
Change in plan assets (primarily listed stocks and bonds) 
     Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year          $   35,799        34,618             - 
     Return on assets                                            2,961         4,080             - 
     Employer contributions                                      7,212         3,393             - 
     Participant contributions                                     419           298             - 
     Acquisition                                                     -             -        34,618 
     Benefits paid                                              (4,610)       (6,590)            - 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
     Fair value of plan assets at end of year               $   41,781        35,799        34,618 
=================================================== =============================================== 

Year ended December 31,                                        1999        1998        1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Service cost                                               $   4,850       5,519      2,578 
Interest cost                                                 10,089      10,744      5,047 
Expected return on plan assets                                (2,961)     (3,250)      (458)  
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial (gains) loss es           (565)        430        292 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost                 (129)        121        121 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 
Net periodic post-retirement benefit cost                  $  11,284      13,564      7,580 
=================================================== ======================================== 

Year ended December 31,                     1999           1998           1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                     (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Benefit obligation                    $  (156,724)      (172,323)      (152,632)  
Fair value of plan assets                  41,781         35,799         34,618 
Unamortized prior service cost             (1,303)         1,060          1,182 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss               707         23,972         14,622 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
Accrued benefit cost                  $  (115,539)      (111,492)      (102,210)  
=================================================== ============================ 

                                                            1999           1998 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
Weighted average assumptions 
      Discount rate                                         7.25%       6.5-6.75  
      Expected return on plan assets                        10.0%           10.0  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  

                                                           1-Percentage       1-Percentage 
                                                          Point Increase     Point Decrease 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------  
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
Effect on total of service and interest cost compon ents     $    975                  (951) 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation                 $  8,517                (7,871) 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------  

December 31,                                           1999              1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------  



 

(8) STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY  

Common stock - At December 31, 1999, unissued shares of CenturyTel common stock were reserved as follows:  

 

Under CenturyTel's Articles of Incorporation each share of common stock beneficially owned continuously by the same person since May 30, 
1987 generally entitles the holder thereof to ten votes per share. All other shares entitle the holder to one vote per share. At December 31, 1999, 
the holders of 11.4 million shares of common stock were entitled to ten votes per share.  

Preferred stock - As of December 31, 1999, CenturyTel had 2.0 million shares of preferred stock, $25 par value per share, authorized. At 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, there were 319,000 and 324,238 shares, respectively, of outstanding preferred stock. Holders of outstanding 
CenturyTel preferred stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends, receive preferential distributions equal to $25 per share plus unpaid 
dividends upon CenturyTel's liquidation and vote as a single class with the holders of common stock.  

Shareholders' Rights Plan - In 1996 the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one preference share purchase right for each common share 
outstanding. Such rights become exercisable if and when a potential acquiror takes certain steps to acquire 15% or more of CenturyTel's 
common stock. Upon the occurrence of such an acquisition, each right held by shareholders other than the acquiror may be exercised to receive 
that number of shares of common stock or other securities of CenturyTel (or, in certain situations, the acquiring company) which at the time of 
such transaction will have a market value of two times the exercise price of the right.  

Stock split - On February 23, 1999, CenturyTel's Board of Directors declared a three-for-two common stock split effected as a 50% stock 
dividend in March 1999. All per share data included in this report for periods prior to March 1999 have been restated to reflect this stock split. 
An amount equal to the par value of the additional common shares issued pursuant to the stock split was reflected as a transfer from paid-in-
capital to common stock on the consolidated financial statements for 1998.  

(9) STOCK OPTION PROGRAM  

CenturyTel has an incentive compensation program which allows the Board of Directors, through a subcommittee to the Compensation 
Committee, to grant incentives to employees in any one or a combination of the following forms:  
incentive and non-qualified stock options; stock appreciation rights; restricted stock; and performance shares. As of December 31, 1999, 
CenturyTel had reserved 6.5 million shares of common stock which may be issued under the incentive compensation program.  

Under the program, options have been granted to employees at a price either equal to or exceeding the then-current market price. All of the 
options expire ten years after the date of grant and the vesting period ranges from immediate to three years.  

During 1999 the Company granted 83,743 options (the "1999 Options") at market price. The weighted average fair value of each of the 1999 
Options was estimated as of the date of grant to be $15.90 using an option-pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield - .4%; 
expected volatility - 20%; risk-free interest rate - 6.6%; and expected option life - seven years.  

During 1998 the Company granted 121,667 options (the "1998 Options") at market price. The weighted average fair value of each of the 1998 
Options was estimated as of the date of grant to be $8.88 using an option-pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield - .5%; 
expected volatility - 20%; risk-free interest rate - 4.8%; and expected option life - seven years.  

                                                       (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Deferred federal and state income taxes          $    269,988          332,151  
Accrued postretirement benefit costs                  112,876          109,000  
Minority interest                                      43,204           44,970  
Regulatory liability - income taxes                    12,469           17,380  
Deferred investment tax credits                         1,724            3,939  
Other                                                  29,666           33,689  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------  
                                                 $    469,927          541,129  
=================================================== ===========================  

December 31,                                                        1999 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- 
                                                               (In thousands) 
 
Incentive compensation program                                      6,492 
Acquisitions                                                        4,572 
Employee stock purchase plan                                          999 
Dividend reinvestment plan                                            739 
Conversion of convertible preferred stock                             435 
Other employee benefit plans                                        2,563 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------  
                                                                   15,800 
=================================================== ===========================  



During 1997 the Company granted 1,293,909 options (the "1997 Options") at market price. The weighted average fair value of each of the 
1997 Options was estimated as of the date of grant to be $5.68 using an option-pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield - 
.8%; expected volatility - 25%; risk-free interest rate - 6.5%; and expected option life - eight years.  

Stock option transactions during 1999, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:  

 

The following tables summarize certain information about CenturyTel's stock options at December 31, 1999.  

 

 

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," in accounting for its 
program. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for the program. If compensation cost for CenturyTel's program had been 
determined consistent with SFAS 123, the Company's net income and earnings per share on a pro forma basis for 1999, 1998 and 1997 would 
have been as follows:  

                                                  N umber            Average 
                                                of options           price 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------- 
 
Outstanding December 31, 1996                   5,2 43,051           $  12.11  
       Exercised                                 (8 89,173)             10.18  
       Granted                                  1,2 93,909              13.51  
       Forfeited                                  ( 38,856)             13.39  
--------------------------------------------------- ------ 
Outstanding December 31, 1997                   5,6 08,931              12.73  
       Exercised                                 (9 37,985)             11.41  
       Granted                                    1 21,667              26.25  
       Forfeited                                  ( 12,000)             13.33  
--------------------------------------------------- ------ 
Outstanding December 31, 1998                   4,7 80,613              13.35  
       Exercised                               (1,3 69,459)             10.90  
       Granted                                     83,743              40.88  
       Forfeited                                   (9,055)             37.07  
--------------------------------------------------- ------ 
 
Outstanding December 31, 1999                   3,4 85,842              14.92  
=================================================== ====== 
 
Exercisable December 31, 1998                   4,1 88,660              13.13  
=================================================== ====== 
 
Exercisable December 31, 1999                   3,3 17,004              14.32  
=================================================== ====== 

                                    Options outstan ding 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------- 
                                                  W eighted average 
          Range of                              rem aining contractual      Weighted average  
       exercise prices    Number of options       l ife outstanding          exercise price 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------- 
 
 
    $   9.63-12.30           1,060,111                   2.6                 $    11.88 
       13.33-17.64           2,248,491                   6.2                      14.91 
       23.03-26.05              55,163                   8.1                      25.85 
       26.98-31.54              46,264                   8.1                      29.08 
       39.00-46.19              75,813                   9.4                      40.88 
                             --------- 
        9.63-46.19           3,485,842                   7.0                      14.92 
                             ========= 

                               Options exercisable 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
          Range of                 Number of                 Weighted average  
       exercise prices         options exercisable            exercise price 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 
    $   9.63-12.30                  1,060,111                    $  11.88 
       13.33-17.64                  2,166,292                       14.97 
       23.03-26.05                     51,337                       26.06 
       26.98-31.54                     39,264                       28.82 
                                    --------- 
        9.63-31.54                  3,317,004                       14.32 
                                    ========= 

Year ended December 31,                       1999          1998           1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  



 

(10) EARNINGS PER SHARE  

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:  

 

The weighted average number of options to purchase shares of common stock that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per 
share because the exercise price of the option was greater than the average market price of the common stock was 20,000, 3,000 and 1,099,000 
for 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

(11) ACQUISITIONS  

On December 1, 1997, CenturyTel acquired Pacific Telecom, Inc. ("PTI") in exchange for $1.503 billion cash and assumed PTI's debt of 
approximately $725 million. To finance the acquisition, which was accounted for as a purchase, CenturyTel borrowed $1.288 billion under its 
$1.6 billion senior unsecured credit facility (the "Senior Credit Facility") dated August 28, 1997. CenturyTel paid the remainder of the PTI 
acquisition price with available cash.  

As a result of the acquisition, the Company acquired (i) telephone access lines located in four midwestern states, seven western states and 
Alaska, (ii) cellular subscribers in two midwestern states and Alaska and (iii) various wireless, cable television and other communications 
assets.  

The following pro forma information represents the consolidated results of operations of the Company as if the PTI acquisition had been 
consummated as of January 1, 1997.  

                                                   (Dollars in thousands, 
                                                  e xcept per share amounts) 
Net income 
     As reported                        $   239,769        228,757        255,978  
     Pro forma                          $   239,033        227,113        252,773  
Basic earnings per share 
     As reported                        $      1.72           1.67           1.89  
     Pro forma                          $      1.72           1.66           1.87  
Diluted earnings per share 
     As reported                        $      1.70           1.64           1.87  
     Pro forma                          $      1.69           1.62           1.84  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  

Year ended December 31,                                               1999         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                       (Dollars, except per share 
                                                                     amounts, and shares in thousands)  
Income (Numerator): 
Net income                                                     $    239,769      228,757       255,978  
Dividends applicable to preferred stock                                (403)        (408)         (460 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Net income applicable to common stock for 
  computing basic earnings per share                                239,366      228,349       255,518  
Dividends applicable to preferred stock                                 403          408           460  
Interest on convertible securities, net of taxes                        252          372           480  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computing 
  diluted earnings per share                                   $    240,021      229,129       256,458  
=================================================== ===================================================  
 
Shares (Denominator): 
Weighted average number of shares 
  outstanding during period                                         139,313      137,568       135,637  
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares 
  not committed to be released                                         (465)        (558)         (653 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
  during period for computing basic earnings per sh are              138,848      137,010       134,984  
Incremental common shares attributable to dilutive securities: 
      Conversion of convertible securities                              981        1,274         1,676  
      Shares issuable under outstanding stock optio ns                 1,603        1,821           752  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes 
  of computing diluted earnings per share                           141,432      140,105       137,412  
=================================================== ===================================================  
 
Basic earnings per share                                       $       1.72         1.67          1.89  
=================================================== ===================================================  
 
Diluted earnings per share                                     $       1.70         1.64          1.87  
=================================================== ===================================================  



 

The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if the PTI acquisition had been 
consummated as of January 1, 1997, nor is it necessarily indicative of future operating results. The actual results of operations of PTI have been 
included in the Company's consolidated financial statements only from the date of acquisition.  

On December 1, 1998, the Company acquired the assets of certain local telephone and directory operations in parts of northern and central 
Wisconsin from affiliates of Ameritech Corporation ("Ameritech"), in exchange for approximately $221 million cash. The assets included (i) 
access lines and related property and equipment in 21 predominantly rural communities in Wisconsin and (ii) Ameritech's directory publishing 
operations that relate to nine telephone directories.  

(12) ACCOUNTING FOR THE EFFECTS OF REGULATION  

The Company's regulated telephone operations are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 ("SFAS 
71"), "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." Actions of a regulator can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of 
an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asset and impose a liability on a regulated enterprise. Such regulatory assets and liabilities are 
required to be recorded and, accordingly, reflected in the balance sheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71.  

The Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 1999 included regulatory assets of approximately $570.9 million and regulatory 
liabilities of approximately $7.8 million. The $570.9 million of regulatory assets included amounts related to accumulated depreciation ($565.9 
million), assets established in connection with postretirement benefits ($690,000), income taxes ($1.5 million) and deferred financing costs 
($2.8 million). The $7.8 million of regulatory liabilities was established in connection with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 109, "Accounting For Income Taxes." Net deferred income tax liabilities related to the regulatory assets and liabilities quantified 
above were $229.4 million.  

Property, plant and equipment of the Company's regulated telephone operations has been depreciated using generally the straight line method 
over lives approved by regulators. Such depreciable lives have generally exceeded the depreciable lives used by nonregulated entities. In 
addition, in accordance with regulatory accounting, retirements of regulated telephone property have been charged to accumulated 
depreciation, along with the costs of removal, less salvage, with no gain or loss recognized. These accounting policies have resulted in 
accumulated depreciation being significantly less than if the Company's telephone operations had not been regulated.  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 101 ("SFAS 101"), "Regulated Enterprises - Accounting for the Discontinuance of 
Application of FASB Statement No. 71," specifies the accounting required when an enterprise ceases to meet the criteria for application of 
SFAS 71. SFAS 101 requires the elimination of the effects of any actions of regulators that have been recognized as assets and liabilities in 
accordance with SFAS 71 but would not have been recognized as assets and liabilities by enterprises in general, along with an adjustment of 
certain accumulated depreciation accounts to reflect the difference between recorded depreciation and the amount of depreciation that would 
have been recorded had the Company's telephone operations not been subject to rate regulation. SFAS 101 further provides that the carrying 
amounts of property, plant and equipment are to be adjusted only to the extent the assets are impaired and that impairment shall be judged in 
the same manner as for enterprises in general. Deferred tax liabilities and deferred investment tax credits will be impacted based on the change 
in the temporary differences for property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation.  

The ongoing applicability of SFAS 71 to the Company's regulated telephone operations is being monitored due to the changing regulatory, 
competitive and legislative environments, and it is possible that changes in regulation, legislation or competition or in the demand for regulated 
services or products could result in the Company's telephone operations no longer being subject to SFAS 71 in the near future. When the 
regulated operations of the Company no longer qualify for the application of SFAS 71, the net adjustments required will result in a material, 
noncash charge against earnings which will be reported as an extraordinary item. While the effect of implementing SFAS 101 cannot be 
precisely estimated at this time, management believes that the noncash, after-tax, extraordinary charge would be between $300 million and 
$350 million. For regulatory purposes, the accounting and reporting of the Company's telephone subsidiaries will not be affected by the 
discontinued application of SFAS 71.  

(13) INCOME TAXES  

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 
31, 1999 and 1998 were as follows:  

Year ended December 31,                                        1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------ 
                                                     (Dollars in thousands, 
                                                   except per share amounts)  
                                                           (unaudited) 
 
Operating revenues                                       $  1,392,268 
Net income                                                    256,992 
Diluted earnings per share                                       1.87 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------ 

December 31,                                                             1999              1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 



 

The following is a reconciliation from the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company's effective income tax rate:  

 

Income tax expense included in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

 

Income tax expense was allocated as follows:  

                                                                         (Dollars in thousands) 
Deferred tax assets 
      Postretirement benefit costs                                  $    36,851            38,023 
      Regulatory support                                                 13,504            15,509 
      Net operating loss carry forwards of an acqui red subsidiary         1,689             6,716 
      Regulatory liability                                                4,907             6,230 
      Long-term debt                                                      2,805             3,382 
      Other employee benefits                                             8,367             8,812 
      Other                                                              10,466             9,609 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 
           Gross deferred tax assets                                     78,589            88,281 
           Less valuation allowance                                      (1,689)           (6,716)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 
           Net deferred tax assets                                       76,900            81,565 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 
 
Deferred tax liabilities 
      Property, plant and equipment, primarily due to 
        depreciation differences                                       (247,571)         (280,859)  
      Excess cost of net assets acquired                                (39,070)          (16,006)  
      Basis difference in assets to be sold                                   -           (66,998)  
      Deferred debt costs                                                (3,128)          (13,309)  
      Customer base                                                      (9,993)          (11,381)  
      Marketable equity securities                                      (34,656)           (8,928)  
      Intercompany profits                                               (3,259)           (3,128)  
      Other                                                              (9,211)          (13,107)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 
           Gross deferred tax liabilities                              (346,888)         (413,716)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 
Net deferred tax liability                                          $  (269,988)         (332,151)  
=================================================== ============================================== 

Year ended December 31,                                                1999       1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                       (Percentage of pre-tax income)  
 
Statutory federal income tax rate                                      35.0%      35.0         35.0 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benef it                   2.5        3.9          2.3 
Basis difference of assets sold                                         3.9         .2            - 
Amortization of nondeductible excess cost of net as sets acquired        2.7        3.3          1.1 
Amortization of investment tax credits                                  (.4)       (.6)         (.4) 
Amortization of regulatory liability                                    (.4)       (.6)         (.5) 
Other, net                                                               .8        (.2)         (.2) 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
Effective income tax rate                                              44.1%      41.0         37.3 
=================================================== ================================================= 

Year ended December 31,                         199 9         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                    (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Federal 
       Current                             $  184,8 72      117,490      122,861 
       Deferred                               (11,6 00)      18,048       14,768 
State 
       Current                                 21,7 70       25,015       13,272 
       Deferred                                (5,5 39)      (1,852)       1,462 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                           $  189,5 03      158,701      152,363 
=================================================== =============================  

Year ended December 31,                                                    1999      1998       1997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------  
                                                                             (Dollars in thousands) 
Net tax expense in the consolidated statements of i ncome               $ 189,503   158,701    152,363  
Stockholders' equity, primarily for compensation ex pense 
  for tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized for 
  financial reporting purposes and the tax effect o f unrealized 
  holding gain on investments                                             13,935    (9,097)     3,850  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------  
                                                                       $ 203,438   149,604    156,213  



 

(14) SALE OR EXCHANGE OF ASSETS  

In the first quarter of 1999 the Company recorded a pre-tax gain aggregating $10.4 million ($6.7 million after-tax; $.04 per diluted share) due 
to the sale of its remaining common shares of MCIWorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom").  

In May 1999, the Company sold substantially all of its Alaska-based operations that were acquired in the PTI acquisition. The Company 
received approximately $300 million in after-tax cash as a result of the transaction. In accordance with purchase accounting, no gain or loss 
was recorded upon the disposition of these properties.  

In June 1999, the Company sold the assets of its cellular operations in Brownsville and McAllen, Texas for approximately $96 million cash. In 
connection therewith, the Company recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $39.6 million, and an after-tax loss of approximately $7.8 million 
($.05 per diluted share.)  

In the fourth quarter of 1999 the Company recorded a pre-tax gain aggregating $11.6 million ($7.6 million after-tax; $.05 per diluted share) due 
to the sale of its Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. common stock.  

In connection with the first quarter 1998 acquisition of Brooks Fiber Properties, Inc. ("Brooks") by WorldCom, the Company's 551,000 shares 
of Brooks' common stock were converted into approximately 1.0 million shares of WorldCom common stock. The Company recorded such 
conversion at fair value which resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $22.8 million ($14.8 million after-tax; $.11 per diluted share). In the 
second quarter of 1998, the Company sold 750,000 shares of WorldCom common stock for $35.6 million cash and recorded a pre-tax gain of 
$8.7 million ($5.7 million after tax; $.04 per diluted share).  

In the second quarter of 1998, the Company sold its minority interests in two non-strategic cellular entities for approximately $31.0 million 
cash which resulted in a pre-tax gain of $21.8 million ($12.3 million after-tax; $.09 per diluted share). Additionally, in the second quarter the 
Company wrote off its minority investment in a start-up company.  

During the second quarter of 1998, the Company also sold various other properties that were acquired in the PTI acquisition, including, but not 
limited to, the Company's submarine cable operations. The Company utilized the proceeds from these transactions to reduce its debt associated 
with the acquisition of PTI. In accordance with purchase accounting, no gain or loss was recorded upon the disposition of these assets.  

In May 1997 the Company sold its majority-owned competitive access subsidiary to Brooks in exchange for approximately 4.3 million shares 
of Brooks' common stock. The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $71 million ($46 million after-tax; $.34 per diluted share). 
In November 1997 the Company sold approximately 3.8 million shares of Brooks' common stock for $202.7 million cash and recorded a pre-
tax gain of approximately $108 million ($66 million after-tax; $.48 per diluted share).  

(15) RETIREMENT AND SAVINGS PLANS  

CenturyTel sponsors a defined benefit pension plan for substantially all employees. In addition, the bargaining unit employees of a subsidiary 
are provided benefits under a separate defined benefit pension plan. CenturyTel also sponsors an Outside Directors' Retire-ment Plan and a 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to provide directors and officers, respectively, with supplemental retirement, death and disability 
benefits.  

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the benefit obligation and the plan assets for the retirement and 
savings plans.  

=================================================== ==================================================  

December 31,                                                       1999           1998           1997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -  
                                                                         (Dollars in thousands) 
Change in benefit obligation 
      Benefit obligation at beginning of year                $   217,747        200,554         20,473  
      Service cost                                                 5,226          5,361            793  
      Interest cost                                               13,817         13,225          2,508  
      Plan amendments                                                  -            227              -  
      Acquisition                                                      -              -        175,165  
      Actuarial (gain) loss                                      (19,844)         8,683          2,548  
      Benefits paid                                              (11,491)       (10,303)          (933 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
      Benefit obligation at end of year                      $   205,455        217,747        200,554  
=================================================== ===================================================  
 
Change in plan assets (primarily listed stocks and bonds) 
      Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yea r         $   278,678        237,618         22,158  
      Return on plan assets                                       52,183         50,720          4,237  
      Employer contributions                                         531            643            807  
      Acquisition                                                      -              -        211,349  



 

Net periodic pension cost for 1999, 1998 and 1997 included the following components:  

 

The following table sets forth the combined plans' funded status and amounts recognized in the Company's consolidated balance sheet at 
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997.  

 

Assumptions used in accounting for the pension plans as of December 1999 and 1998 were:  

 

CenturyTel sponsors an Employee Stock Bonus Plan ("ESBP") and an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP"). These plans cover most 
employees with one year of service with the Company and are funded by Company contributions determined annually by the Board of 
Directors.  

The Company contributed $5.2 million, $3.7 million and $2.8 million to the ESBP during 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. At December 31, 
1999, the ESBP owned 5.2 million shares of CenturyTel common stock.  

The Company's contributions to the ESOP approximate the ESOP's debt service less dividends received by the ESOP applicable to unallocated 
shares. The ESOP shares initially were pledged as collateral for its debt. As the debt is repaid, shares are released from collateral based on the 
percentage of principal payment to outstanding debt before applying the principal payment. As of each year end, such released shares are 
allocated to active employees.  

The ESOP had outstanding debt of $190,000 at December 31, 1999 which was applicable to shares purchased prior to 1993. Interest incurred 
by the ESOP on such debt was $49,000, $148,000 and $274,000 in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively. The Company contributed and 
expensed $405,000, $1.5 million and $1.8 million during 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, with respect to such shares. Dividends on 
unallocated ESOP shares used for debt service by the ESOP were $24,000 in 1999, $69,000 in 1998 and $126,000 in 1997. The number of 
ESOP shares as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 which were purchased prior to 1993 were as follows:  

      Benefits paid                                              (11,491)       (10,303)          (933 )  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  
      Fair value of plan assets at end of year               $   319,901        278,678        237,618  
=================================================== ===================================================  

December 31,                                 1999          1998           997 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
                                                  ( Dollars in thousands) 
 
Service cost                             $   5,226         5,361           793 
Interest cost                               13,817        13,225         2,508 
Expected return on plan assets             (26,824)       (22,925)       (5,715)  
Recognized net gains                        (3,176)        (2,688)            - 
Net amortization and deferral                 (235)          (300)        2,459 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
Net periodic pension (benefit) cost      $ (11,192)        (7,327)           45 
=================================================== =========================== 

December 31,                                1999           1998           1997 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                     (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Benefit obligation                     $ (205,455)      (217,747)      (200,554)  
Fair value of plan assets                 319,901        278,678        237,618 
Unrecognized transition asset              (1,892)        (2,136)        (1,550)  
Unamortized prior service cost              1,031          1,053              - 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain          (100,052)       (57,981)       (37,731)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost         $   13,533          1,867         (2,217)  
=================================================== ============================ 

                                                      1999            1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  
Discount rates                                         7.25%       6.5-6.75  
Expected long-term rate of return on assets        8.0-10.0%       8.0-10.0  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------  

December 31,                                             1999             1998  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------  
                                                            (In thousands) 
 
Allocated shares                                        2,921            3,153  
Unreleased shares                                          26               77  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------  
                                                        2,947            3,230  



 

The Company accounts for shares purchased subsequent to December 31, 1992 in accordance with Statement of Position 93-6 ("SOP 93-6"). 
Accordingly, as shares are released from collateral, the Company reports compensation expense equal to the current market price of the shares 
and the shares become outstanding for earnings per share computations. Dividends on allocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of 
retained earnings; dividends on unallocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of debt. ESOP compensation expense applicable to shares 
purchased subsequent to 1992 was $4.0 million for 1999, $2.9 million for 1998 and $1.5 million for 1997. The fair value of unreleased ESOP 
shares accounted for under SOP 93-6 was $20.0 million, $23.2 million and $13.5 million at December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 
ESOP shares purchased subsequent to 1992 totaled 937,913, of which 515,851 were allocated and 422,062 were unreleased as of December 31, 
1999.  

CenturyTel also sponsors a qualified profit sharing plan pursuant to  
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the "401(k) Plan") which is available to substantially all employees of the Company. The 
Company's matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan were $6.1 million in 1999, $8.5 million in 1998 and $2.8 million in 1997.  

(16) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES  

The Company paid interest of $150.3 million, $151.4 million and $48.8 million during 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Income taxes paid 
were $270.9 million in 1999, $185.9 million in 1998 and $79.3 million in 1997.  

CenturyTel has consummated the acquisitions of various telephone and cellular operations, along with certain other assets, during the three 
years ended December 31, 1999. In connection with these acquisitions, the following assets were acquired, liabilities assumed, and common 
and preferred stock issued:  

 

During 1999 the Company sold substantially all of its Alaska-based operations; the remaining shares of its WorldCom stock; the assets of its 
cellular operations in Brownsville and McAllen, Texas; and its Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. stock. See Note 14 for additional 
information.  

During 1998 the Company sold various properties acquired in the PTI acquisition; a portion of its WorldCom stock; and certain cellular 
operations. See Note 14 for additional information.  

In May 1997 the Company sold its majority-owned competitive access subsidiary in exchange for approximately 4.3 million shares of publicly-
traded common stock. In November 1997 approximately 85% of such stock was sold. In addition, the Company has consummated the 
disposition of various cellular operations, along with certain other assets, during the three years ended December 31, 1999.  

In connection with these dispositions, the following assets were sold, liabilities eliminated, assets received and gain recognized:  

 

(17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

=================================================== ===========================  

Year ended December 31,                              1999          1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
                                                           (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Property, plant and equipment                    $     830        75,043      1,106,558 
Excess cost of net assets acquired                  20,194       145,880      1,204,284 
Other investments                                        -         5,028        119,356 
Notes payable                                            -             -       (199,824)  
Long-term debt                                           -             -       (527,937)  
Deferred credits and other liabilities                   -             -       (246,196)  
Other assets and liabilities, excluding cash 
  and cash equivalents                                 (52)         (382)        90,889 
Common stock issued                                      -             -         (3,316)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
Decrease in cash due to acquisitions             $  20,972       225,569      1,543,814 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 

Year ended December 31,                                  1999          1998          1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 
                                                              (Dollars in thousands) 
Property, plant and equipment                       $ (165,286)            -        (38,481)  
Excess cost of net assets acquired                    (296,605)            -           (597)  
Marketable equity securities                           (18,363)      (21,923)        13,795 
Other assets and liabilities, excluding cash and 
  cash equivalents                                      58,595       (60,525)        (7,782)  
Gain on sale of assets                                 (62,808)      (49,859)      (169,640)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 
Increase in cash due to dispositions                $ (484,467)     (132,307)      (202,705)  
=================================================== ======================================== 



The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of certain of the Company's financial instruments at December 31, 
1999 and 1998.  

 

(1) Fair value was based on quoted market prices.  
(2) Fair value was estimated by discounting the scheduled payment streams to present value based upon rates currently offered to the Company 
for similar debt.  
(3) Fair value was estimated by the Company to approximate carrying value.  

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes payable, accounts payable and accrued expenses - The carrying amount approximates the 
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.  

(18) BUSINESS SEGMENTS  

The Company has two reportable segments: telephone and wireless. The Company's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer 
different products and services. The operating income of these segments is reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to assess 
performance and make business decisions.  

The Company's telephone operations are conducted in rural, suburban and small urban communities in 20 states. Approximately 84% of the 
Company's telephone access lines are in Wisconsin, Washington, Michigan, Louisiana, Colorado, Ohio, Oregon and Montana. The Company's 
wireless customers are located in Michigan, Louisiana, Wisconsin, Mississippi, Texas, Arkansas and Alaska.  

                                                         Carrying         Fair 
                                                          amount          value 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
                                                         (Dollars in thousands) 
December 31, 1999 
 
Financial assets 
    Investments 
       Marketable equity securities                   $   102,633       102,633 (1)  
       Other                                          $    23,773        23,773 (3)  
 
Financial liabilities 
    Long-term debt (including current maturities)     $ 2,140,409     2,092,744 (2)  
    Other                                             $    33,656        33,656 (3)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------  
 
December 31, 1998 
 
Financial assets 
    Investments 
       Marketable equity securities                   $    29,496        29,496 (1)  
       Other                                          $    29,813        29,813 (3)  
 
Financial liabilities 
    Long-term debt (including current maturities)     $ 2,611,010     2,708,680 (2)  
    Other                                             $    32,721        32,721 (3)  
=================================================== ================================  

                                                                      Depreciation 
                                                     Operating            and            Operating 
                                                     revenues         amortization         income 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
                                                                (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Year ended December 31, 1999 
 
Telephone                                         $    1,142,593           275,476           352,357 
Wireless                                                422,269            68,593           133,930 
Other operations                                        111,807             4,747            21,782 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total                                             $    1,676,669           348,816           508,069 
=================================================== ================================================ 
 
 
Year ended December 31, 1998 
 
Telephone                                         $    1,091,610           262,893           333,708 
Wireless                                                407,827            62,345           129,124 
Other operations                                         77,648             3,316            16,979 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total                                             $    1,577,085           328,554           479,811 
=================================================== ================================================ 
 
Year ended December 31, 1997 



 

Other accounts receivable are primarily amounts due from various long distance carriers, principally AT&T, and several large local exchange 
operating companies.  

(19) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Construction expenditures and investments in vehicles, buildings and other work equipment during 2000 are estimated to be $250 million for 
telephone operations, $100 million for wireless operations and $65 million for other operations.  

The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position or results of 
operations.  

(20) PENDING ACQUISITIONS  

In June 1999, the Company signed a definitive asset purchase agreement with affiliates of GTE Corporation ("GTE") to purchase GTE's 
telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 225,000 at December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Arkansas for 
approximately $845.8 million, subject to certain adjustments.  

In July 1999, the Company acquired a 61.5% (56.9% fully-diluted) interest in a newly-organized joint venture company which has entered into 
a definitive asset purchase agreement with affiliates of GTE to purchase telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 121,000 at 
December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in Missouri for approximately $290 million, subject to certain adjustments. The 
Company has agreed to make a preferred equity investment in the newly organized company of approximately $55 million and to finance 
substantially all of the remainder of the purchase price.  

In August 1999, the Company acquired an 89% interest in a newly-organized joint venture company which has entered into a definitive asset 
purchase agreement with a GTE affiliate to purchase telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 61,700 as of December 31, 1999) 
and related local exchange assets in Wisconsin for approximately $170 million cash, subject to certain adjustments. The Company has agreed 
to make an equity investment in the newly organized company of approximately $37.8 million and currently expects to finance substantially all 
of the remainder of the purchase price. In October 1999, the Company also entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase 

 
Telephone                                         $      530,597           115,722           173,285 
Wireless                                                307,742            41,146            87,772 
Other operations                                         63,182             2,627             6,713 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total                                             $      901,521           159,495           267,770 
=================================================== ================================================ 
 
 
Year ended December 31,                                   1999             1998               1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Operating income                                  $      508,069           479,811           267,770 
Gain on sale or exchange of assets, net                  62,808            49,859           169,640 
Interest expense                                       (150,557)         (167,552)          (56,474)  
Income from unconsolidated cellular entities             27,675            32,869            27,794 
Minority interest                                       (27,913)          (12,797)           (5,498)  
Other income and expense                                  9,190             5,268             5,109 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Income before income tax expense                  $      429,272           387,458           408,341 
=================================================== ================================================ 
 
 
Year ended December 31,                                   1999             1998               1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
 
Capital expenditures 
     Telephone                                    $      233,512           233,190           115,854 
     Wireless                                            58,760            57,326            39,107 
     Other operations                                    97,708            20,403            26,264 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total                                             $      389,980           310,919           181,225 
=================================================== ================================================ 
 
Identifiable assets 
     Telephone                                    $    3,248,680         3,674,148         3,379,376 
     Wireless                                         1,184,129         1,114,955           996,089 
     Other operations                                   272,598           146,352           333,936 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
Total assets                                      $    4,705,407         4,935,455         4,709,401 
=================================================== ================================================ 



additional telephone access lines (which numbered approximately 68,200 as of December 31, 1999) and related local exchange assets in 
Wisconsin from a GTE affiliate for approximately $195 million cash, subject to certain adjustments.  

All of these transactions are expected to close mid-year 2000, pending regulatory approvals and certain other closing conditions.  

(21) SUBSEQUENT EVENT  

In February 2000, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge contract designed to reduce its interest rate risk with respect to $100 million 
of the long-term debt that it expects to incur in connection with financing its pending GTE acquisitions.  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  
Consolidated Quarterly Income Information  

(Unaudited)  
 

 

Diluted earnings per share for the first, second, third and fourth quarter of 1999 included $.04, ($.05), $.01 and $.05 per share, respectively, of 
net gain (loss) on sale or exchange of assets. See Note 14 for additional information.  

Diluted earnings per share for both the first quarter and second quarter of 1998 included $.11 of net gain on sale or exchange of assets.  

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting  
and Financial Disclosure.  

None.  

PART III  

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.  

The name, age and office(s) held by each of the Registrant's executive officers are shown below. Each of the executive officers listed below 
serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, except Mr. Williams who has entered into an employment agreement with the Registrant. The 
agreement's initial term has lapsed, but the agreement remains in effect from year to year, subject to the right of Mr. Williams or the Company 
to terminate such agreement.  

                                     First            Second            Third           Fourth 
                                    quarter           quarter          quarter          quarter  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
                                         (Dollars i n thousands, except per share amounts) 
1999                                                        (unaudited) 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  
 
Operating revenues             $   414,256           416,750          419,205          426,458 
Operating income               $   130,623           130,625          130,059          116,762 
Net income                     $    61,105            53,462           64,529           60,673 
Basic earnings per share       $       .44               .38              .46              .43 
Diluted earnings per share     $       .43               .38              .46              .43 
 
 
1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
Operating revenues             $   371,720           388,378          401,949          415,038 
Operating income               $   110,132           121,488          128,184          120,007 
Net income                     $    57,694            64,191           54,678           52,194 
Basic earnings per share       $       .42               .47              .40              .38 
Diluted earnings per share     $       .41               .46              .39              .37 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------  

Name                     Age      Office(s) held wi th CenturyTel 
----                     ---      ----------------- ------------- 
 
Clarke M. Williams        78      Chairman of the B oard of Directors 
 
Glen F. Post, III         47      Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
                                  President and Chi ef Executive Officer 
 
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.     48      Executive Vice Pr esident and 
                                  Chief Financial O fficer 
 
Harvey P. Perry           55      Executive Vice Pr esident and 
                                  Chief Administrat ive Officer 
 



 

Each of the Registrant's executive officers, except for Mr. Maslowski, has served as an officer of the Registrant and one or more of its 
subsidiaries in varying capacities for more than the past five years. Mr. Cole has served as Senior Vice President - Operational Support since 
November 1998, as President - Wireless Group from October 1996 to October 1998 and as Vice President from 1990 to 1996. Mr. Maslowski 
has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer since March 1999.  

The balance of the information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant's definitive proxy statement relating to its 
2000 annual meeting of stockholders (the "Proxy Statement"), which Proxy Statement will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days 
after the end of the last fiscal year.  

Item 11. Executive Compensation.  

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.  

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.  

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

PART IV  

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on  
Form 8-K.  

a. Financial Statements  

(i) Consolidated Financial Statements:  

Independent Auditors' Report on Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules  

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997  

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 1999 and 1998  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997  

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

Consolidated Quarterly Income Information (unaudited)  

(ii) Schedules:*  

I Condensed Financial Information of Registrant  

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts  

* Those schedules not listed above are omitted as not applicable or not required.  

b. Reports on Form 8-K.  

David D. Cole             42      Senior Vice Presi dent - Operational Support  
 
Michael Maslowski         52      Senior Vice Presi dent and 
                                  Chief Information  Officer 



(i) The following items were reported in a Form 8-K filed November 2, 1999.  

Item 5. News release announcing third quarter result of  

                      operations. 
 
c.      Exhibits: 
       3(i)          Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of  
                     Registrant,    dated   as   of    May   6,   1999,  
                     (incorporated  by  reference  to Exhibit  3(i) to  
                     Registrant's  Quarterly  Repor t  on Form 10-Q for  
                     the quarter ended June 30, 199 9). 
 
       3(ii)         Registrant's Bylaws, as amende d through November 
                     18, 1999, included elsewhere h erein. 
 
       4.1           Note Purchase Agreement, dated  September 1, 1989,  
                     between   Registrant,   Teache rs   Insurance  and  
                     Annuity  Association  of Ameri ca  and the Lincoln  
                     National Life Insurance Compan y  (incorporated by  
                     reference   to  Exhibit   4.23   to   Registrant's  
                     Quarterly  Report  on Form  10 -Q for the  quarter  
                     ended September 30, 1989). 
 
       4.2           Rights  Agreement,  dated as o f August 27,  1996,  
                     between  Registrant and Societ y National Bank, as  
                     Rights  Agent,   including  th e  form  of  Rights  
                     Certificate (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                     1 of  Registrant's  Current  R eport  on Form  8-K  
                     filed  August  30,  1996)  and    amendment   No.1  
                     thereto,  dated  May 25,  1999   (incorporated  by  
                     reference  to  Exhibit  4.2(ii )  to  Registrant's  
                     Report on Form 8-K dated May 2 5, 1999). 
 
       4.3           Form of common stock certifica te of the Regis- 
                     trant (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 4.1 
                     to Registrant's Quarterly Repo rt on Form 10-Q 
                     for the quarter ended June 30,  1993). 
 
       4.4           Indenture dated as of March 31 , 1994 between the 
                     Company and Regions Bank (form erly First 
                     American Bank & Trust of Louis iana), as Trustee 
                     (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the 
                     Company's Registration Stateme nt on Form S-3, 
                     Registration No. 33-52915). 
 
       4.5           Resolutions designating the te rms and conditions 
                     of the Company's 7-3/4% Senior  Notes, Series A, 
                     due 2004 and 8-1/4% Senior Not es, Series B, due 
                     2024 (incorporated by referenc e to Exhibit 4.1 to  
                     Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
                     the quarter ended March 31, 19 94). 
 
       4.6           Resolutions designating the te rms and conditions 
                     of the Company's 6.55% Senior Notes, Series C, 
                     due 2005 and 7.2% Senior Notes , Series D, due 
                     2025 (incorporated by referenc e to Exhibit 4.27 
                     to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
                     the year ended December 31, 19 95). 
 
       4.7           Form of Senior Notes described  in 4.5 and 4.6 
                     above (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 4.3 
                     of the Company's Registration Statement on Form 
                     S-3, Registration No. 33-52915 ). 
 
       4.8           Competitive Advance and Revolv ing Credit Facility  
                     Agreement,  dated as of August   28,  1997,  among  
                     Registrant,   the  lenders  na med  therein,   and  
                     NationsBank  of  Texas,  N.A.   (incorporated  by  
                     reference   to   Exhibit   4.1   to   Registrant's  
                     Quarterly  Report  on Form  10 -Q for the  quarter  
                     ended September 30, 1997). 
 
       4.9           Resolutions  designating the t erms and conditions  
                     of the Company's  6.15% Senior   Notes,  Series E,  
                     due 2005; 6.30% Senior Notes, Series F, due 2008;  
                     and  6.875%  Debentures,   Ser ies  G,  due  2028,  
                     (incorporated  by  reference  to  Exhibit  4.9 to  
                     Registrant's  Annual  Report o n Form 10-K for the  
                     year ended December 31, 1997).  
 



       4.10          Form   of   Board   Resolution    to  be  used  in  
                     designating   and   authorizin g   the  terms  and  
                     conditions   of  any   series  of   Senior   Debt  
                     Securities  issuable  under th e  Company's  shelf  
                     registration statement (incorp orated by reference  
                     to  Exhibit  4.3  of the  Comp any's  Registration  
                     Statement   on   Form   S-3,   Registration   No.  
                     333-42013). 
 
       4.11          Form of Senior Debt Securities  described in 4.9 
                     above (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 4.4 
                     of the Company's Registration Statement on Form 
                     S-3, Registration No. 333-4201 3). 
 
       4.12          First   Supplemental   Indentu re,   dated  as  of  
                     November 2, 1998, to Indenture  between CenturyTel  
                     of the  Northwest,  Inc.  and The First  National  
                     Bank of Chicago  (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                     Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's  Quarterly Report on  
                     Form 10-Q for the  quarter  en ded  September  30,  
                     1998). 
 
       10.1          Employee Benefit Plans 
 
                     (a)   Registrant's Employee St ock Ownership Plan 
                           and Trust, as amended an d restated December  
                           30, 1994 (incorporated b y reference to 
                           Exhibit 10.1 to Registra nt's Quarterly 
                           Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
                           March 31, 1995), amendme nt thereto dated 
                           January 26, 1996 (incorp orated by reference  
                           to Exhibit 10.1(a) to Re gistrant's Annual 
                           Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
                           December 31, 1995) and a mendment thereto 
                           dated July 15, 1996 (inc orporated by 
                           reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to Registrant's 
                           Quarterly Report on Form  10-Q for the 
                           quarter ended June 30, 1 996), and amendment  
                           thereto dated December 3 1, 1996 (incorp- 
                           orated by reference to E xhibit 10.5 to 
                           Registrant's Quarterly R eport on Form 10-Q 
                           for the quarter ended Ma rch 31, 1997), and 
                           amendment thereto dated March 18, 1997 
                           (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 10.6 
                           to Registrant's Quarterl y Report on Form 
                           10-Q for the quarter end ed March 31, 1997),  
                           and amendments thereto d ated January 1, 
                           1997 (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.3 to Registrant's Qua rterly Report on 
                           Form 10-Q for the quarte r ended June 30, 
                           1997), and amendment the reto dated December  
                           29, 1998 (incorporated b y reference to 
                           Exhibit 10.1 (a) to Regi strant's Annual 
                           Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
                           December 31, 1998). 
 
                     (b)   Registrant's Stock Bonus  Plan, PAYSOP and 
                           Trust, as amended and re stated December 30,  
                           1994 (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.2 to Registrant's Qua rterly Report on 
                           Form 10-Q for the quarte r ended March 31, 
                           1995), amendment thereto  dated July 11, 
                           1995 (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.4 to Registrant's Qua rterly Report on 
                           Form 10-Q for the quarte r ended June 30, 
                           1995), amendment thereto  dated January 26, 
                           1996 (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.1(b) to Registrant's Annual Report on 
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded December 31, 
                           1995) and amendment ther eto dated July 15, 
                           1996 (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.1 to Registrant's Qua rterly Report on 
                           Form 10-Q for the quarte r ended June 30, 
                           1996), and amendment the reto dated December  
                           31, 1996 (incorporated b y  reference to 
                           Exhibit 10.4 to Registra nt's Quarterly 
                           Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
                           March 31, 1997), and ame ndments thereto 
                           dated January 1, 1997 (i ncorporated by 
                           reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to Registrant's 
                           Quarterly Report on Form  10-Q for the 
                           quarter ended June 30, 1 997), and amendment  



                           thereto dated December 2 9, 1998 (incorpor- 
                           ated by reference to Exh ibit 10.1 (b) to 
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year ended December 31, 1998). 
 
                     (c)   Registrant's   Dollars  &  Sense  Plan  and  
                           Trust,  as amended and r estated,  effective  
                           January 1, 1998 and amen dment thereto dated  
                           December   29,   1998    (incorporated   by  
                           reference    to   Exhibi t   10.1   (c)   to  
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year ended December 31, 1998). 
 
                     (d)   Registrant's      Restat ed     Supplemental  
                           Executive    Retirement   Plan,   generally  
                           effective   as   of   No vember   16,   1995  
                           (incorporated   by   ref erence  to  Exhibit  
                           10.1(d) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1995) and amendment  the reto dated November  
                           21,  1996  (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit  10.1(d)  to  Re gistrant's   Annual  
                           Report  on Form  10-K  f or the  year  ended  
                           December 31, 1996). 
 
                     (e)   Registrant's  1983  Rest ricted  Stock Plan,  
                           dated  February  21,  19 84,  as amended and  
                           restated   as   of   Nov ember    16,   1995  
                           (incorporated   by   ref erence  to  Exhibit  
                           10.1(e) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1995) and amendment  the reto dated November  
                           21,  1996,  (incorporate d  by  reference to  
                           Exhibit  10.1(e)  to  Re gistrant's   Annual  
                           Report  on Form  10-K  f or the  year  ended  
                           December 31, 1996),  and  amendment  thereto  
                           dated  February 25, 1997   (incorporated  by  
                           reference to Exhibit  10 .3 to  Registrant's  
                           Quarterly  Report  on  F orm  10-Q  for  the  
                           quarter ended March 31, 1997). 

                     (f)   Registrant's    Key   Em ployee    Incentive  
                           Compensation  Plan,  dat ed January 1, 1984,  
                           as amended and  restated  as of November 16,  
                           1995  (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                           10.1(f) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1995) and amendment  the reto dated November  
                           21,  1996  (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit  10.1  (f) to  R egistrant's  Annual  
                           Report  on Form  10-K  f or the  year  ended  
                           December 31, 1996),  and  amendment  thereto  
                           dated  February 25, 1997   (incorporated  by  
                           reference to Exhibit  10 .2 to  Registrant's  
                           Quarterly  Report  on  F orm  10-Q  for  the  
                           quarter ended March 31, 1997). 
 
                     (g)   Registrant's  1988  Ince ntive  Compensation  
                           Program as amended and r estated  August 22,  
                           1989  (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                           19.8 to  Registrant's  Q uarterly  Report on  
                           Form 10-Q for the quarte r  ended  September  
                           30,  1989)  and  amendme nt   thereto  dated  
                           November   21,   1996    (incorporated   by  
                           reference    to    Exhib it    10.1(g)    to  
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year ended December 31, 1996). 
 
                     (h)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement entered into  
                           in 1988 by the Registran t, pursuant to 1988  
                           Incentive    Compensatio n   Program,   with  
                           certain of its  officers   (incorporated  by  
                           reference to Exhibit 10. 10 to  Registrant's  
                           Annual  Report  on Form  10-K  for the year  
                           ended  December  31,  19 88)  and  amendment  
                           thereto   (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit  4.6 to  Registr ant's  Registration  
                           No. 33-31314). 
 
                     (i)   Registrant's  1990  Ince ntive  Compensation  
                           Program, dated March 15,  1990 (incorporated  
                           by    reference    to   Exhibit   19.1   to  



                           Registrant's  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q  
                           for the  quarter  ended June 30,  1990) and  
                           amendment  thereto dated   November 21, 1996  
                           (incorporated   by   ref erence  to  Exhibit  
                           10.1(i) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1996). 
 
                     (j)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement entered into  
                           in 1990 by the Registran t, pursuant to 1990  
                           Incentive    Compensatio n   Program,   with  
                           certain of its  officers   (incorporated  by  
                           reference to Exhibit  19 .3 to  Registrant's  
                           Quarterly  Report  on  F orm  10-Q  for  the  
                           quarter  ended June 30, 1990) and amendment  
                           thereto   dated   as  of    May   22,   1995  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.1  
                           to  Registrant's  Quarte rly  Report on Form  
                           10-Q for the quarter  en ded  September  30,  
                           1995). 
 
                     (k)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement entered into  
                           in 1992 by the Registran t, pursuant to 1990  
                           Incentive    Compensatio n   Program,   with  
                           certain  of  its  office rs  and   employees  
                           (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 10.17  
                           to Registrant's  Annual Report on Form 10-K  
                           for the year ended  Dece mber  31, 1992) and  
                           amendment  thereto dated  as of May 22, 1995  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.2  
                           to  Registrant's  Quarte rly  Report on Form  
                           10-Q for the quarter  en ded  September  30,  
                           1995). 
 
                     (l)   Registrant's  1995  Ince ntive  Compensation  
                           Plan approved by Registr ant's  shareholders  
                           on May 11, 1995  (incorp orated by reference  
                           to   Exhibit   4.4  to   Registration   No.  
                           33-60061)  and   amendme nt   thereto  dated  
                           November   21,   1996    (incorporated   by  
                           Reference    to   Exhibi t   10.1   (l)   to  
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year  ended  Decembe r  31,  1996),  and  
                           amendment  thereto dated   February 25, 1997  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.1  
                           to  Registrant's  Quarte rly  Report on Form  
                           10-Q for the quarter end ed March 31, 1997).  
 
                     (m)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement, pursuant to  
                           1995 Incentive  Compensa tion Plan and dated  
                           as  of  May  22,  1995,   entered  into  by  
                           Registrant  and its offi cers  (incorporated  
                           by    reference    to   Exhibit   10.5   to  
                           Registrant's  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q  
                           for the quarter ended Ju ne 30, 1995). 
 
                     (n)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement, pursuant to  
                           1995 Incentive  Compensa tion Plan and dated  
                           as  of  June  23,  1995,   entered  into  by  
                           Registrant   and  certai n   key   employees  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.6  
                           to  Registrant's  Quarte rly  Report on Form  
                           10-Q for the quarter end ed June 30, 1995). 
 
                     (o)   Registrant's  Restated S upplemental Defined  
                           Contribution Plan, dated  as of November 16,  
                           1995  (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                           10.1(q) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1995),  amendment  there to  dated  July 15,  
                           1996  (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                           10.4 to  Registrant's  Q uarterly  Report on  
                           Form 10-Q for the  quart er  ended  June 30,  
                           1996) and amendment  the reto dated November  
                           21,  1996  (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit  10.1  (p) to  R egistrant's  Annual  
                           Report  on Form  10-K  f or the  year  ended  
                           December 31, 1996). 
 
                     (p)   Registrant's Amended and  Restated Supple- 
                           mental Dollars & Sense P lan, effective 
                           as of January 1, 1999 (i ncorporated by ref-  



                           erence to Exhibit 10.1(q ) to Registrant's 
                           Annual Report on Form 10 -K for the year 
                           ended December 31, 1998) . 
 
                     (q)   Registrant's Amended and  Restated Salary 
                           Continuation (Disability )Plan for Officers,  
                           dated November 26, 1991 (incorporated by 
                           reference to Exhibit 10. 16 of  Registrant's  
                           Annual Report on Form  1 0-K  for the  year 
                           ended December 31, 1991) . 
 
                     (r)   Registrant's  Restated  Outside  Directors'  
                           Retirement Plan, dated a s of November  16, 
                           1995 (incorporated  by r eference to Exhibit  
                           10.1(t) to Registrant's  Annual  Report on 
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded December  31, 
                           1995). 
 
                     (s)   Registrant's Restated De ferred Compensation  
                           Plan  for  Outside  Dire ctors,  dated as of  
                           November   16,   1995    (incorporated   by  
                           reference    to    Exhib it    10.1(u)    to  
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year ended December 31, 1995). 
 
                     (t)   Form of Stock Option Agr eement, pursuant to  
                           1995 Incentive  Compensa tion Plan and dated  
                           as of February  21,  200 0,  entered into by  
                           Registrant   and  its  o fficers,   included  
                           elsewhere herein. 
 
                     (u)   Registrant's    Chairman /Chief    Executive  
                           Officer   Short-Term    Incentive   Program  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.6  
                           to  Registrant's  Quarte rly  Report on Form  
                           10-Q for the quarter end ed June 30, 1997). 
 
                     (v)   Form of Amended and Rest ated  Restricted 
                           Stock and Performance Sh are Agreement dated  
                           as of March 16, 1998, re lating to equity 
                           incentive awards granted  in 1997  pursuant 
                           to Registrant's 1995 Inc entive Compensation  
                           Plan (incorporated by re ference to Exhibit 
                           10.2 to Registrant's Qua rterly Report on 
                           Form  10-Q for the quart er ended March 31, 
                           1998). 
 
                     (w)   Form of  Restricted  Sto ck and  Performance  
                           Share Agreement dated as  of March 16, 1998,  
                           relating to equity incen tive awards granted  
                           in 1998 pursuant to Regi strant's 1995 
                           Incentive Compensation P lan (incorporated 
                           by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to 
                           Registrant's Quarterly R eport on Form 10-Q 
                           for the  quarter  ended March 31, 1998). 
 
                     (x)   Form of Restricted Stock  and Performance 
                           Share Agreement, dated a s of February 22, 
                           1999, relating to equity  incentive awards 
                           granted in 1999 pursuant  to the 
                           Registrant's 1995 Incent ive Compensation 
                           Plan, included elsewhere  herein. 
 
                     (y)   Registrant's  Supplement al  Defined Benefit  
                           Plan,  effective  as  of   January  1,  1999  
                           (incorporated  by refere nce to Exhibit 10.1  
                           (y) to  Registrant's  An nual Report on Form  
                           10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998).  
 
                     (z)   Registrant's     Amended     and    Restated  
                           Retirement Plan, effecti ve as of January 1,  
                           1999  (incorporated by r eference to Exhibit  
                           10.1 (z) to  Registrant' s  Annual Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1998). 
 
        10.2          Employment, Severance and Rel ated Agreements 

                     (a)   Employment  Agreement,  dated May 24, 1993,  
                           by  and  between  Clarke   M.  Williams  and  
                           Registrant  (incorporate d  by  reference to  
                           Exhibit  19.1  to  Regis trant's   Quarterly  



 

SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

CenturyTel, Inc.,  

 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of 
the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.  

 

Vice Chairman of the  

                           Report on Form 10-Q for the  quarter  ended  
                           June 30, 1993) and amend ment  thereto dated  
                           as of February  27, 1996   (incorporated  by  
                           reference    to    Exhib it    10.2(a)    to  
                           Registrant's Annual Repo rt on Form 10-K for  
                           the year ended December 31, 1995). 
 
                     (b)   Form  of  Amended  and  Restated  Severance  
                           Agreement,  by and betwe en  Registrant  and  
                           each of its executive  o fficers  other than  
                           Clarke M.  Williams,  da ted as of  November  
                           16,  1995  (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit  10.2(b)  to  Re gistrant's   Annual  
                           Report  on Form  10-K  f or the  year  ended  
                           December 31, 1995). 
 
                     (c)   Form  of  Amended  and  Restated  Severance  
                           Agreement,  by and betwe en  Registrant  and  
                           three of its officers wh o are not executive  
                           officers,  dated as of  November  16,  1995  
                           (incorporated   by   ref erence  to  Exhibit  
                           10.2(c) to  Registrant's   Annual  Report on  
                           Form 10-K for the year e nded  December  31,  
                           1995). 
 
                     (d)   Agreement,  dated Decemb er 31, 1994, by and  
                           between  Jim  D.  Reppon d  and   Registrant  
                           (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 10.24  
                           to Registrant's  Annual Report on Form 10-K  
                           for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1994). 
 
                     (e)   Consulting  Agreement,  dated as of July 2,  
                           1996, by and between  Re gistrant and Jim D.  
                           Reppond   (incorporated   by  reference  to  
                           Exhibit 10 to Registrant 's Quarterly Report  
                           on  Form   10-Q  for  th e   quarter   ended  
                           September 30, 1996). 
 
        10.3         Other Agreements 
 
                     (a)   Asset Purchase Agreement  between Registrant  
                           and  affiliates of GTE, dated June 29, 1999  
                           (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 99 to  
                           Registrant's  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q  
                           for the quarter ended Ju ne 30, 1999). 
 
        21           Subsidiaries of the Registrant , included 
                        elsewhere herein. 
 
        23           Independent Auditors' Consent,  included 
                       elsewhere herein. 
 
        27           Financial Data Schedule, inclu ded elsewhere 
                       herein. 

Date:   March 15, 2000                        By: /s/ Clarke M. Williams 
                                                   ---------------------- 
                                                   Clarke M. Williams 
                                                   Chairman of the Board 

/s/ Clarke M. Williams 
----------------------------     Chairman of the Board 
Clarke M. Williams                 of Directors                  March 15, 2000 



 

/s/ Glen F. Post, III              Board of Directors, 
----------------------------       President, and Chief 
Glen F. Post, III                  Executive Officer             March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.       Executive Vice President and 
----------------------------      Chief Financial Officer 
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr              (Principal Accounting Officer) March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ Harvey P. Perry             Executive Vice President, 
----------------------------      Chief Administrative Officer 
Harvey P. Perry                   and Director                   March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ W. Bruce Hanks 
----------------------------    Vice President Strategic Issues 
W. Bruce Hanks                    and Director                   March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ William R. Boles, Jr. 
---------------------------- 
William R. Boles, Jr.           Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ Virginia Boulet 
---------------------------- 
Virginia Boulet                 Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
 
---------------------------- 
Ernest Butler, Jr.              Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ Calvin Czeschin 
---------------------------- 
Calvin Czeschin                 Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ James B. Gardner 
---------------------------- 
James B. Gardner                Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ R. L. Hargrove, Jr. 
---------------------------- 
R. L. Hargrove, Jr.             Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ Johnny Hebert 
---------------------------- 
Johnny Hebert                   Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ F. Earl Hogan 
---------------------------- 
F. Earl Hogan                   Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ C. G. Melville, Jr. 
---------------------------- 
C. G. Melville, Jr.             Director                         March 15, 2000 
 
 
 
/s/ Jim D. Reppond 
---------------------------- 
Jim D. Reppond                  Director                         March 15, 2000 



SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT  
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

(Parent Company)  
 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

 

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant.  

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT  
(continued)  

 
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

(Parent Company)  
 

BALANCE SHEETS  

                                                    Year ended December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                199 9         1998         1997 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                                    (Dollars in thousands) 
 
 
REVENUES                                    $  15,5 42       16,055        9,666 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
EXPENSES 
         Operating expenses                    12,7 54       15,788        9,088 
         Depreciation and amortization          7,1 53       31,842        9,401 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
              Total expenses                   19,9 07       47,630       18,489 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
OPERATING LOSS                                 (4,3 65)     (31,575)      (8,823)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 
         Gain on sales of assets                1,9 31       28,085      172,537 
         Interest expense                    (117,7 60)    (131,309)     (49,738)  
         Interest income                       48,0 78       40,005       28,697 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
              Total other income (expense)    (67,7 51)     (63,219)     151,496 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND 
    EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES' EARNINGS          (72,1 16)     (94,794)     142,673 
 
Income tax benefit (expense)                   33,1 79       21,857      (55,591)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EQUITY IN 
    SUBSIDIARIES' EARNINGS                    (38,9 37)     (72,937)      87,082 
 
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings              278,7 06      301,694      168,896 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
NET INCOME                                  $ 239,7 69      228,757      255,978 
=================================================== ============================ 

                                                                    December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
                                                               1999             1998 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
                                                              (Dollars in thousands) 
                                     ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
     Cash and cash equivalents                          $     12,400            6,540 
     Receivables from subsidiaries                           337,600          142,912 
     Other receivables                                           513           23,906 
     Prepayments and other                                       225              259 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
          Total current assets                               350,738          173,617 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
     Property and equipment                                    1,004            1,162 
     Accumulated depreciation                                   (683)            (676)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 



 

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant.  

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT  
(Continued)  

 
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

(Parent Company)  
 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

          Net property, plant and equipment                      321              486 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 
     Investments in subsidiaries (at equity)               3,422,022        3,170,861 
     Receivables from subsidiaries                           343,169          514,366 
     Other investments                                        43,028           42,418 
     Deferred charges                                         54,776           58,073 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
          Total investments and other assets               3,862,995        3,785,718 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
TOTAL ASSETS                                            $  4,214,054        3,959,821 
=================================================== ================================== 
 
                             LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
     Current maturities of long-term debt               $     37,427           30,046 
     Payables to subsidiaries                                837,645          365,517 
     Accrued interest                                         26,956           27,711 
     Other accrued liabilities                                10,035           23,475 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
          Total current liabilities                          912,063          446,749 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
LONG-TERM DEBT                                             1,428,326        1,852,253 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
PAYABLES TO SUBSIDIARIES                                       4,348           32,406 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES                        21,325           96,931 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
     Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 
       350,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 
       139,945,920 and 138,082,926 shares                    139,946          138,083 
     Paid-in capital                                         493,432          451,535 
     Unrealized holding gain on investments, 
       net of taxes                                           64,362            7,217 
     Retained earnings                                     1,146,967          932,611 
     Unearned ESOP shares                                     (4,690)          (6,070)  
     Preferred stock - non-redeemable                          7,975            8,106 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
          Total stockholders' equity                       1,847,992        1,531,482 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY                            $  4,214,054        3,959,821 
=================================================== ================================== 

                                                                            Year ended December 31, 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
                                                                       1999          1998          199 7 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
                                                                            (Dollars in thousands) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
    Net income                                                   $   239,769       228,757       255,9 78 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  
      provided by (used in) operating activities: 
         Depreciation and amortization                                 7,153        31,842         9,4 01 
         Deferred income taxes                                       (10,357)       12,902         8,0 68 
         Earnings of subsidiaries                                   (278,706)     (301,694)     (168,8 96)  
         Gain on sale of assets                                       (1,931)      (28,085)     (172,5 37)  
         Changes in current assets and current liab ilities: 
            Other receivables                                         23,393       (23,114)       11,6 15 
            Other accrued liabilities                                (83,749)      (40,535)       35,7 54 
            Other current assets and liabilities, n et                   (435)       37,754         8,4 12 
         Other, net                                                    6,060         9,724           9 58 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
            Net cash used in operating activities                    (98,803)      (72,449)      (11,2 47)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
    Acquisitions                                                           -      (225,569)   (1,283,2 91)  



 

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant.  

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT  
(continued)  

 
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

(Parent Company)  
 

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTR ANT  

(A) LONG-TERM DEBT  

The approximate annual debt maturities for the five years subsequent to December 31, 1999 are as follows:  

 

As of December 31, 1999, CenturyTel has guaranteed debt of subsidiaries totaling $325.8 million.  

(C) DIVIDENDS FROM SUBSIDIARIES  

Dividends paid to CenturyTel by consolidated subsidiaries were $162.1 million, $116.9 million and $117.5 million during 1999, 1998 and 
1997, respectively.  

(D) INCOME TAXES AND INTEREST PAID  

Income taxes paid by CenturyTel (including amounts reimbursed from subsidiaries) were $217.0 million, $162.0 million and $71.8 million 
during 1999, 1998, and 1997 respectively.  

Interest paid by CenturyTel was $118.5 million, $114.7 million and $42.4 million during 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

(E) AFFILIATED TRANSACTIONS  

CenturyTel provides and bills management services to subsidiaries and in certain instances makes interest bearing advances to finance 
construction of plant and purchases of equipment. CenturyTel recorded intercompany interest income of $47.8 million, $39.7 million and $26.6 

    Capital contributions to subsidiaries                                  -             -       (16,6 34)  
    Dividends received from subsidiaries                             162,149       116,906       117,4 99 
    Receivables from subsidiaries                                    (22,607)      303,221      (235,7 72)  
    Payables to subsidiaries                                         380,505       (90,319)        9,7 38 
    Proceeds from sales of assets                                      3,444        40,778       202,7 05 
    Note receivable                                                        -             -        22,5 00 
    Other, net                                                         2,569       (28,046)      (14,9 59)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
            Net cash provided by (used in) investin g activities      526,060       116,971    (1,198,2 14)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
    Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt                               -       950,000     1,297,4 35 
    Payments of long-term debt                                      (415,166)     (960,274)      (52,2 14)  
    Payment of hedge contracts                                             -       (40,237)            - 
    Proceeds from issuance of common stock                            19,182        15,033        14,1 56 
    Payment of debt issuance costs                                         -        (6,625)            - 
    Cash dividends paid                                              (25,413)      (24,179)      (22,6 71)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
            Net cash provided by (used in) financin g activities     (421,397)      (66,282)    1,236,7 06 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s                   5,860       (21,760)       27,2 45 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                         6,540        28,300         1,0 55 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- -- 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR                         $    12,400         6,540        28,3 00 
=================================================== =================================================== == 

                          2000    -  $   37.4 milli on 
                          2001    -  $   56.6 milli on 
                          2002    -  $  302.3 milli on 
                          2003    -  $    3.8 milli on 
                          2004    -  $   50.5 milli on 
 
(B)    GUARANTEES 



million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

For the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997  

 

                                                  A dditions 
                                      Balance at  c harged to  Deductions                Balance 
                                      beginning   c osts and      from        Other      at end 
Description                           of period   e xpenses    allowance(1)  changes(2)  of period 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------  
                                                       (Dollars in thousands) 
Year ended December 31, 1999 
   Allowance for doubtful accounts    $  4,155      7,680       (7,494)      (191)       4,150 
 
Year ended December 31, 1998 
   Allowance for doubtful accounts    $  5,954     13,951      (15,775)        25        4,155 
 
Year ended December 31, 1997 
   Allowance for doubtful accounts    $  3,327     11,838       (9,975)       764        5,954 
 
 
(1) Customers' accounts written-off, net of recover ies. 
 
(2) Allowance for doubtful  accounts at the date of   acquisition of purchased 
     subsidiaries,  net of  allowance  for  doubtfu l  accounts  at the date of 
     disposition of subsidiaries sold. 
 
 



EXHIBIT 3(ii)  

BYLAWS  

OF  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  

(as amended through November 18, 1999)  

BYLAWS  
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

 

                                TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
ARTICLE I - Officers............................... .......................1  
         Section 1.   Required and Permitted Office rs.....................1  
         Section 2.   Election and Removal of Offic ers....................4  
 
ARTICLE II - Board of Directors.................... .......................4  
         Section 1.   Powers....................... .......................4  
         Section 2.   Organizational and Regular Me etings.................4  
         Section 3.   Special Meetings............. .......................5  
         Section 4.   Waiver of Notice............. .......................5  
         Section 5.   Quorum....................... .......................5  
         Section 6.   Notice of Adjournment........ .......................5  
         Section 7.   Written Consents............. .......................5  
         Section 8.   Voting....................... .......................6  
         Section 9.   Use of Communications Equipme nt.....................6  
         Section 10.  Indemnification.............. .......................6  
         Section 11.  Certain Qualifications....... ......................10  
 
ARTICLE III - Committees........................... ......................10  
         Section 1.   Committees................... ......................10  
         Section 2.   Appointment and Removal of Co mmittee Members.......13  
         Section 3.   Procedures for Committees.... ......................13  
         Section 4.   Meetings..................... ......................13  
         Section 5.   Authority of Chairman to Appo int Committees........13  
 
ARTICLE IV - Shareholders' Meetings................ ......................14  
         Section 1.   Place of Meetings............ ......................14  
         Section 2.   Annual Meeting............... ......................14  
         Section 3.   Special Meetings............. ......................14  
         Section 4.   Notice of Meetings........... ......................14  
         Section 5.   Notice of Shareholder Nominat ions 
                      and Shareholder Business..... ......................14  
         Section 6.   Quorum....................... ......................17  
         Section 7.   Voting Power Present or Repre sented................17  
         Section 8.   Voting Requirements.......... ......................17  
         Section 9.   Proxies...................... ......................17  
         Section 10.  Adjournments................. ......................18  
         Section 11.  Written Consents............. ......................18  
         Section 12.  List of Shareholders......... ......................18  
         Section 13.  Procedure at Shareholders Mee tings.................18  
 
ARTICLE V -    Certificates of Stock............... ......................19  
 
ARTICLE VI -   Registered Shareholders............. ......................19  
 
ARTICLE VII -  Loss of Certificate................. ......................19  
 
ARTICLE VIII - Checks.............................. ......................19  
 
ARTICLE IX -   Dividends........................... ......................19  
 
ARTICLE X -    Inapplicability of Louisiana Control  Share Statute........20  
 
ARTICLE XI -   Certain Definitions................. ......................20  
 
ARTICLE XII -  Amendments.......................... ......................20  



BYLAWS  

(Amended entirely May 23, 1995)  
 

(Amended Article I, Section I, Subsection  
1.1(L), added new Subsection  

1.1(O), and amended Subsection 1.2  

- October 7, 1996) (Amended Article III, Section 1.1(B), Section 1 by adding new Subsection 1.3, Sections 3 and 4 amended in their entirety - 
November 21, 1996) (Amended Article I, Section I by adding, deleting, revising or renumbering various paragraphs of Subsection 1.1 and by 
revising Subsection  
1.2 - October 7, 1998) (Amended Article I, Section I by adding or renumbering various paragraphs of Subsection 1.1, by revising Subsection 
1.2, Article IV,  
Section 5, Subsections 5.2 and 5.7 amended in their entirety - November 19, 1998) (Amended Article I, Section I by adding Subsection 1.1(G), 
amending Subsection 1.2 and renumbering subsections - August 24, 1999) (Amended Article III, Section  
1.1(D) - November 18, 1999)  

ARTICLE I  

OFFICERS  

Section 1. Required and Permitted Officers  

1.1 Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairman of the Board; a Chief Executive Officer; a President; a Secretary; and a 
Treasurer. The Board may elect such other officers as the Board may determine. An officer need not be a Director and any two or more of the 
offices may be held by one person, provided, however, that a person holding more than one office may not sign in more than one capacity any 
certificate or any instrument required to be signed by two officers. The required and permitted officers and duties thereof are as follows:  

A. Chairman of the Board (Chairman). The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the shareholders and Directors, ensure that all orders, 
policies and resolutions of the Board are carried out and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these 
Bylaws.  

B. Vice Chairman. The Board may from time to time elect one or more Vice Chairmen. The Vice Chairman shall serve in the absence or 
inability of the Chairman to serve. In the event of the death, resignation or permanent inability of the Chairman to serve, the Vice Chairman 
shall automatically succeed to the office of Chairman until such time as the Board of Directors duly elects a new Chairman. In the event that 
there is more than one Vice Chairmen, then the one who has served in that capacity for the longest period of time shall serve in the absence of 
the Chairman or assume the office of Chairman, as the case may be.  

C. Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO, subject to the powers of the Chairman and the supervision of the Board of Directors, shall have 
general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs of the Corporation. He may sign, execute and deliver in the name of the 
Corporation powers of attorney, contracts, bonds and other obligations and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to 
time by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws. The CEO shall have general supervision and direction of the officers of the Corporation and all 
such powers as may be reasonably incident to such responsibilities except where the supervision and direction of an officer is delegated 
expressly to another by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing the CEO shall establish the 
annual salaries of each non-executive officer of the Corporation, unless otherwise directed by the Board, and the annual salaries of each officer 
of the Corporation's subsidiaries, unless otherwise directed by the respective boards of directors of such subsidiaries.  

D. President. The President may sign, execute and deliver in the name of the Corporation powers of attorney, contracts, bonds, and other 
obligations and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Chairman, the CEO, or 
these Bylaws.  

E. Chief Operating Officer (COO). The COO,subject to the powers of the CEO and the supervision of the Board of Directors, shall manage the 
day-to-day operations of the Corporation, shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or the CEO, and shall 
have the general powers and duties usually vested in the chief operating officer of a corporation. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the COO shall supervise any other officer designated by the CEO and shall have all such powers as may be reasonably incident to 
such responsibilities. Unless otherwise provided by law or the Board of Directors, he may sign, execute and deliver in the name of the 
Corporation powers of attorney, contracts, and bonds.  

F. Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall be the principal financial officer of the Corporation. He shall manage the financial 
affairs of the Corporation and direct the activities of the Treasurer, Controller and other officers responsible for the Corporation's finances. He 
shall be responsible for all internal and external financial reporting. Unless otherwise provided by law or the Board of Directors, he may sign, 
execute and deliver in the name of the Corporation powers of attorney, contracts, bonds, and other obligations, and shall perform such other 
duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws.  



G. Chief Administrative Officer (CAO). The CAO, subject to the supervision of the Board of Directors, shall be in general and active charge of 
the administrative functions of the Corporation, shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors and shall have 
the general powers and duties usually vested in the chief administrative officer of a corporation. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the CAO shall have the authority to hire and discharge employees and agents of the Corporation under his supervision, other than 
officers, and shall oversee the development and implementation of the Corporation's administrative policies.  

H. Chief Information Officer (CIO). The CIO, subject to the powers of the CEO, shall be responsible for identifying and addressing the 
Corporation's information systems needs. The CIO shall be responsible for identifying changes and trends in computer and systems technology 
that affect the Corporation and its operations, determining long-term corporate-wide information needs and developing overall strategy for 
information needs and systems development. The CIO shall be responsible for assuring the integrity of corporate data, proprietary information 
and related intellectual property stored in the Corporation's information systems.  

I. General Counsel. The General Counsel shall be directly responsible for advising the Board of Directors, the Corporation, and its officers and 
employees in matters affecting the legal affairs of the Corporation. He shall determine the need for and, if necessary, select outside counsel to 
represent the Corporation and approve all fees in connection with their representation. He shall also have such other powers, duties and 
authority as may be prescribed to him from time to time by the CEO, the Board of Directors, or these Bylaws.  

J. Treasurer.As directed by the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer shall have general custody of all the funds and securities of the 
Corporation. He may sign, with the CEO, President, Chief Financial Officer or such other person or persons as may be specifically designated 
by the Board of Directors, all bills of exchange or promissory notes of the Corporation. He shall perform such other duties as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the Chief Financial Officer or these Bylaws.  

K. Controller. As directed by the Chief Financial Officer, the Controller shall be responsible for the development and maintenance of the 
accounting systems used by the Corporation and its subsidiaries. The Controller shall be authorized to implement policies and procedures to 
ensure that the Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain internal accounting control systems designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
accounting records accurately reflect business transactions and that such transactions are in accordance with management's authorization. 
Additionally, as directed by the Chief Financial Officer, the Controller shall be responsible for internal and external financial reporting for the 
Corporation and its subsidiaries.  

L. Assistant Treasurer. The Assistant Treasurer shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be assigned by the Treasurer. In the 
absence or disability of the Treasurer, the Assistant Treasurer shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Treasurer.  

M. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, the Board of Directors and its committees or 
subcommittees. He shall cause notice to be given of meetings of shareholders, of the Board of Directors and of any committee or subcommittee 
of the Board. He shall have custody of the corporate seal and general charge of the records, documents and papers of the Corporation not 
pertaining to the duties vested in other officers, which shall at all reasonable times be open to the examination of any Director. He may sign or 
execute contracts with any other officer thereunto authorized in the name of the Corporation and affix the seal of Corporation thereto. He shall 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.  

N. Assistant Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall have powers and perform such duties as may be assigned by the Secretary. In the absence 
or disability of the Secretary, the Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary.  

O. Executive Vice President(s). The Executive Vice President(s) shall, in addition to exercising such powers and performing such duties 
associated with any other office held thereby, assist the CEO in discharging the duties of that office in any manner requested, and shall perform 
any other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, by the CEO or by these Bylaws.  

P. Senior Vice President(s). The Senior Vice President(s) shall, in addition to exercising such powers and performing such duties associated 
with any other office held thereby, perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors, by the CEO or by 
these Bylaws (or, with respect to any Senior Vice President(s) who reports to the COO, by the COO).  

Q. Vice President(s). The Vice President(s) shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be assigned to them by the Board of 
Directors, the CEO, the President, or any Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President or other officer to whom they report. A Vice 
President may sign and execute contracts and other obligations pertaining to the regular course of his duties.  

R. Assistant Vice President(s). The Assistant Vice President(s) shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be assigned to them by 
the Board of Directors, the CEO, the President or the officer to whom they report. An Assistant Vice President may sign and execute contracts 
and other obligations pertaining to the regular course of his duties.  

1.2 Executive Officer Group. The Executive Officer Group shall be comprised of the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the 
President, the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Administrative Officer, the Chief Information Officer and each 
Executive or Senior Vice President.  

Section 2. Election and Removal of Officers  



2.1 Election. The officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the annual meeting of the 
shareholders and, at any time, the Board may remove any officer (with or without cause, and regardless of any contractual obligation to such 
officer) and fill a vacancy in any office, but any election to, removal from or appointment to fill a vacancy in any office, and the determination 
of the terms of employment thereof, shall require the affirmative votes of (a) a majority of the Directors then in office and (b) a majority of the 
Continuing Directors, voting as a separate group.  

2.2 Removal. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is empowered in his sole discretion to remove or suspend any officer or other employee 
of the Corporation who (a) fails to respond satisfactorily to the Corporation respecting any inquiry by the Corporation for information to enable 
it to make any certification required by the Federal Communications Commission under the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, (b) is arrested or 
convicted of any offense concerning the distribution or possession of, or trafficking in, drugs or other controlled substances, or (c) the Chief 
Executive Officer believes to have been engaged in actions that could lead to such an arrest or conviction.  

ARTICLE II  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

Section 1. Powers  

In addition to the powers and authorities by these Bylaws expressly conferred upon it, the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of 
the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws required to be 
exercised or done by the shareholders.  

Section 2. Organizational and Regular Meetings  

The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meeting, without notice, immediately following the adjournment of the annual 
meeting of the shareholders and shall hold a regular meeting on the first Tuesday after the twentieth day in the months of February, May, 
August and November of each year. The Secretary shall give not less than five days' written notice to each Director of all regular meetings, 
which notice shall state the time and place of the meeting.  

Section 3. Special Meetings  

3.1 Call of Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman of the Board or, if he is absent or 
unable or unwilling to act, by the President. Upon the written request of any two Directors delivered to the Chairman of the Board, the 
President or the Secretary of the Corporation, a special meeting shall be called.  

3.2 Notice. Written notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be delivered personally to the Directors or sent to each Director by 
letter or by telegram, charges prepaid, addressed to him at his address shown in the Corporation's records. In case such notice is mailed or 
telegraphed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or delivered to an overnight mail delivery 
service or to the telegraph company in the place in which the principal office of the corporation is located at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
In case such notice is personally delivered as above provided, it shall be so delivered at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The foregoing 
notwithstanding, if the Chairman or the President shall determine, in his sole discretion, that the subject of the special meeting is urgent and 
must be considered by the Board without delay, notice may be given by personal delivery or by telephone not less than 12 hours prior to the 
time set for the meeting, provided a confirming telegram or overnight letter is sent to the Director contemporaneously. Such mailing, 
telegraphing, telephoning or personal delivery as above provided shall be due, legal and personal notice to such Director.  

Section 4. Waiver of Notice  

Any Director may waive notice of a meeting by written waiver executed either before or after the meeting. Directors present at any regular or 
special meeting shall be deemed to have received due, or to have waived, notice thereof, provided that a director who participates in a meeting 
by telephone shall not be deemed to have received or waived due notice if, at the beginning of the meeting, he objects to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting is not lawfully called.  

Section 5. Quorum  

A majority of the authorized number of Directors as fixed by or pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation shall be necessary to constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business, provided, however, that a minority of the Directors, in the absence of a quorum, may adjourn from time 
to time, but may not transact any business. If a quorum is present when the meeting convened, the directors present may continue to do 
business, taking action by vote of a majority of a quorum, until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough directors to leave less 
than a quorum or the refusal of any director present to vote.  

Section 6. Notice of Adjournment  

Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent Directors if the time and place is fixed at the meeting 



adjourned.  

Section 7. Written Consents  

Anything to the contrary contained in these Bylaws notwithstanding, any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors 
may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board of Directors shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. 
Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such action by written consent shall have the 
same force and effect as a unanimous vote of such Directors at a meeting.  

Section 8. Voting  

At all meetings of the Board, each Director present shall have one vote. At all meetings of the Board, all questions, the manner of deciding 
which is not otherwise specifically regulated by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, shall be determined by a majority of the 
Directors present at the meeting, provided, however, that any shares of other corporations owned by the Corporation shall be voted only 
pursuant to resolutions duly adopted upon the affirmative votes of (a) 80% of the Directors then in office and (b) a majority of the Continuing 
Directors, voting as a separate group.  

Section 9. Use of Communications Equipment  

Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held by means of telephone conference calls or similar communications equipment provided that all 
persons participating in the meeting can hear and communicate with each other.  

Section 10. Indemnification  

10.1 Definitions. As used in this Section:  

(a) The term "Expenses" shall mean any expenses or costs (including, without limitation, attorney's fees, judgments, punitive or exemplary 
damages, fines and amounts paid in settlement). If any of the foregoing amounts paid on behalf of Indemnitee are not deductible by Indemnitee 
for federal or state income tax purposes, the Corporation will reimburse Indemnitee for tax liability with respect thereto by paying to 
Indemnitee an amount which, after taking into account taxes on such amount, equals Indemnitee's incremental tax liability.  

(b) The term "Claim" shall mean any threatened, pending or completed claim, action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, 
administrative or investigative and whether made judicially or extra-judicially, or any separate issue or matter therein, as the context requires.  

(c) The term "Determining Body" shall mean (i) those members of the Board of Directors who are not named as parties to the Claim for which 
indemnification is being sought ("Impartial Directors"), if there are at least three Impartial Directors, or (ii) a committee of at least three 
directors appointed by the Board of Directors (regardless of whether the members of the Board of Directors voting on such appointment are 
Impartial Directors) and composed of Impartial Directors or (iii) if there are fewer than three Impartial Directors or if the Board of Directors or 
a committee appointed thereby so directs (regardless of whether the members thereof are Impartial Directors), independent legal counsel, which 
may be the regular outside counsel of the Corporation.  

(d) The term "Indemnitee" shall mean each director and officer and each former director and officer of the Corporation.  

10.2 Indemnity. (a) To the extent any Expenses incurred by Indemnitee are in excess of the amounts reimbursed or indemnified pursuant to 
policies of liability insurance maintained by the Corporation, the Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitee against any such 
Expenses actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any Claim against Indemnitee (whether as a subject of or party to, or a proposed 
or threatened subject of or party to, the Claim) or in which Indemnitee is involved solely as a witness or person required to give evidence, by 
reason of his position (i) as a director or officer of the Corporation, (ii) as a director or officer of any subsidiary of the Corporation or as a 
fiduciary with respect to any employee benefit plan of the Corporation, or (iii) as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, 
partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust or other for-profit or not-for-profit entity or enterprise, if such position is or was held 
at the request of the Corporation, whether relating to service in such position before or after the effective date of this Section 10, if (i) the 
Indemnitee is successful in his defense of the Claim on the merits or otherwise or (ii) the Indemnitee has been found by the Determining Body 
(acting in good faith) to have met the Standard of Conduct; provided that (a) the amount of Expenses for which the Corporation shall indemnify 
Indemnitee may be reduced by the Determining Body to such amount as it deems proper if it determines in good faith that the Claim involved 
the receipt of a personal benefit by Indemnitee and (b) no indemnification shall be made in respect of any Claim as to which Indemnitee shall 
have been adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, after exhaustion of all appeals therefrom, to be liable for willful or intentional 
misconduct in the performance of his duty to the Corporation or to have obtained an improper benefit, unless, and only to the extent that, a 
court shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, the Indemnitee 
is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such Expenses as the court shall deem proper; and provided further that, if the Claim involves 
Indemnitee by reason of his position with an entity or enterprise described in clause (ii) or (iii) of this Section 10.2(a) and if Indemnitee may be 
entitled to indemnification with respect to such Claim from such entity or enterprise, Indemnitee shall be entitled to indemnification hereunder 
only (x) if he has applied to such entity or enterprise for indemnification with respect to the Claim and (y) to the extent that indemnification to 
which he would be entitled hereunder but for this proviso exceeds the indemnification paid by such other entity or enterprise.  



(b) For purposes of this Section, the Standard of Conduct is met when conduct by an Indemnitee with respect to which a Claim is asserted was 
conduct that he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Corporation, and, in the case of a Claim which is a 
criminal action or proceeding, conduct that the Indemnitee had no reasonable cause to believe was unlawful. The termination of any Claim by 
judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that 
Indemnitee did not meet the Standard of Conduct.  

(c) Promptly upon becoming aware of the existence of any Claim, Indemnitee shall notify the Chief Executive Officer of the existence of the 
Claim, who shall promptly advise the members of the Board of Directors thereof and that establishing the Determining Body will be a matter 
presented at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors. After the Determining Body has been established the Chief 
Executive Officer shall inform Indemnitee thereof and Indemnitee shall immediately notify the Determining Body of all facts relevant to the 
Claim known to such Indemnitee. Within 60 days of the receipt of such notice and information, together with such additional information as 
the Determining Body may request of Indemnitee, the Determining Body shall report to Indemnitee of its determination whether Indemnitee 
has met the Standard of Conduct. The Determining Body may extend the period of time for determining whether the Standard of Conduct has 
been met, but in no event shall such period of time be extended beyond an additional 60 days.  

(d) If, after determining that the Standard of Conduct has been met, the Determining Body obtains facts of which it was not aware at the time it 
made such determination, the Determining Body on its own motion, after notifying the Indemnitee and providing him an opportunity to be 
heard, may, on the basis of such facts, revoke such determination, provided that, in the absence of actual fraud by Indemnitee, no such 
revocation may be made later than 30 days after final disposition of the Claim.  

(e) Indemnitee shall promptly inform the Determining Body upon his becoming aware of any relevant facts not theretofore provided by him to 
the Determining Body, unless the Determining Body has obtained such facts by other means.  

(f) In the case of any Claim not involving a proposed, threatened or pending criminal proceeding (i) if Indemnitee has, in the good faith 
judgment of the Determining Body, met the Standard of Conduct, the Corporation may, in its sole discretion, assume all responsibility for the 
defense of the Claim, and, in any event, the Corporation and Indemnitee each shall keep the other informed as to the progress of the defense of 
the Claim, including prompt disclosure of any proposals for settlement; provided that if the Corporation is a party to the Claim and Indemnitee 
reasonably determines that there is a conflict between the positions of the Corporation and Indemnitee with respect to the Claim, then 
Indemnitee shall be entitled to conduct his defense with counsel of his choice; and provided further that Indemnitee shall in any event be 
entitled at his expense to employ counsel chosen by him to participate in the defense of the Claim; and (ii) the Corporation shall fairly consider 
any proposals by Indemnitee for settlement of the Claim. If the Corporation proposes a settlement of the Claim and such settlement is 
acceptable to the person asserting the Claim or the Corporation believes a settlement proposed by the person asserting the Claim should be 
accepted, it shall inform Indemnitee of the terms of such proposed settlement and shall fix a reasonable date by which Indemnitee shall 
respond. If Indemnitee agrees to such terms, he shall execute such documents as shall be necessary to make final the settlement. If Indemnitee 
does not agree with such terms, Indemnitee may proceed with the defense of the Claim in any manner he chooses, provided that if Indemnitee 
is not successful on the merits or otherwise, the Corporation's obligation to indemnify such Indemnitee as to any Expenses incurred by 
following his disagreement shall be limited to the lesser of (A) the total Expenses incurred by Indemnitee following his decision not to agree to 
such proposed settlement or (B) the amount that the Corporation would have paid pursuant to the terms of the proposed settlement. If, however, 
the proposed settlement would impose upon Indemnitee any requirement to act or refrain from acting that would materially interfere with the 
conduct of Indemnitee's affairs, Indemnitee shall be permitted to refuse such settlement and proceed with the defense of the Claim, if he so 
desires, at the Corporation's expense in accordance with the terms and conditions of these Bylaws without regard to the limitations imposed by 
the immediately preceding sentence. In any event, the Corporation shall not be obligated to indemnify Indemnitee for an amount paid in 
settlement that the Corporation has not approved.  

(g) In the case of a Claim involving a proposed, threatened or pending criminal proceeding, Indemnitee shall be entitled to conduct the defense 
of the Claim and to make all decisions with respect thereto, with counsel of his choice; provided that the Corporation shall not be obligated to 
indemnify Indemnitee for an amount paid in settlement that the Corporation has not approved.  

(h) After notification to the Corporation of the existence of a Claim, Indemnitee may from time to time request of the Chief Executive Officer 
or, if the Chief Executive Officer is a party to the Claim as to which indemnification is being sought, any officer who is not a party to the Claim 
and who is designated by the Chief Executive Officer (the "Disbursing Officer"), which designation shall be made promptly after receipt of the 
initial request, that the Corporation advance to Indemnitee the Expenses (other than fines, penalties, judgments or amounts paid in settlement) 
that he incurs in pursuing a defense of the Claim prior to the time that the Determining Body determines whether the Standard of Conduct has 
been met. The Disbursing Officer shall pay to Indemnitee the amount requested (regardless of Indemnitee's apparent ability to repay the funds) 
upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of Indemnitee to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he is not entitled to 
be indemnified by the Corporation under the circumstances, provided that if the Disbursing Officer does not believe such amount to be 
reasonable, he shall advance the amount deemed by him to be reasonable and Indemnitee may apply directly to the Determining Body for the 
remainder of the amount requested.  

(i) After a determination that the Standard of Conduct has been met, for so long as and to the extent that the Corporation is required to 
indemnify Indemnitee under these Bylaws, the provisions of Paragraph (h) shall continue to apply with respect to Expenses incurred after such 
time except that  
(i) no undertaking shall be required of Indemnitee and (ii) the Disbursing Officer shall pay to Indemnitee the amount of any fines, penalties or 
judgments against him which have become final for which the Corporation is obligated to indemnify him or any amount of indemnification 
ordered to be paid to him by a court.  



(j) Any determination by the Corporation with respect to settlement of a Claim shall be made by the Determining Body.  

(k) The Corporation and Indemnitee shall keep confidential to the extent permitted by law and their fiduciary obligations all facts and 
determinations provided pursuant to or arising out of the operation of these Bylaws and the Corporation and Indemnitee shall instruct its or his 
agents and employees to do likewise.  

10.3 Enforcement.  

(a) The rights provided by this Section shall be enforceable by Indemnitee in any court of competent jurisdiction.  

(b) If Indemnitee seeks a judicial adjudication of his rights under this Section, Indemnitee shall be entitled to recover from the Corporation, and 
shall be indemnified by the Corporation against, any and all Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such 
proceeding, but only if he prevails therein. If it shall be determined that Indemnitee is entitled to receive part but not all of the relief sought, 
then Indemnitee shall be entitled to be reimbursed for all Expenses incurred by him in connection with such proceeding if the indemnification 
amount to which he is determined to be entitled exceeds 50% of the amount of his claim. Otherwise, the Expenses sought incurred by 
Indemnitee in connection with such judicial adjudication shall be appropriately prorated.  

(c) In any judicial proceeding described in this subsection, the Corporation shall bear the burden of proving that Indemnitee is not entitled to 
Expenses sought with respect to any Claim.  

10.4 Saving Clause. If any provision of this Section is determined by a court having jurisdiction over the matter to require the Corporation to 
do or refrain from doing any act that is in violation of applicable law, the court shall be empowered to modify or reform such provision so that, 
as modified or reformed, such provision provides the maximum indemnification permitted by law and such provision, as so modified or 
reformed, and the balance of this Section, shall be applied in accordance with their terms. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if 
any portion of this Section shall be invalidated on any ground, the Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify and Indemnitee to the full extent 
permitted by any applicable portion of this Section that shall not have been invalidated and to the full extent permitted by law with respect to 
that portion that has been invalidated.  

10.5 Non-Exclusivity. (a) The indemnification and payment of Expenses provided by or granted pursuant to this Section shall not be deemed 
exclusive of any other rights to which Indemnitee is or may become entitled under any statute, article of incorporation, bylaw, authorization of 
shareholders or directors, agreement or otherwise.  

(b) It is the intent of the Corporation by this Section to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitee to the fullest extent permitted by law, so that if 
applicable law would permit the Corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than are currently permitted, the Corporation shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitee to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law notwithstanding that the other terms of this Section 
would provide for lesser indemnification.  

10.6 Successors and Assigns. This Section shall be binding upon the Corporation, its successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of 
Indemnitee's heirs, personal representatives, and assigns and to the benefit of the Corporation, its successors and assigns.  

10.7 Indemnification of Other Persons. The Corporation may indemnify any person not a director or officer of the Corporation to the extent 
authorized by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board expressly authorized by the Board of Directors.  

Section 11. Certain Qualifications  

No person shall be eligible for nomination, election or service as a director of the Corporation who shall (i) in the opinion of the Board of 
Directors fail to respond satisfactorily to the Corporation respecting any inquiry of the Corporation for information to enable the Corporation to 
make any certification required by the Federal Communications Commission under the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988 or to determine the 
eligibility of such persons under this section; (ii) have been arrested or convicted of any offense concerning the distribution or possession of, or 
trafficking in, drugs or other controlled substances, provided that in the case of an arrest the Board of Directors may in its discretion determine 
that notwithstanding such arrest such persons shall remain eligible under this Section; or (iii) have engaged in actions that could lead to such an 
arrest or conviction and that the Board of Directors determines would make it unwise for such person to serve as a director of the Corporation. 
Any person serving as a director of the Corporation shall automatically cease to be a director on such date as he ceases to have the 
qualifications set forth in this Section, and his position shall be considered vacant within the meaning of the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Corporation.  

ARTICLE III  

COMMITTEES  

Section 1. Committees  

1.1 Standing Committees. The Board of Directors shall have six standing committees, the names, functions and powers of each of which shall 



be as follows:  

A. The Executive Committee shall consist of not less than three Directors, one of whom shall be the Chairman of the Board, who shall also 
serve as chairman of the Executive Committee. To the full extent permitted by law and the Articles of Incorporation, the Executive Committee 
shall have and may exercise all of the powers of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation when the Board is 
not in session.  

B. The Compensation Committee shall consist of two or more Directors (the exact number of which shall be set from time to time by the 
Board), none of whom shall be a current or former officer or employee of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries. The Compensation 
Committee is empowered to:  

1. after receiving and considering the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer, determine from time to time the salary of the 
Corporation's executive officers (as defined in  
Section 1.2 of Article I of these Bylaws) and the fees of the Corporation's directors;  

2. administer each of the Corporation's incentive compensation plans and stock-based plans (including its 1983 Restricted Stock Plan, Key 
Employee Incentive Compensation Plan, 1988 Incentive Compensation Program, 1990 Incentive Compensation Program, 1995 Incentive 
Compensation Plan and any successor plans), and exercise all powers provided for in such plans;  

3. approve any (i) proposed plan or arrangement offering or providing any benefits to one or more of the Corporation's executive officers or 
directors (other than any plan or arrangement offering benefits that do not discriminate in scope, terms or operation in favor of executive 
officers or directors and that are generally available to all salaried employees) and (ii) proposed amendment or change to any such plan or 
arrangement;  

4. approve any (i) proposed employment or severance contract between the Corporation and an executive officer or proposed executive officer 
thereof and (ii) proposed extension or material amendment thereto;  

5. issue executive compensation reports to the Corporation's shareholders in the manner required under the rules and regulations of the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission;  

6. retain independent consultants and legal advisors who will report directly to the Compensation Committee and be paid with funds of the 
Corporation; and  

7. if requested by the Board, (i) review, determine or approve the compensation of any non-executive officer of the Corporation or any officer 
of the Corporation's subsidiaries,  
(ii) review, determine or approve any proposed amendments, contributions or changes to any of the Corporation's employee benefit plans, 
welfare plans, insurance or other benefit arrangements that are not directly administered or monitored by the Compensation Committee 
pursuant to the powers granted in paragraphs 2 and 3 above, and (iii) perform such other services as may be delegated to it by the Board.  

No action of the type described in paragraphs 1 - 6 shall be valid unless it has been approved by the Compensation Committee or a duly-
authorized subcommittee thereof. All actions of the Compensation Committee or any subcommittee thereof shall be subject to ratification by 
the full Board of Directors unless the Compensation Committee or the subcommittee reasonably determines that submitting a matter to the full 
Board of Directors for ratification would be prohibited by, or contrary to the intents and purposes of, any laws, rules, or regulations that require 
or contemplate that such matter be authorized by independent directors.  

C. The Nominating Committee shall consist of two or more Directors and shall perform the following functions:  

1. To consider and recommend to the Board nominees for election by shareholders or for appointment by the remaining Directors to fill 
vacancies on the Board;  

2. To review and consider the performance of and to recommend the appointment or reappointment of officers of the Corporation.  

D. The Audit Committee shall consist of three or more Directors, who shall have such qualifications, powers and responsibilities as specified in 
any charter that may from time to time be adopted by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.  

E. The Insurance Evaluation Committee shall consist of two or more Directors, and shall have the following responsibilities:  

1. To review periodically the Corporation's insurance programs and to advise and recommend any action deemed appropriate with respect 
thereto; and  

2. To review periodically the Corporation's insurance needs and to advise and recommend any action deemed appropriate with respect thereto.  

F. The Shareholder Relations Committee shall consist of three or more non-officer directors and shall have the authority of the Board of 



Directors with respect to investigating, inquiring into and considering issues related to certain shareholders' interest and rights and considering 
and acting upon shareholder matters as assigned, from time to time, by the Chairman of the Board.  

1.2 Special Purpose Committees. The Board may authorize on an ad hoc basis special pricing committees in connection with the issuance of 
securities or such other special purpose committees as may be necessary or appropriate in connection with the Board's management of the 
business and affairs of the Corporation.  

1.3 Subcommittees. As necessary or appropriate, each of the standing committees listed in Section 1.1 may organize a standing or ad hoc 
subcommittee for such purposes within the scope of its powers as it sees fit, and may delegate to such subcommittee any of its powers as may 
be necessary or appropriate to enable such subcommittee to discharge its duties and responsibilities. Any such subcommittee shall be composed 
of two or more members of the standing committee. Each subcommittee member shall hold office during the term designated by the standing 
committee, provided that such term shall automatically lapse if such member ceases to be a member of the standing committee or fails to meet 
any other qualifications that may be imposed by the standing committee.  

Section 2. Appointment and Removal of Committee Members  

Subject to Section 5 below, Directors shall be appointed to or removed from a committee only upon the affirmative votes of:  

1. A majority of the Directors then in office; and  

2. A majority of the Continuing Directors, voting as a separate group.  

Each member of a committee shall hold office during the term designated by the Board.  

Section 3. Procedures for Committees  

Each Committee and subcommittee shall keep written minutes of its meetings. All action taken by a committee or any of its subcommittees 
shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next meeting, whether regular or special. Failure to keep written minutes or to make such a 
report shall not affect the validity of action taken by a committee or subcommittee. Each committee or subcommittee may adopt such 
regulations (not inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or any regulations specified for such committee by the Board of 
Directors or for such subcommittee by the standing committee that authorized its organization under Section 1.3) as it shall deem necessary for 
the proper conduct of its functions and the performance of its responsibilities.  

Section 4. Meetings  

A majority of the members of any committee or subcommittee shall constitute a quorum and action by a majority (or by any super-majority 
required by law, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or any applicable resolution adopted by the Board of Directors) of a quorum at any 
meeting of a committee or subcommittee shall be deemed action by the committee or subcommittee. The Committee or subcommittee may also 
take action without meeting if all members thereof consent in writing thereto. Meetings of a committee or subcommittee may be held by 
telephone conference calls or other communications equipment provided each person participating may hear and be heard by all other meeting 
participants.  

Section 5. Authority of Chairman to Appoint Committees  

Whenever the Board of Directors is not in session, the Chairman may fill vacancies in any committees and may create such new committees as 
he deems necessary or useful and appoint Directors as members thereof. Any such action by the Chairman, and any action taken by such new 
committee, shall be subject to ratification or disapproval by the Board at its next meeting.  

ARTICLE IV  

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS  

Section 1. Place of Meetings  

Unless otherwise required by law or these Bylaws, all meetings of the shareholders shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at 
such other place, within or without the State of Louisiana, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.  

Section 2. Annual Meeting  

An annual meeting of the shareholders shall be held on the date and at the time as the Board of Directors shall designate for the purpose of 
electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting. If no annual shareholders' 
meeting is held for a period of 18 months, any shareholder may call such meeting to be held at the registered office of the Corporation as 



shown on the records of the Secretary of State of the State of Louisiana.  

Section 3. Special Meetings  

Special meetings of the shareholders, for any purpose or purposes, may be called by the Chairman of the Board, the President or the Board of 
Directors. Subject to the terms of any outstanding class or series of Preferred Stock that entitles the holders thereof to call special meetings, the 
holders of a majority of the Total Voting Power shall be required to cause the Secretary of the Corporation to call a special meeting of 
shareholders pursuant to La. R.S. 12:73B (or any successor provision). Such requests of shareholders must state the specific purpose or 
purposes of the proposed special meeting, and the business to be brought before such meeting by the shareholders shall be limited to such 
purpose or purposes.  

Section 4. Notice of Meetings  

Except as otherwise provided by law, the authorized person or persons calling a shareholders' meeting shall cause written notice of the time and 
place of the meeting to be given to all shareholders of record entitled to vote at such meeting at least 10 days and not more than 60 days prior to 
the day fixed for the meeting. Notice of the annual meeting need not state the purpose or purposes thereof, unless action is to be taken at the 
meeting as to which notice is required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws. Notice of a special meeting shall state the purpose or 
purposes thereof. Any previously scheduled meeting of the shareholders may be postponed, and (unless provided otherwise by law or the 
Articles of Incorporation) any special meeting of the shareholders may be canceled, by resolution of the Board of Directors upon public notice 
given prior to the date previously scheduled for such meeting of shareholders.  

Section 5. Notice of Shareholder Nominations and Shareholder Business  

5.1 Business Brought Before Meetings. At any meeting of the shareholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly 
brought before the meeting. Nominations for the election of directors at a meeting at which directors are to be elected may be made by or at the 
direction of the Board of Directors, or a committee duly appointed thereby, or by any shareholder of record entitled to vote generally for the 
election of directors who complies with the procedures set forth below. Other matters to be properly brought before a meeting of the 
shareholders must be (a) specified in the notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, 
including matters covered by Rule 14a-8 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, (b) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by or 
at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (c) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by any shareholder of record entitled to vote at 
such meeting who complies with the procedures set forth below.  

5.2 Required Notice. A notice of the intent of a shareholder to make a nomination or to bring any other matter before the meeting shall be made 
in writing and received by the Secretary of the Corporation not more than 180 days and not less than 90 days in advance of the first anniversary 
of the preceding year's annual meeting of shareholders or, in the event of a special meeting of shareholders or annual meeting scheduled to be 
held either 30 days earlier or later than such anniversary date, such notice shall be received by the Secretary of the Corporation within 15 days 
of the earlier of the date on which notice of such meeting is first mailed to shareholders or public disclosure of the meeting date is made. In no 
event shall the public announcement of an adjournment of a shareholders' meeting commence a new time period for the giving of a 
shareholder's notice as described above.  

5.3 Contents of Notice. Every such notice by a shareholder shall set forth:  

(a) the name, age, business address and residential address of the shareholder of record who intends to make a nomination or bring up any other 
matter, and any beneficial owner or other person acting in concert with such shareholder;  

(b) a representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of shares of the Corporation's capital stock that accord such shareholder the voting 
rights specified in paragraph 5.1 above and that the shareholder intends to appear in person at the meeting to make the nomination or bring up 
the matter specified in the notice;  

(c) with respect to notice of an intent to make a nomination, a description of all agreements, arrangements or understandings among the 
shareholder, any person acting in concert with the shareholder, each proposed nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or 
persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder;  

(d) with respect to notice of an intent to make a nomination,  
(i) the name, age, business address and residential address of each person proposed for nomination, (ii) the principal occupation or employment 
of such person, (iii) the class and number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation of which such person is the beneficial owner, and (iv) 
any other information relating to such person that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission had such nominee been nominated by the Board of Directors; and  

(e) with respect to notice of an intent to bring up any other matter, a complete and accurate description of the matter, the reasons for conducting 
such business at the meeting, and any material interest in the matter of the shareholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the 
proposal is made.  

5.4 Other Required Information. Notice of an intent to make a nomination shall be accompanied by the written consent of each nominee to 



serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected and an affidavit of each such nominee certifying that he meets the qualifications specified in 
Section 11 of Article II of these Bylaws. The Corporation may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information or certifications 
as may be reasonably required by the Corporation to determine the eligibility and qualifications of such person to serve as a director.  

5.5 Disqualification of Certain Proposals. With respect to any proposal by a shareholder to bring before a meeting any matter other than the 
nomination of directors, the following shall govern:  

(a) If the Secretary of the Corporation has received sufficient notice of a proposal that may properly be brought before the meeting, a proposal 
sufficient notice of which is subsequently received by the Secretary and that is substantially duplicative of the first proposal shall not be 
properly brought before the meeting. If in the judgment of the Board of Directors a proposal deals with substantially the same subject matter as 
a prior proposal submitted to shareholders at a meeting held within the preceding five years, it shall not be properly brought before any meeting 
held within three years after the latest such previous submission if (i) the proposal was submitted at only one meeting during such preceding 
period and it received affirmative votes representing less than 3% of the total number of votes cast in regard thereto, (ii) the proposal was 
submitted at only two meetings during such preceding period and it received at the time of its second submission affirmative votes representing 
less than 6% of the total number of votes cast in regard thereto, or (iii) the proposal was submitted at three or more meetings during such 
preceding period and it received at the time of its latest submission affirmative votes representing less than 10% of the total number of votes 
cast in regard thereto.  

(b) Notwithstanding compliance with all of the procedures set forth above in this Section, no proposal shall be deemed to be properly brought 
before a meeting of shareholders if, in the judgment of the Board, it is not a proper subject for action by shareholders under Louisiana law.  

5.6 Power to Disregard Proposals. At the meeting of shareholders, the chairman shall declare out of order and disregard any nomination or 
other matter not presented in accordance with the foregoing procedures or which is otherwise contrary to the foregoing terms and conditions.  

5.7 Rights and Obligations of Shareholders Under Federal Proxy Rules. Nothing in this Section shall be deemed to modify (i) any obligations 
of a shareholder to comply with all applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the regulations promulgated thereunder 
with respect to the matters set forth in this Section of the Bylaws or (ii) any rights or obligations of shareholders with respect to requesting 
inclusion of proposals in the Corporation's proxy statement or soliciting their own proxies pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  

5.8 Rights of Preferred Shareholders. Nothing in this Section shall be deemed to modify any rights of holders of any outstanding class or series 
of Preferred Stock to elect directors or bring other matters before a shareholders' meeting in the manner specified by the terms and conditions 
governing such stock.  

Section 6. Quorum  

6.1 Establishment of Quorum. At all meetings of shareholders, the holders of a majority of the Total Voting Power shall constitute a quorum to 
organize the meeting, provided, however, that at any meeting the notice of which sets forth any matter that, by law or the Articles of 
Incorporation, must be approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a specified percentage in excess of a majority of the Total Voting 
Power present or represented at the shareholders' meeting, the holders of that specified percentage shall constitute a quorum, and further 
provided that when specified business is to be voted on by a class or series of stock voting as a class, the holders of a majority of the voting 
power of such class or series shall constitute a quorum of such class or series for the transaction of such business. Shares of Voting Stock as to 
which the holders have voted or abstained from voting with respect to any matter considered at a meeting, or which are subject to Non-Votes 
(as defined in  
Section 6.3 below), shall be counted as present for purposes of constituting a quorum to organize a meeting.  

6.2 Withdrawal. If a quorum is present or represented at a duly organized meeting, such meeting may continue to do business until 
adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum, or the refusal of any shareholders present to 
vote.  

6.3 Non-Votes. As used in these Bylaws, "Non-Votes" shall mean the number of votes as to which the record holder or proxy holder of shares 
of Capital Stock has been precluded from voting thereon (whether by law, regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, rules or 
bylaws of any national securities exchange or other self-regulatory organization, or otherwise), including without limitation votes as to which 
brokers may not or do not exercise discretionary voting power under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange with respect to any matter for 
which the broker has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the voting shares.  

Section 7. Voting Power Present or Represented  

For purposes of determining the amount of Total Voting Power present or represented at any annual or special meeting of shareholders with 
respect to voting on any particular matter, shares as to which the holders have abstained from voting, and shares which are subject to Non-
Votes (as defined in Section 6.3), will be treated as not present and not cast.  

Section 8. Voting Requirements  



When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of the Total Voting Power present in person or represented by 
proxy shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which, by express provision of law or the Articles 
of Incorporation, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question. 
Directors shall be elected by plurality vote.  

Section 9. Proxies  

At any meeting of the shareholders, every shareholder having the right to vote shall be entitled to vote in person or by proxy appointed by an 
instrument in writing subscribed by such shareholder and bearing a date not more than 11 months prior to the meeting, unless the instrument 
provides for a longer period, but in no case will an outstanding proxy be valid for longer than three years from the date of its execution. The 
person appointed as proxy need not be a shareholder of the Corporation.  

Section 10. Adjournments  

10.1 Adjournments of Meetings. Adjournments of any annual or special meeting of shareholders may be taken without new notice being given 
unless a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, but any meeting at which directors are to be elected shall be adjourned only from 
day to day until such directors shall have been elected.  

10.2 Lack of Quorum. If a meeting cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, those present may adjourn the meeting to such 
time and place as they may determine, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 10.1 hereof. In the case of any meeting called for the 
election of directors, those who attend the second of such adjourned meetings, although less that a quorum as fixed in Section 6.1 hereof, shall 
nevertheless constitute a quorum for the purpose of electing directors.  

Section 11. Written Consents  

Any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of shareholders may be taken only upon the vote of the 
shareholders, present in person or represented by duly authorized proxy, at an annual or special meeting duly noticed and called, as provided in 
these Bylaws, and may not be taken by a written consent of the shareholders pursuant to the Business Corporation Law of the State of 
Louisiana.  

Section 12. List of Shareholders  

At every meeting of shareholders, a list of shareholders entitled to vote, arranged alphabetically and certified by the Secretary or by the agent of 
the Corporation having charge of transfers of shares, showing the number and class of shares held by each shareholder on the record date for 
the meeting, shall be produced on the request of any shareholder.  

Section 13. Procedure at Shareholders' Meetings  

The Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, the Vice Chairman, shall preside as chairman at all shareholders' meetings. The organization of 
each shareholders' meeting and all matters relating to the manner of conducting the meeting shall be determined by the chairman, including the 
order of business, the conduct of discussion and the manner of voting. Meetings shall be conducted in a manner designed to accomplish the 
business of the meeting in a prompt and orderly fashion and to be fair and equitable to all shareholders, but it shall not be necessary to follow 
Roberts' Rules of Order or any other manual of parliamentary procedure.  

ARTICLE V  

CERTIFICATES OF STOCK  

Certificates of stock issued by the Corporation shall be numbered and shall be entered into the books of the Corporation as they are issued. 
They shall exhibit the holder's name and number of shares and shall be signed by the President or any Vice President and by the Treasurer, 
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, all in the manner required by law.  

ARTICLE VI  

REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS  

The Corporation shall be entitled to treat the holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder in fact thereof and accordingly shall 
not be bound to recognize any beneficial, equitable or other claim to or interest in such share on the part of any other person, whether or not it 
shall have express or other notice thereof, except as expressly provided by the laws of Louisiana.  

ARTICLE VII  



LOSS OF CERTIFICATE  

Any person claiming a certificate of stock to be lost or destroyed shall make an affidavit or affirmation of that fact, and the Board of Directors, 
the General Counsel or the Secretary may, in his or its discretion, require the owner of the lost of destroyed certificate or his legal 
representative, to give the Corporation a bond, in such sum as the Board of Directors, the General Counsel or the Secretary may require, to 
indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be made against the Corporation on account of the alleged loss or destruction of any 
such certificate; a new certificate of the same tenor and for the same number of shares as the one alleged to be lost or destroyed, may be issued 
without requiring any bond when, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, the General Counsel or the Secretary, it is proper to do so.  

ARTICLE VIII  

CHECKS  

All checks, drafts and notes of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time designate.  

ARTICLE IX  

DIVIDENDS  

Dividends upon the capital stock of the Corporation, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, if any, may be declared by the 
Board of Directors at any regular or special meetings, pursuant to law.  

ARTICLE X  

INAPPLICABILITY OF LOUISIANA CONTROL SHARE STATUTE  

Effective May 23, 1995, the provisions of La. R.S. 12:135 through 12:140.2 shall not apply to control share acquisitions of shares of the 
Corporation's Capital Stock.  

ARTICLE XI  

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS  

The terms Capital Stock, Continuing Directors, Total Voting Power and Voting Stock shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Articles 
of Incorporation, provided, however, that for purposes of Sections 3 and 6 of Article IV of these Bylaws, Total Voting Power shall mean the 
total number of votes that holders of Capital Stock are entitled to cast generally in the election of directors.  

ARTICLE XII  

AMENDMENTS  

These Bylaws may only be altered, amended or repealed in the manner specified in the Articles of Incorporation.  



EXHIBIT 10.1(t)  

THIS DOCUMENT CONSTITUTES PART OF A PROSPECTUS COVERING SECURITIES THAT HAVE  
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933.  

NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT  
UNDER THE  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  
1995 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN  

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of February 21, 2000 by and between CenturyTel, Inc., a Louisiana corporation ("CenturyTel"), and 
("Optionee").  

WHEREAS Optionee is a key employee of CenturyTel or one of its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") and CenturyTel considers it 
desirable and in its best interest that Optionee be given an incentive to advance the interests of CenturyTel by possessing an option to purchase 
shares of the common stock, $1.00 par value per share, of CenturyTel (the "Common Stock") under the CenturyTel, Inc. 1995 Incentive 
Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), which was adopted by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of CenturyTel (the 
"Committee") on February 19, 1995, ratified by the Board of Directors of CenturyTel on February 21, 1995, and approved by the shareholders 
at CenturyTel's 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, it is agreed as follows:  

1.  

Grant of Option  

1.01 CenturyTel hereby grants to Optionee effective February 21, 2000 (the "Date of Grant") the right, privilege and option to purchase __ 
shares of Common Stock (the "Option") at an exercise price of $34.625 per share.  

1.02 The Option is a non-qualified stock option and shall not be treated as an incentive stock option under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").  

2.  

Time of Exercise  

2.01 Subject to the provisions of the Plan and the other provisions of this Agreement, the Optionee shall be entitled to exercise the Option as 
follows:  

 

The Option shall expire and may not be exercised later than ten years after the Date of Grant.  

2.02 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Option shall become accel- erated and immediately exercisable in full (a.) if Optionee dies while he is 
employed by the Company, (b.) if Optionee becomes disabled within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code ("Disability") while he is 
employed by the Company, (c.) if Optionee retires from employment with the Company on or after attaining the age of 55 ("Retirement") or 
(d.) pursuant to the provisions of the Plan.  

3.  

Conditions for Exercise of Option  

During Optionee's lifetime, the Option may be exercised only by him or by his guardian or legal representative. The Option must be exercised 

With respect to 1/3 of the shares    Beginning Febr uary 21, 2001  
covered by the Option 
 
 
With respect to 2/3 of the shares    Beginning Febr uary 21, 2002  
covered by the Option, less any 
shares previously issued 
 
 
With respect to all of the shares    Beginning Febr uary 21, 2003  
covered by the Option, less any 
shares previously issued. 



while Optionee is employed by the Company, or, to the extent exercisable at the time of termination of employment, within 190 days of the 
date on which he ceases to be an employee, except that (a.) if he ceases to be an employee because of Retirement, the Option may be exercised 
within three years from the date on which he ceases to be an employee, (b.) if an Optionee's employment is terminated for cause, the 
unexercised portion of the Option is immediately terminated, and (c.) in the event of Optionee's Disability or death, the Option may be 
exercised by the Optionee or, in the case of death, by his estate, or by the person to whom such right devolves from him by reason of his death 
within two years after the date of his Disability or death; provided, however, that the Option and all option gain, as defined in Section 4.01, 
shall at all times be subject to the forfeiture provisions of Section 4 hereof and provided further, that no Option may be exercised later than ten 
years after the Date of Grant.  

4.  

Forfeiture of Option and Option Gain  

4.01 If, at any time during Optionee's employment by the Company or within 18 months after termination of employment, Optionee engages in 
any activity in competition with any activity of the Company, or inimical, contrary or harmful to the interests of the Company, including, but 
not limited to: (a) conduct relating to Optionee's employment for which either criminal or civil penalties against Optionee may be sought, (b) 
conduct or activity that results in termination of Optionee's employment for cause, (c) violation of Company policies, including, without 
limitation, the Company's insider trading policy,  
(d) accepting employment with, acquiring a 5% or more equity or participation interest in, serving as a consultant, advisor, director or agent of, 
directly or indirectly soliciting or recruiting any employee of the Company who was employed at any time during Optionee's tenure with the 
Company, or otherwise assisting in any other capacity or manner any company or enterprise that is directly or indirectly in competition with or 
acting against the interests of the Company or any of its lines of business (a "competitor"), except for (A) any isolated, sporadic 
accommodation or assistance provided to a competitor, at its request, by Optionee during Optionee's tenure with the Company, but only if 
provided in the good faith and reasonable belief that such action would benefit the Company by promoting good business relations with the 
competitor and would not harm the Company's interests in any material respect or (B) any other service or assistance that is provided at the 
request or with the written permission of the Company, (e) disclosing or misusing any confidential information or material concerning the 
Company, or (f) participating in a hostile takeover attempt, then  
(i) the Option shall terminate effective the date on which Optionee engages in such activity, unless terminated sooner by operation of another 
term or condition of this Agreement or the Plan, and (ii) Optionee shall pay in cash to the Company, without interest, any option gain realized 
by Optionee from exercising all or a portion of the Option during the period beginning one year prior to termination of employment (or one 
year prior to the date Optionee first engages in such activity if no termination occurs) and ending on the date on which the Option terminates. 
For purposes hereof, "option gain" shall mean the difference between the closing market price of the Common Stock on the date of exercise 
minus the exercise price, multiplied by the number of shares purchased.  

4.02 If Optionee owes any amount to the Company under Section 4.01 above, Optionee acknowledges that the Company may deduct such 
amount from any amounts the Company owes Optionee from time to time for any reason (including amounts owed to Optionee as wages or 
other compensation, fringe benefits, or vacation pay). Whether or not the Company elects to make any such set-off in whole or in part, if the 
Company does not recover by means of set-off the full amount Optionee owes it, Optionee agrees to pay immediately the unpaid balance to the 
Company.  

4.03 Optionee may be released from Optionee's obligations under Sections 4.01 and 4.02 above only if the Committee determines in its sole 
discretion that such action is in the best interests of the Company.  

5.  

Preference Share Purchase Rights  

Upon exercise of an Option at a time when preference share purchase rights to purchase shares of Series BB Participating Cumulative 
Preference Stock or other securities or property of the Company (the "Rights" and each a "Right") remain outstanding pursuant to that certain 
Rights Agreement dated as of August 27, 1996 between the Company and the Rights Agent named therein, as amended (the "Rights 
Agreement"), or any successor rights agreement, then the Option shall automatically be converted into the right to receive, upon payment of the 
exercise price, one Right for each share of Common Stock received upon exercise of the Option.  

6.  

Additional Conditions  

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if at any time CenturyTel further determines, in its sole discretion, that the listing, 
registration or qualification (or any updating of any such document) of the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the exercise of an 
Option is necessary on any securities exchange or under any federal or state securities or blue sky law, or that the consent or approval of any 
governmental regulatory body is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in connection with the issuance of shares of Common Stock 
pursuant thereto, or the removal of any restrictions imposed on such shares, such shares of Common Stock shall not be issued, in whole or in 
part, unless such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not 
acceptable to CenturyTel. CenturyTel agrees to promptly take any and all actions necessary or desirable in order that all shares of Common 
Stock issuable hereunder shall be issued as provided herein.  



7.  

Attorneys' Fees and Expenses  

Should any party hereto retain counsel for the purpose of enforcing, or preventing the breach of, any provision hereof, including, but not 
limited to, the institution of any action or proceeding in court to enforce any provision hereof, to enjoin a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement, to obtain specific performance of any provision of this Agreement, to obtain monetary or liquidated damages for failure to perform 
any provision of this Agreement, or for a declaration of such parties' rights or obligations hereunder, or for any other judicial remedy, then the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby, including, but not limited to, 
attorneys' fees (including costs of appeal).  

8.  

No Contract of Employment Intended  

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon Optionee any right to continue in the employment of the Company or to interfere in any way with 
the right of CenturyTel to terminate Optionee's employment relationship with the Company at any time.  

9.  

Taxes  

The Company may make such provisions as it may deem appropriate for the withholding of any federal, state and local taxes that it determines 
are required to be withheld on the exercise of the Option.  

10.  

Binding Effect  

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators and 
successors.  

11.  

Inconsistent Provisions  

The Option granted hereby is subject to the provisions of the Plan. If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with a provision of the Plan, the 
Plan provision shall control.  

12.  

Adjustments to Options  

Appropriate adjustments shall be made to the number and class of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option and to the exercise price in 
certain situations described in Section 10.6 of the Plan.  

13.  

Termination of Option  

The Committee, in its sole discretion, may terminate the Option. However, no termination may adversely affect the rights of Optionee to the 
extent that the Option is currently exercisable on the date of such termination.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first above written.  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  

By: /s/ Glen F. Post, III 
    ________________________ 
       Glen F. Post, III, 
  Vice Chairman, President and 
    Chief Executive Officer 



 

Optionee  



EXHIBIT 10.1(x)  

THI DOCUMENT CONSTITUTES PART OF A PROSPECTUS  
COVERING SECURITIES THAT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED  

UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933.  

RESTRICTED STOCK AND  
PERFORMANCE SHARE AGREEMENT  

UNDER THE  
1995 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM  

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of February 22, 1999, by and between Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. ("Century") and ("Award 
Recipient").  

WHEREAS, Century maintains the 1995 Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended (the "Plan"), under 
which the Incentive Awards Subcommittee of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Century (the "Committee") may, 
among other things, grant restricted shares (the "Restricted Stock") of Century's common stock, $1.00 par value per share (the "Common 
Stock"), and awards in the form of performance shares (the "Performance Shares") to key employees of Century or its subsidiaries as the 
Committee may determine, subject to terms, conditions, or restrictions as it may deem appropriate;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Plan the Committee has awarded to the Award Recipient a Restricted Stock award and a Performance Share 
award.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, it is agreed with respect to the Restricted Stock and Performance Shares as follows:  

1.  

AWARD OF SHARES  

1.1 Under the terms of the Plan, the Committee hereby awards to the Award Recipient, shares of Restricted Stock that vest on January 1, 2004, 
if, subject to Section 4 hereof, the Award Recipient remains employed by Century on that date (the "Time-Vested Restricted Stock").  

1.2 Under the terms of the Plan, the Committee also awards to the Award Recipient, shares of Restricted Stock (the "Performance-Based 
Restricted Stock") and Performance Shares that vest if, subject to Section 4 hereof, the Award Recipient remains employed by Century through 
January 1, 2004 and the performance goals described in Section 3 hereof are achieved.  

1.3 All awards hereunder are subject to the terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in the Plan and in this Agreement. The date of grant of 
the Restricted Stock and Performance Shares is February 22,1999.  

2.  

AWARD RESTRICTIONS ON  
RESTRICTED STOCK  

2.1 The Restricted Period is a period that begins on the date hereof and ends at such time after December 31, 2003 as the Committee has been 
able to determine if and to what extent the applicable conditions and performance goals provided herein have been met.  

2.2 In addition to the conditions and restrictions provided in the Plan, during the Restricted Period, the shares of Restricted Stock and the right 
to vote the Restricted Stock and to receive dividends thereon may not be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged, pledged, hypothecated or 
otherwise encumbered. During the Restricted Period, except as otherwise provided in this Section 2, the Award Recipient shall be entitled to all 
rights of a shareholder of Century, including the right to vote the shares and receive dividends and/or other distributions declared on the 
Restricted Stock.  

3.  

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE-BASED  
RESTRICTED STOCK AND PERFORMANCE SHARES  

3.1 The restrictions on shares of Performance-Based Restricted Stock will lapse and the Performance Shares will be earned depending upon 
Century's total shareholder return as compared to the total shareholder return of other comparable companies, as follows:  

a. At the end of the year 2003, the total shareholder return (determined by calculating the increase in stock price plus reinvestment of 



dividends) for the five-year period of 1999 through 2003 (the "Performance Period") will be calculated for each of the companies (the "Peer 
Companies") included in the performance graph (the "Graph") that appears in the Company's proxy statement issued in connection with the 
first annual meeting following the end of the Performance Period.  

b. Each Peer Company will be ranked based upon total shareholder return as reflected in the Graph for the Performance Period.  

c. The average shareholder return of the Peer Companies that make up the top one-third, middle one-third and bottom one-third of the 
companies included in the Graph will be calculated.  

d. If Century's total shareholder return for the Performance Period is less than the average total shareholder return of the bottom one-third of the 
Peer Companies none of the shares of Performance-Based Restricted Stock will vest and no Performance Shares will be earned.  

e. If Century's total shareholder return for the Performance Period equals or exceeds the average total shareholder return of the companies in 
the bottom one-third of the Peer Companies, then the portion of the Performance-Based Restricted Stock that vests (not more than the number 
of shares granted) will be equal to (A / B) x C with A equal to the difference between the Century total shareholder return and the bottom one-
third average return  

and B equal to the difference between the middle one-third average and the bottom one-third average  

and C equal to the number of shares of Performance-Based Restricted Stock granted.  

f. In addition to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock that will vest under the terms described in 3.1.e. above, if Century's total shareholder 
return for the Performance Period is greater than the average shareholder return of the middle one-third of the Peer Companies, the Award 
Recipient will earn Performance Shares. The portion of the Performance Shares that are earned (not more than the number granted) will be 
equal to (D / E) x F with D equal to the difference between the Century total shareholder return and the middle one-third average return  

and E equal to the difference between the top one-third average and the middle one-third average and F equal to the number of Performance 
Shares granted.  

g. If earned, the Performance Shares will be paid in shares of Common Stock.  

3.3 Although permitted by the terms of the Plan, the Committee may not waive any of the performance requirements described in this Section 3 
or accelerate the termination of the Restricted Period with respect to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock and Performance Shares. All 
shares of Restricted Stock will vest, and all Performance Shares will be earned, however, in the event of a Corporate Change of the Company, 
as provided in Section 10.11 of the Plan.  

3.4 Prior to the lapse of restrictions on shares of Performance-Based Restricted Stock or the issuance of shares of Common Stock in payment of 
Performance Shares, the Committee must certify in writing (including through the adoption of resolutions set forth in duly recorded minutes) 
that all applicable performance goals and conditions have been met.  

3.5 Any shares of Restricted Stock with respect to which restrictions do not lapse and any Performance Shares that are not earned shall be 
forfeited upon termination of the Restricted Period.  

4.  

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT  

4.1 If an Award Recipient's employment terminates as the result of death, disability within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code ("Disability"), or retirement on or after reaching age 55 ("Retirement") during the Performance Period, all shares of Time-
Vested Restricted Stock shall immediately vest and all restrictions thereon shall lapse. Termination of employment for any other reason during 
the Performance Period, except termination in connection with a Corporate Charge, results in forfeiture of all Time-Vested Restricted Stock.  

4.2 If an Award Recipient's employment terminates during the first year of the Performance Period for any reason, all shares of Performance-
Based Restricted Stock shall be immediately forfeited and no Performance Shares shall be earned.  

4.3 If an Award Recipient's employment terminates as a result of death, Disability or Retirement following the first year of the Performance 
Period, the Award Recipient shall receive the pro rata portion of the Performance-Based Restricted Stock and Performance Shares based upon 
the number of full years of the Performance Period that has elapsed prior to termination of employment and Century's total shareholder return 
for such years as compared to the Peer Companies included in the Graph in the following year. Other shares of Performance-Based Restricted 
Stock and Performance Shares shall be forfeited.  

5.  



STOCK CERTIFICATES  

5.1 The stock certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock shall be retained by Century until the termination of the Restricted Period and the 
lapse of restrictions under the terms hereof. Century shall place a legend on the stock certificates restricting the transferability of the shares of 
Restricted Stock.  

5.2 Upon the lapse of restrictions on shares of Restricted Stock and when Performance Shares are earned, Century shall cause a stock certificate 
without a restrictive legend to be issued with respect to the vested Restricted Stock and the earned Performance Shares in the name of the 
Award Recipient or his or her nominee within 30 days after the end of the Restricted Period. Upon receipt of such stock certificate, the Award 
Recipient is free to hold or dispose of the shares represented by such certificate, subject to applicable securities laws.  

6.  

DIVIDENDS  

Any dividends paid on shares of Restricted Stock shall be paid to the Award Recipient currently. No dividends or dividend equivalents will be 
paid with respect to the Performance Shares prior to the issuance of Common Stock in payment thereof.  

7.  

WITHHOLDING TAXES  

At the time that all or any portion of the Restricted Stock vests or the Performance Shares are earned, the Award Recipient must deliver to 
Century the amount of income tax withholding required by law.  

8.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS  

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if at any time Century further determines, in its sole discretion, that the listing, 
registration or qualification (or any updating of any such document) of the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable pursuant hereto is 
necessary on any securities exchange or under any federal or state securities or blue sky law, or that the consent or approval of any 
governmental regulatory body is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in connection with the issuance of shares of Common Stock 
pursuant hereto, or the removal or any restrictions imposed on such shares, such shares of Common Stock shall not be issued, in whole or in 
part, or the restrictions thereon removed, unless such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained 
free of any conditions not acceptable to Century.  

9.  

NO CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT INTENDED  

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Award Recipient any right to continue in the employment of Century, or to interfere in any 
way with the right of Century to terminate the Award Recipient's employment relationship with Century at any time.  

10.  

BINDING EFFECT  

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators and 
successors.  

11.  

INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS  

The shares of Restricted Stock and Performance Shares granted hereby are subject to the provisions of the Plan. If any provision of this 
Agreement conflicts with a provision of the Plan, the Plan provision shall control.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day and year first above written.  

CENTURY TELEPHONE ENTERPRISES, INC.  



 

Award Recipient  

By:/s/ Glen F. Post, III 
   _______________________________ 
   Glen F. Post, III 
   President and Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 21  
CENTURYTEL, INC.  

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT  
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999  

                                                                      State of 
Subsidiary                                                         incorporation  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
Actel Corporation                                                Louisiana 
Celutel of Biloxi, Inc.                                          Delaware 
Celutel, Inc.                                                    Delaware 
Century Business Communications, LLC                             Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Alexandria, Inc.                             Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Michigan RSA #4, Inc.                        Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Michigan RSAs, Inc.                          Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Mississippi RSA #2, Inc.                     Mississippi 
Century Cellunet of Mississippi RSA #5, Inc.                     Mississippi 
Century Cellunet of Mississippi RSA #6, Inc.                     Mississippi 
Century Cellunet of Mississippi RSA #7, Inc.                     Mississippi 
Century Cellunet of North Arkansas, Inc.                         Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Pine Bluff, LLC                              Arkansas 
Century Cellunet of Saginaw, Inc.                                Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of South Arkansas, Inc.                         Louisiana 
Century Cellunet of Southern Michigan, Inc.                      Delaware 
Century Cellunet of Texarkana, Inc.                              Louisiana 
Century Color Graphics, LLC                                      Louisiana 
Century Interactive Communications, Inc.                         Louisiana 
Century Interactive Fax, Inc.                                    Louisiana 
CenturyTel Holdings, Inc.                                        Louisiana 
CenturyTel Investments, LLC                                      Louisiana 
CenturyTel Long Distance, Inc.                                   Louisiana 
CenturyTel Michigan Network, LLC                                 Louisiana 
CenturyTel Midwest - Michigan, Inc.                              Michigan 
CenturyTel of Adamsville, Inc.                                   Tennessee 
CenturyTel of Arkansas, Inc.                                     Arkansas 
CenturyTel of Central Indiana, Inc.                              Indiana 
CenturyTel of Central Louisiana, LLC                             Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Chatham, LLC                                       Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Chester, Inc.                                      Iowa 
CenturyTel of Claiborne, Inc.                                    Tennessee 
CenturyTel of Colorado, Inc.                                     Colorado 
CenturyTel of Cowiche, Inc.                                      Washington 
CenturyTel of Eagle, Inc.                                        Colorado 
CenturyTel of East Louisiana, LLC                                Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Eastern Oregon, Inc.                               Oregon 
CenturyTel of Evangeline, LLC                                    Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Fairwater-Brandon-Alto, Inc.                       Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Forestville, Inc.                                  Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Greater Wisconsin, Inc.                            Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Idaho, Inc.                                        Delaware 
CenturyTel of Inter Island, Inc.                                 Washington 
CenturyTel Internet Services, LLC                                Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Lake Dallas, Inc.                                  Texas 
CenturyTel of Larsen-Readfield, Inc.                             Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Michigan, Inc.                                     Michigan 
CenturyTel of Minnesota, Inc.                                    Minnesota 
CenturyTel of Monroe County, Inc.                                Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Montana, Inc.                                      Oregon 
CenturyTel of Mountain Home, Inc.                                Arkansas 
CenturyTel of North Louisiana, LLC                               Louisiana 
CenturyTel of North Mississippi, Inc.                            Mississippi 
CenturyTel of Northern Michigan, Inc.                            Michigan 
CenturyTel of Northern Wisconsin, Inc.                           Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Northwest Louisiana, Inc.                          Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin, Inc.                          Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Odon, Inc.                                         Indiana 
CenturyTel of Ohio, Inc.                                         Ohio 
CenturyTel of Ooltewah-Collegedale, Inc.                         Tennessee 
CenturyTel of Oregon, Inc.                                       Oregon 
CenturyTel of Port Aransas, Inc.                                 Texas 
CenturyTel of Postville, Inc.                                    Iowa 
CenturyTel of Redfield, Inc.                                     Arkansas 
CenturyTel of Ringgold, LLC                                      Louisiana 
CenturyTel of San Marcos, Inc.                                   Texas 
CenturyTel of South Arkansas, Inc.                               Arkansas 
CenturyTel of Southeast Louisiana, LLC                           Louisiana 
CenturyTel of Southern Wisconsin, Inc.                           Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Southwest Louisiana, LLC                           Louisiana 
CenturyTel of the Gem State, Inc.                                Idaho 
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Kendall, Inc.                          Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Wisconsin, Inc.                        Wisconsin 



 

Certain of the Company's smaller subsidiaries have been intentionally omitted from this exhibit pursuant to rules and regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission.  

Note 1. Sold in February 2000  

CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc.                                Washington 
CenturyTel of the Southwest, Inc.                                New Mexico 
CenturyTel of Upper Michigan, Inc.                               Michigan 
CenturyTel of Washington, Inc.                                   Washington 
CenturyTel of Wisconsin, Inc.                                    Wisconsin 
CenturyTel of Wyoming, Inc.                                      Wyoming 
CenturyTel Paging, Inc.                                          Louisiana 
CenturyTel Personal Access Network, Inc.                         Louisiana 
CenturyTel Security Systems, Inc.                                Louisiana 
CenturyTel Service Group, LLC                                    Louisiana 
CenturyTel Solutions, LLC                                        Louisiana 
CenturyTel Supply Group, Inc.                                    Louisiana 
CenturyTel Telecommunications, Inc.                              Texas 
CenturyTel Telelink, Inc.                                        Louisiana 
CenturyTel Wireless Louisiana, Inc.                              Louisiana 
CenturyTel Wireless of Appleton-Oshkosh-Neenah MSA,  LLC          Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of La Crosse, LLC                            Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of North Louisiana, LLC                      Louisiana 
CenturyTel Wireless of Shreveport, LLC                           Louisiana 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #1, LLC                     Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #10, LLC                    Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #2, LLC                     Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #3, LLC                     Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #6, LLC                     Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless of Wisconsin RSA #8, LLC                     Delaware 
CenturyTel Wireless, Inc.                                        Louisiana 
CenturyTel/Area Long Lines, Inc.                                 Wisconsin 
CenturyTel/Remote Access, Inc.                                   Louisiana 
CenturyTel/Tele-Max, Inc.                                        Texas 
CenturyTel/Teleview of Wisconsin, Inc.                           Wisconsin 
CenturyTel/WORLDVOX, Inc.                                        Oregon 
Eau Claire Cellular, Inc.                                        Colorado 
Jackson Cellular Telephone Co., Inc.                             Delaware 
MVI Corp.                                                        Oregon 
North-West Cellular of Eau Claire, Inc.                          Wisconsin 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska RSA #1, Inc. (No te 1)         Alaska 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Michigan RSA #1, Inc.                Michigan 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Michigan RSA #2, Inc.                Michigan 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Michigan, Inc.                       Michigan 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Oregon, Inc.                         Oregon 
Pacific Telecom Cellular of Washington, Inc.                     Washington 
Pacific Telecom Cellular, Inc.                                   Wisconsin 
Pascagoula Cellular Services, Inc.                               Mississippi 



EXHIBIT 23  

Independent Auditors' Consent  

The Board of Directors  
CenturyTel, Inc.:  

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (No. 333-42013 and No. 333-91361) on Form S-3, the Registration 
Statements (No. 33-17113, No. 33-46562, No. 33-60061, No. 333-67815 and No. 333-91351) on Form S-8, the Registration Statements (No. 
33-31314 and No. 33-46473) on combined Form S-8 and Form S-3, and the Registration Statements (No. 33-48956 and No. 333-17015) on 
Form S-4 of CenturyTel, Inc. of our report dated January 26, 2000, relating to the consolidated balance sheets of CenturyTel, Inc. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' 
equity, and cash flows and related financial statement schedules for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1999, which 
report appears in the December 31, 1999 annual report on Form 10-K of CenturyTel, Inc.  

 

/s/  KPMG LLP 
---------------- 
 
KPMG LLP 
 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
March 14, 2000 
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ARTICLE 5 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 
BALANCE SHEET OF CENTURYTEL, INC. AND SUB- SIDIARIES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND THE RELATED AUDITED 
CON- SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD THEN ENDED AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS 
ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

CIK: 0000018926 

NAME: CENTURYTEL, INC. 

MULTIPLIER: 1,000 

PERIOD TYPE YEAR 
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 1999 
PERIOD START JAN 01 1999 
PERIOD END DEC 31 1999 
CASH 56,640 
SECURITIES 0 
RECEIVABLES 132,488 
ALLOWANCES 4,150 
INVENTORY 28,769 
CURRENT ASSETS 286,073 
PP&E 4,193,907 
DEPRECIATION 1,937,449 
TOTAL ASSETS 4,705,407 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 309,177 
BONDS 2,078,311 
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0 
PREFERRED 7,975 
COMMON 139,946 
OTHER SE 1,700,071 
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 4,705,407 
SALES 0 
TOTAL REVENUES 1,676,669 
CGS 0 
TOTAL COSTS 1,168,600 
OTHER EXPENSES 0 
LOSS PROVISION 0 
INTEREST EXPENSE 150,557 
INCOME PRETAX 429,272 
INCOME TAX 189,503 
INCOME CONTINUING 239,769 
DISCONTINUED 0 
EXTRAORDINARY 0 
CHANGES 0 
NET INCOME 239,769 
EPS BASIC 1.72 
EPS DILUTED 1.70 


